
 

 
 

  

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

To sensitively manage the natural resources entrusted to our care, to provide the people of Montara - Moss Beach with reliable, high – 
quality water, wastewater, and trash disposal at an equitable price, and to ensure the fiscal and environmental vitality of the district for 
future generations. Be open to providing other services desired by our community.  
 
  
 

AGENDA 
  

                    District Board of Directors 
8888 Cabrillo Highway 

Montara, California 94037 

  

March 3, 2016 at 7:30 p.m.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT 
ORAL COMMENTS (Items other than those on the agenda) 

PUBLIC HEARING 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Approve Minutes for October 1, 2015 and January 7, 2016. 
2. Approve Financial Statements for January 2016. 
3. Approve Warrants for March 1, 2016. 
4. SAM Flow Report for January, 2016 
5. Monthly Review of Current Investment Portfolio. 
6. Connection Permit Applications Received. 
7. Monthly Water Production Report for December 2015. 
8. Rain Report. 
9. Solar Energy Report. 



 

 
 

 
 

 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
1. Receive AV Tank Construction Update. 
2. Receive Update on OpenGovernment Online Platform.  
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. Receive Mid-Year Finance Review. 
2. Review and Possible Action Concerning Adopting Policy Regarding Interim Sewer Remodel 

Permit Fees. 
3. Receive Annual Update to Staff Action Plan for MWSD Strategic Plan. 
4. Review and Possible Action Concerning Agreement with Bodega Marine Laboratory for 

Ocean Current Measurement Instrumentation on District Property. 
 
 

 

REPORTS 
1. Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside Meetings (Boyd) 
2. MidCoast Community Council Meeting (Slater-Carter) 
3. CSDA Report (Slater-Carter) 
4. CCWD, NCCWD Committee Report (Harvey, Huber) 
5. Attorney’s Report (Schricker) 
6. Directors’ Reports 
7. General Manager’s Report  (Heldmaier) 

 

FUTURE AGENDAS 

CONVENE IN CLOSED SESSION 

CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS  

(Gov’t. C. §54956.8) 

Property: Caltrans Montara Right of Way. 

Agency Negotiators: General Manager, District Counsel 

Negotiating Party: Caltrans 

Under Negotiation: To be determined. 

 

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION AND ADJOURN  
 

 
The District has a curfew of 11:00 p.m. for all meetings.  The meeting may be extended for one hour by 
vote of the Board. 

 



 

 
 

NOTE:  In accordance with the Government Code, members of the public may address the Board on specific 
agenda items when that matter is discussed by the Board.  Any other items of interest that is within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the District may be addressed during the Oral Comments portion of the meeting.  Upon 
request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability.  
Request for a disability-related modification or an accommodation in order to participate in the public meeting 
should be made at (650) 728-3545.  Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board after 
distribution of the agenda packet are available in the District Clerk’s office during normal business hours.  
Such documents may also be available on the District’s web site (www.mwsd.montara.org) subject to staff’s 
ability to post the documents before the meeting. 

http://www.mwsd.montara.org/


• w ..... ~· 

£--

·. :!~r-:-:.:&4j:.: .... ,·."·,. MONTARA WATER & SANITARY 

DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
October 1, 2015 

MINUTES 

REGULAR SESSION BEGAN AT 7:54 p.m. 

Director Boyd reported the Board has just come out of Closed Session, 
and no action had been taken. 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 
Directors Present: 
Directors Absent: 
Staff Present: 

Others Present: 

Slater-Carter, Harvey, Boyd, Wilson and Huber 
None 
General Manager, Clemens Heldmaier, 
District Clerk, Judy Gromm 
District Counsel, Dave Schricker 

PRESIDENT'S STATEMENT-Director Boyd reported we just ended the water 
year for 2015. Please look at the rain gauge on our website. This year we had 
24.69 inches of rain compared to 2014 at 17.62 inches of rain. This is pretty good 
for being in a drought. What makes this so good is our community is extraordinarily 
good in conserving water and helping us to protect our system. Please continue to 
be water wise. 

Director Boyd further reported we have been working with our neighbors to the 
south on trying to get recycled water happening at the Sewer Authority Mid
Coastside. We have recently put out an RFP for engineering services to get the 
design and engineering underway. We did have a meeting last Monday and the 
General Manager of Coastside County Water District express concern the project 
may not be feasible. A couple of reasons are the quality of water coming out of the 
plant and weather it will be cost effective to treat it enough to where the golf course 

MWSD Minutes 
1st October, 2015 

1 



will be able to use it. The issue with the water is we have ion loading in the water 
which is basically salt in the water. The salt is very expensive and very hard to 
treat out of waste water. We have been trying to find out what is causing it. One of 
the things we have been investigating is whether or not this is coming from water 
softeners from wells on the Coastside. If you have a well, it makes sense you have 
a water softener, but both CCWD and Montara are both able to sell water hook 
ups. I would like to say to well owners, if you would like to help yourself and help 
us in this effort to do recycled water, one thing that may help is to come in and talk 
to the General Manager regarding transitioning to a hook up with the Montara 
Water and Sanitary District System. There all sorts of maintenance activities for 
well owners. Sometimes expensive failed parts. So, just keep this in mind. This 
could be one of the ways we can all stick together and solve the problem. We 
have been at this for quite some time and I am confident we can do this, it is cost 
effective and could bolster the strength of our community. We have been dedicated 
to this project for 10 years and want to see this through. 

ORAL COMMENTS -

Chris Porter, General Manager of Recology reported they were just notified that 
there was going to be a slurry seal done on different streets in Montara tomorrow 
and Monday. She will notify Director Boyd regarding what streets this will effect 
garbage collection and he in turn will be posting it in Nextdoor Montara. Mrs. Porter 
is requesting all cans be out by 6:00 am for early collection. 

Chris Porter further reported North Coast County Water District is giving barrels to 
their customers to catch the rainwater. 

Director Slater-Carter wanted to wish everyone a Happy New Year, because as 
Director Boyd noted, this is the beginning of the new water year. And, it started out 
with an inch of rain today. Customers can watch the rainfall in Montara if you go to 
our website and click on our rain gauge. 

Director Harvey noted, we will benefit from recycled water in that SAM is 
compensated for the water it produces and we are part of SAM. 

PUBLIC HEARING -None 

CONSENT AGENDA -

1. Approve Minutes for Meeting of September 2, 2015 
2. Approve Financial Statements for August 2015. 
3. Approve Warrants for October 2015. 
4. SAM Flow Report for August 2015. 
5. Monthly Review of Current Investment Portfolio. 
6. Connection Permit Applications Received. 
7. Monthly Water Production Report for August 2015. 
8. Rain Report 
9. Solar Energy Report. 

MWSD Minutes 
1st October, 2015 

2 



Director Slater-Carter requested to pull the minutes of September 2, 2015 
Finance Committee. 

Director Harvey moved to approve the Consent Agenda items 2 - 9. 
Director Slater-Carter seconded the motion. 

All Directors were in favor and the motion passed 5 - 0. 

Director Slater-Carter requested to have attachments as mentioned in the 
minutes as being attached, to be added in with the packet from now on. 
Director Slater-Carter noted that way when they are posted on line, the 
community can review them as well. 

Director Slater Carter moved to approve the minutes for September 2, 2015, 
with attachments added. Director Harvey seconded the motion. 

All Directors were in favor and the motion passed 5 - 0. 

At this time Director Boyd moved Old Business 1 to after New Business 1, 2 
and 3. 

OLD BUSINESS -

1. Review and Possible Action Concerning PARS Investment 
Strategy. 

General Manager Heldmaier reported at the July 16 meeting the District 
adopted a pension program through the Public Agency Retirement system 
(PARS). The benefit parameters include a Defined Benefit Plan for all full
time employees based on 2% @ 62 full formula. The plan is in accordance 
with the Public Employee Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) of 2013 which 
severely limits the pension benefits that public agencies can adopt for post 
PEPRA plans and requires active management and account reporting of 
defined benefit plans. Government Accounting Standard Principles require 
an annual audit of the plan and plan performance. Benefit service is based 
on District years of service credit earned after July 1, 2015. Vesting service 
is 5 years of district service. Employee contribution of 50% is required. Final 
average compensation is the average of the highest thirty-six (36) months of 
compensation (not to exceed amounts prescribed by CA Govt. code Section 
7522.1 O©). No disability benefit under this plan. 

The Finance Committee was charged with the task of bringing three 
different financing options for selection by the full board. The committee met 
on July 29, August 5, August 24, and September 2. At the time of 
preparation of this staff report the finance committee did not agree on a joint 
recommendation. At the August 6 meeting the Board agreed to choose a 

MWSD Minutes 
1st October, 2015 

3 



default HighMark investment strategy in case the Finance Committee 
cannot agree. 

To address concerns raised, the board authorized the general manager to 
engage with Bartle Wells on a review of the PARS plan and the preliminary 
actuarial report. The draft Memorandum from Bartle Wells has been 
received and been forwarded to the Finance Committee for further input. 

Director Slater-Carter reported she had gone to the CSDA Conference last 
week and was able to gather a lot of information. Director Slater-Carter 
passed out and referred to informational sheets to show what the markets 
have done since June. This sheet showed that the District had not lost 
anything by doing it's due diligence and fiduciary duty. 

Director Slater-Carter reported first, she still does not see the prospectus. 
Reading from a handout from beginnersinvest.about.com "Mutual fund 
companies are required by law to provide you with a prospectus". Director 
Slater-Carter talked with Dennis Yu at the CSDA Conference and was told 
we had been provided the prospectuses. Director Slater-Carter has not 
seen them. Director Slater-Carter went on line and found something 
called The Summary Prospectus. A normal prospectus is a really long and 
hard document to read. Then Director Slater went to SEC and got a sample 
of a summary prospectus. Director Slater-Carter then went to Guinness 
Atkinson and looked at the Alternative Energy Fund and here is a sample of 
their prospectus. Director Slater-Carter is bringing this to attention because 
she has yet to see the prospectuses for any of the funds High Mark 
recommends. Strongly we have been recommended to read the prospectus. 
We are not doing our due diligence and our fiduciary duty to adopt or accept 
anything. What we see here are sales documents, they are not 
prospectuses. All handouts Director Slater-Carter supplied will be attached 
to the minutes. 

Secondly, Director Slater-Carter reported while at the CSDA Conference 
she met Mike Goulger from Forester Financial Services out of San Diego. 
Director Slater-Carter has been speaking to him and sent him the actuarial 
report. Mr. Goulger requested two weeks to review things and come back 
with a lower cost proposal than PARS is offering and also noting instead of 
using HighMark, you can use Schwab or Vanguard. Mr. Goulger reported 
the .8% is expensive for a passively managed fund. If you are getting up 
around 1 % you should be getting an actively managed fund. Mr. Goulger 
thought their projected returns are high. Forester Financial Services usually 
use about a 5.5% to do their calculations. Mr. Goulger said he would be 
willing to work with us over the next two weeks. Director Slater-Carter would 
like to have Director Huber, General Manager Heldmaier and herself work 
with Mr. Goulger and get some numbers for comparison so we have some 
real prospectuses. We have not done our due diligence if we are not see 
what the SEC mandates what we look at. They mandate the companies 

MWSD Minutes 
1st October, 2015 

4 



need to make this information available to us. If we do not look at this 
information we are not doing the job the district has entrusted us with. 
I was looking at the questions I had sent out and most of those have not 
been answered. I would like to send those out to Mr. Goulger to see what 
his company can do to answer them so we are starting out on a correct 
path. Director Slater-Carter noted the way other districts have gotten 
themselves in trouble has been they have gone to discount rates that are 
too high and they have put too little money in and people start retiring and 
taking money out of it and that is where the problems start compounding. 

Director Slater-Carter is requesting two weeks and asking Director Huber 
and General Manager Heldmaier to be available to work with her on this and 
find out if we can save money and make the plan more secure. 

Director Huber reported we had already established in the beginning that 
these amounts of money in the beginning do not amount to a whole lot of 
money but over time, that is when they really start to escalate. Director 
Huber noted the Board had already been down this path and we have 
already decided part of our efforts are going to be each and every year 
manage this so that going to another strategy in the second or third year 
makes a lot of sense to me, but to basically redo this at this time I see no 
justification in it. Secondly, Director Huber will not be around, he will be on 
vacation. 

Director Slater-Carter suggested to designate an alternate. Director Huber 
was not agreeable to this. 

Director Harvey noted this is an important issue for the District and 
employees. The Board voted for this defined benefit plan and we want to 
make sure that we do the very best for the employees, District and rate 
payers. Director Harvey believes it is reasonable to give Director Slater
Carter the two weeks and look at her suggestions before we decide. I know 
this is a 3 year contract, but we will be moving in that direction. We need to 
make the right decision. People are saying that I am one of the people that 
instigated this program along with Director Wilson. We have a plan set up to 
go but in the mean time we can satisfy due diligence and spend time to 
check this out. I support Director Slater-Carters suggestion to check this out 
and make sure we are making the right decision. A few more weeks to 
make sure we have the right costs, protection for the employees is a good 
and necessary idea. I think this would bring us all together and then we can 
go forward. If this is a better plan, we can go with it, if it is not, we go with 
what we have set up now. This extra two weeks would cement the District 
together and we would be doing our full due diligence and wait a few more 
weeks. Director Harvey recommends we follow this path. 

Director Wilson is torn on this one. He has no issues on doing due diligence, 
and the area that he is torn on is the history of this discussion which has 
been very energetic. For Director Wilson to agree on the two week 

MWSD Minutes 
1st October, 2015 

5 



extension it would have to be on a couple assumptions. 1. The next time we 
meet, we make a decision. So in 14 days we have the best information 
going forward and we vote. I am intrigued by having information coming and 
see no down side with this. I just do not want to delay this again. The 
gentleman said he could do this in two weeks, so within two weeks would be 
the next time we would vote on this. I think what I would recommend is get 
the information to Bill or myself with you and look at the very specific 
information regarding what the cost differences are with the idea in two 
weeks we make a decision. 

Director Huber questioned if Forester Financial would assume the role of 
trust administrator to replace PARS? Director Slater-Carter reported yes 
they would. 
Director Huber then questioned if they would also be assuming the role of 
investment manager. Director Slater-Carter reported yes they would. 
Director Huber then questioned if they have a proven track record. Director 
Slater-Carter reported yes, they have a proven track record. 

Director Wilson noted the Board would have to check into these questions 
as part of doing their due diligence along with costs. 

Director Slater-Carter suggested they may have a more accurate actuarial 
instead of one that is fatally flawed. Director Huber suggested Director 
Slater-Carter is making an assertion that he may not agree with. Director 
Slater-Carter noted, she is not asking him to agree with it. Director Slater
Carter then reported they would run an actuarial analysis from a separate 
actuarial firm. 

Director Boyd is ready to move forward. The first few years are small 
amounts of money in terms of what is actually in the fund. PARS and 
HighMark have been doing this for hundreds of agencies in the State. I have 
spent hours researching in the state who has a problem with PARS and how 
their investments are being managed and I have found nothing. I think we 
are dragging this out. The point is for us to support our employees in a way 
that is necessary to have people stay with us for a time because a short 
term is no good for any one, rate payers or staff. The employees have said 
time and again they would find helpful in staying at a place they loved, 
sounds like a really good thing to do. I think it is time to get this done. I fully 
intend in two weeks to vote unless there is something clear and compelling, 
I know which way our current Board chosen path is. While there is little 
money in the fund, if we are not satisfied, we can change course. We will 
not turn a blind eye to this. Director Boyd further noted this Board has spent 
money on a lot of things we were not certain on. We voted on a 19 million 
dollar bond based on spread sheets members of this Board put together, 
most of which were projections. There were no guarantees. We had 
concerned people come to us then. We were very careful. I think this 
another one of those and I think this far more modest with the 19 million 
dollar bond. I have said my piece. Director Boyd requested to see a very 

MWSD Minutes 
1st October, 2015 

6 



clear prospectus for the funds we are talking about. If HighMark can't 
provide this I will be shocked. I just want to see it. 

Director Wilson asked if we have a prospectus. General Manager Held maier 
answered yes. 

Director Slater-Carter reported she had been asking for this for a month. 

Director Wilson requested a scanned copy sent to all Board members. 
General Manager Heldmaier explained this was a huge scan. The document 
is about 200 pages. Director Boyd requested the 5 - 10 page summary of 
the fund they are looking at. Director Wilson liked Director Boyd's 
suggestion. If anyone is interested, we can supply the full document at the 
District office. 

Director Boyd asked Director Slater-Carter what the Board can _expect to 
see from the investment firm she is talking with. Director Slater_-Carter 
reported a new actuarial, but we will have to send him the same data that 
was sent to Bartel. Director Boyd reported he is not interested in paying 
anyone to try to win business. 

Director Wilson is agreeable to look at the material with Director Slater
Carter, he further suggested to have the material here no later than the end 
of next week. Director Wilson requested the prospectus summary within the 
next two days, then we will need to move on by the next meeting. 

Director Slater-Carter requested staff to note that all we have done by 
delaying this is not to have lost money and paid fees. 

Director Boyd noted we did not embark on this delay in order to time the 
market. 

Director Slater-Carter does not believe in that either, but my questions have 
still to be answered! We still have not seen the prospectus and now we are 
going to see it after asking for it for 3 months to be fair. 

General Manager Heldmaier responded with he had said this hundreds of 
times that Director Slater-Carter had asked for more than this. You asked 
for much, much more than just the prospectus. You asked for so much more 
that it is impossible for this staff here to put it all together. You have asked 
for it specifically in one packet. This is the reason you have not received it. 
General Manager Heldmaier would appreciate a little more respect with staff 
in general from you please. 

Director Slater-Carter is not dismissing staff, but these are questions that 
could have been answered by HighMark. After I got my hands slapped 
trying to do my own research, I stopped. I certainly did not want to ruffle any 
feathers. So, I handed my questions to you. If because you are working two 

MWSD Minutes 
1st October, 2015 

7 



full time jobs and can't get them done, that is not my fiduciary problem. I 
have a fiduciary interest in this district just as you do. Director Slater-Carter 
asked to have the following on record: 
I think we need to have an employment attorney who understands these 
kinds of things. We need the attorney look at the fact of giving raises. I think 
we need to look at any potential conflicts of interest here. I believe these are 
serious issues. Since we are going to go ahead in two weeks, we probably 
do not have time to do this. I am worried about this District and I am worried 
about some of the promises that have been made as a result of this plan. 

Director Boyd asked District Counsel Schricker if he had the opportunity to 
consider the question raised about giving raises in anticipation of deductions 
for a plan like this. Do you have any concerns about this? Director Boyd 
noted Director Slater-Carter has raised a question about whether or not 
there is issue about providing raises to employees in anticipation of the 
plan. District Counsel Schricker reported he has had time to research this 
issue and found that raises are anticipated in reaction to the changes to the 
Public Pension Act a couple years ago. A number of agencies have done 
just that. Because they are raises, they are not necessary contributions to 
the fund on behalf of the District. 

Director Boyd questioned if District Counsel Schricker saw any issues 
raised by any districts that have this kind of plan. Mr. Schricker reported the 
agencies have not raised any issues in doing this because of the limitations 
imposed on them. 

Director Huber shares Director Slater-Carters goal of constantly looking at 
this to make sure we are doing the right thing. But I also see that there is a 
time issue here and going with PARS and HighMark may not be in our long 
term best interest, but I do think the short term financial sensitivity is pretty 
minimal. The problem I have with Forester is in two weeks, how can the 
Board in two weeks do this properly and put this to bed? It took us a long 
time to get to where we are today. In all the times I did research, I never 
once saw anything about Foresters. If there was a really compelling reason 
for this I could see doing this, but going in the first 3 years with PARS, even 
if they are not as sufficient as they could be the dollar amount is not that 
great in the beginning. With HighMark, we are limited to the first year with 
them. I do think we should look into Forrester after we get this thing going. 

Director Boyd suggested to see what Foresters can do in a few days and if it 
is compelling it's compelling if not, we move on. 

Director Harvey would like to have a unified and happy Board. I think this is 
something that is a good idea. We are never going to be 100% sure, but 
looking into this will help us to be unified and I think this is important in 
moving forward. 

MWSD Minutes 
1st October, 2015 

8 



Director Huber needed clarification in that the Board is going to wait 2 
weeks before we address the Bartel presentation we have in front of us. 
Director Boyd answered yes and in two weeks we have the time to look over 
the material we have tonight and read over anything Forester sends our 
way. 

Director Wilson is requesting that all information is given to Director Slater
Carter by Friday and from that Director Slater-Carter and myself can look 
over the material and come up hopefully with what we feel has the criteria 
that has been set today. From there, Kathryn and I will generate that 
material to Clemens and the rest of the Board. That material will be worked 
on for a final decision at the Board meeting. 

Director Slater-Carter noted specifically, this Board has asked us to look at 
Vanguard and Schwab as an option. Forester Financial said they could work 
with either. 

Director Wilson suggested if Forester can't meet the criteria at this point, 
that doesn't mean we won't reconsider them sometime down the road. 

Director Huber requested the General Manager to contact Mr. Rungis to see 
if he has had any exposure to Forester. 

NEW BUSINESS-

1. Review and Possible Action Concerning Changes to Electronic 
Recycling Services. 

General Manager Heldmaier reported the recycling services for electronic 
devices at the recycling events in MWSD are provided by Strawflower 
Electronics. The business follows permitting and reporting requirements 
needed to dispose of e-waste. 

The District received a letter from Strawflower electronics indicating that 
costs to provide the service have increased while profits decreased at the 
same time. Therefore a $200 per event fee would be required to further 
support the services currently provided. 

After discussion with Recology of the Coast, Chris Porter indicated that the 
fee will be paid by Recology. Therefore, there will be no direct fiscal impact 
to the District. 

The Board thanked Ben Tyson of Strawflower Electronics and Chris Porter 
of Recology of the Coastside for their support and this service they are 
providing for our community. 

MWSD Minutes 
1st October, 2015 

9 



2. Review and Possible Action Concerning Prop 218 Notice to 
Increase 2016 Solid Waste Disposal Fees. 

General Manager Heldmaier reported in 2013 the District negotiated a 
contract with increased services, the same weekly pickup of refuse and 
recycling and biweekly green waste service. Service now also includes 
standardized containers and single stream recycling. 

The franchise agreement with Recology of the Coast requires the District to 
annually increase the solid waste disposal rates by January 1 in accordance 
with an agreed upon formula. Pursuant to Article 6, Section 6.02 A of the 
October 1, 2013 franchise agreement Recology of the Coast provided the 
attached calculations required for the rate increase effective January 1, 
2016. 

After the implementation of the new agreement this is the first year in which 
a cost based increase will be implemented. The formula results in a 47.8% 
rate increase with the residential rates adjusted. 

Notices will be mailed to all 1728 property owners and customers in 
Montara and M9oss Beach notifying them about the planned rate increase 
for January 1. 

A Public Hearing at which all protests will be formally counted to determine 
whether or not the proposed rate limits should be approved in accordance 
with Prop 218 is scheduled for December 3, 2015. 

Director Wilson requested a brief history of operating with a loss and how it 
brought Recology to this rate increase. 

Chris Porter, General Manager of Recology of the Coastside reported in the 
last 5 years Recology has been working with a loss and this past year we 
were working with a 33% loss. We labored over this contract for over a year 
with the MWSD Recycling/Refuse Committee as well as the MWSD Finance 
Committee. There is an 11 page addendum to the contract on how the rates 
will be set and the formula was written by the District. This year, it is a cost 
basis. As you have received our Financial Statements on a yearly basis, you 
have seen how we have lost money every year. 

Director Wilson asked what was the agreed upon rate of return on the 
contract. Chris Porter reported it was no more than 10%, but if everything 
stayed the same, the return would be 8%. But most likely we will see 
changes to the service and it is going to be around 4%. 

Director Wilson looked at the contract and spread sheet. All in all it is a fairly 
complicated calculation. Who did this calculation? Chris Porter reported Mr. 
Chris Billington, Recology's Controller did the calculations following the 
formula and he is here tonight. 

MWSD Minutes 
1st October, 2015 

10 



Director Huber asked how the Board would know that all the allocations and 
inputs are correct. This looks is a very complicated structure where you are 
taking all your costs and allocating some towards Pacifica, some towards 
us, some towards El Granada. Then there is also questions about what 
things are included in the costs. We basically do not have any verification 
that those have been correctly. 

Chris Porter reported to begin with, when this franchise agreement was 
written it took over 1 year. There was such extensive research done that I 
was bringing monthly disposal bills and we were calculating exactly what 
percentage came from Montara vs what came from El Granada. Those 
calculations are extremely accurate. We know how many routes are in 
Montara, we know how many men work in Montara. 

Director Slater-Carter noted the committee went over all of that, and worked 
very closely with Recology on this agreement. 

Director Boyd noted when Recology came in, our committee had sat down 
and examined the books and the process in detail with these folks. Director 
Slater-Carter and Director Ptacek did a tremendous amount of work and 
actually gave us a better understanding of what we were working with. Chris 
Porter knows the level of scrutiny we are capable of. 

Director Huber is not disputing any of the hard work done on this, but he is 
looking at this with respect of his fiduciary responsibility. He is looking at a 
set of numbers and asking how we can verify them. If we are going to do 
proper due diligence on this we need to have an independent review of the 
numbers and calculations to validate the fact that according to the contract 
on that cost basis that a 47 -48% increase is justified. It doesn't say 
anything on.the contract as to how the numbers are validated to be 
accurate. 

Director Slater-Carter suggested to make Recology's audits available to the 
Board. Chris Porter reported the district receives a copy of our yearly audits. 

Director Boyd suggested the Board have some time to see the last audit 
and if there is anything there that is a concern, we need to raise the issue. 
If we do not see anything that raises questions, we are on track for going 
through the normal legal process. 

Director Wilson questioned what he would see in the audit. 
Chris Porter responded it would be just for Montara. 

Director Wilson questioned what are the costs based on? 

Chris Billington, Controller for Recology of the Coastside south bay region, 
explained the way the contract is set up is that it was indexed based last 

MWSD Minutes 
1st October, 2015 

11 



year. This year it is cost based. Next two years it will be indexed based. The 
cost based is the true up of the actual cost. These are legitimate questions 
to be asking, but what I think what you will find is to look up the history of 
operating expenses you will see that they are ve_ry consistent unless we 
open up an new section in Montara that we have a thousand new homes. 

Director Huber explained the nature of his question really had nothing to do 
with what you presented. It seems to me at bare minimum our accountant 
should look at this for its accuracy. Also Mr. Medina should look to making 
sure all costs noted should be there. If we are going to do proper due 
diligence on this, we need to do an independent verification on that. This 
should be done by a person who has the background and expertise to do 
so. 

Director Boyd suggested the Solid Waste Committee could review this. 
Director Boyd likes the idea of Mr. Medina looking over the audit, in addition 
to the documents before us. 

Director Wilson suggested to have Peter Medina look over this document 
with a committee designated by the Board. In the meantime, start the 
process of the 218 with the bottom line of 47.8%, which could be lower than 
that after auditing the numbers. 

Chris Porter and Chris Billington will make themselves available to the 
designated committee and Peter Medina. 

Director Slater-Carter would like to see us do a newsletter. We have several 
newsworthy events. Chris has always participated in our expenses so I 
believe this is a good time to reach out and explain why the increase. Also, 
give suggestions on how to reduce the increase, for example going to a 
smaller size can, encouraging people to do more recycling. Another thing 
we need to put in the MWSD newsletter is a small grid with special drop off 
days. 

Chris Porter reported Recology is just about ready to send out their yearly 
brochure. We will make sure we will mention in the front how to minimize 
the increase. We also give information on special drop off days and items 
you can recycle and where. 

Chris Porter noted, whenever there is an increase and we get protest 
letters, I will personally call each resident and address each concern and 
work things out with them. Chris reported she has always been able to work 
things out with any resident that has come to the Board meetings as well. 
Chris sees this going the same way. 

Director Wilson moved to authorize the General Manager to distribute the 
Prop 218 notice to all property owners in the District and have a group 

MWSD Minutes 
151 October, 2015 

12 



designated by the Board along with Peter Medina look over the document 
and verify the increase. Director Huber seconded the motion. 

All Directors were in favor and the motion passed unanimously. 

3. Review and Possible Action Concerning Application to lAFCo for 
Extra Jurisdictional Service for MWSD to Provide Water Service to Big 
Wave. 

General Manager Heldmaier reported on May 19, 2015, the San Mateo 
County Board of Supervisors certified an Addendum to the certified Draft 
Environmental Impact Report and Final Environmental Impact Report for the 
"North Parcel Alternative" (NPA" of the Big Wave development comprised of 
a wellness center for developmentally disabled adults and an associated 
business park. The NPA is a scaled-down version of an earlier proposal that 
had been approved ty the Board of Supervisors in 2011. However, a 
number of lawsuits were filed contesting that approval, as a result of which 
and following g extensive negotiations, the developer proposed the NPA. 
The County's approval of the NPA is conditioned on the provision of water 
service to the development by the Montara Water and Sanitary District 
(MWSD). 

The Big Wave development is located outside MWSD's boundaries. In order 
to provide water service to the development it is necessary to amend 
MWSD's Sphere of Influence and to obtain authorization for extra 
jurisdictional service from the San Mateo County Local Agency Formation 
commission (LAFCO). The Board of Supervisors' approval to the NPA is 
conditioned upon LAFCo's approvals in that regard. 

Director Slater-Carter noted the MWSD Board passed a resolution many 
years ago before we had new water supply for us to serve Big Wave. It is 
nice to see this on the agenda. 

Director Slater-Carter moved to adopt a Resolution of Application of the 
Montara Water and Sanitary District Requesting a Sphere of Influence 
Amendment of the Montara Water and Sanitary District and Coastside 
County Water District and Local Agency Formation Commission Approval 
for Extension of Services Outside Jurisdictional Boundaries to the Big Wave 
LLP North Parcel Alternative Pursuant to Government Code Section 56133. 
Director Harvey seconded the motion. 

Director Boyd noted there had been a lot of planning and a lot of preparation 
for this and he has been looking forward to this. 

A Roll Call Vote was called for, all Directors were in favor and the motion 
passed unanimously 5- 0. 

MWSD Minutes 
· 1st October, 2015 

13 



Jeff Peck thanked the Board for working with this. He has appreciated what 
has been done and thanked the Board for doing such a great job. 
Additionally, Mr. Peck reported they had an idea regarding recycling water 
and would like to discuss this with the Board. Director Boyd is very happy to 
work with him on this item. 

4. Review and Possible Action concerning Clarification of the Role of 
Board Members, Communication with other Board Members and the 
Public. 

General Manager Heldmaier reported at the request of Director Harvey this 
item has been placed on the agenda to allow for a discussion and receipt of 
information from legal counsel about the Role of Board Members in Special 
Districts, how board Members should communicate with 9other Board 
Members and the public in accordance with Brown Act laws. 

District Counsel Schricker emphasized this was just a sample in a short 
form which is similar to one that is in effect in a couple of agencies that he is 
aware of. The intention is to see if this would be helpful if there was a strain 
or question. This deals more with protocol and does not necessarily have a 
legal effect, but as a manner of conducting business. Unfortunately, and not 
in this District or even in this County, there are some very unfortunate 
circumstances on elected boards when usually one Board member 
conducts themselves in a way that hurts themselves and their districts. I do 
not see this here, but I think this was put on the agenda because there has 
been some questions about communication and the way business is 
conducted. There is a delicate balance between what is a function of a 
board member and his or her relation to staff. Generally if there are 
questions of fact to be determined, then it is entirely appropriate to request 
information from staff. Where there is an attempt to influence staff that can 
cause some problems. Listening to the concerns tonight about the volume 
of requests, there again there needs to be a mutual understanding focusing 
on just what is the fact you are looking for. Not necessarily conclusions, but 
what information on the documents you want to see. For an example, we 
had members of the public who wanted to see documents that had been 
submitted by PARS to the District. They have not been submitted to the 
Board, I don't see any reason they can't be submitted to the Board, but the 
only problem with this is that it is misunderstood and they start to have a life 
of their own. Technically and legally they are draft documents that have not 
been approved or seen by the Board. So from our point in advising you it's 
very difficult to give one Board member documents and not give it to other 
Board members. This can create friction between Board Members that we 
do not intend for. 

Director Wilson noted his experience with this Board that when one Board 
member gets information, all Board members get the information. 

Mr. Schricker suggested to set policy on this. 

MWSD Minutes 
1st October, 2015 

14 



Director Harvey reported he had asked to have this item placed on the 
agenda. Director Harvey noted if one Board member askes for something, 
all Board members should receive the same information. This is what 
happens at SAM and I think this should be a policy at MWSD. Furthermore 
at SAM, if someone makes a comment to the General Manager or has a 
question, this is shared between all Board members. I would not be able to 
have a personal conversation with Clemens and ask him questions or push 
influence, he should be able to share this with everyone amongst the Board. 
If we could agree to these two items that would be great. The reason 
Director Harvey asked to have this item placed on the agenda is because 
he is confused. Director Harvey speaking for himself, doesn't want to 
interfere with Clemens negotiations or doing his duties. If he is talking to an 
attorney on a professional level, I do not want to bud in and ask questions 
too. I do not want to interfere with what he is doing or his business. If it is 
something else, without budding in, I want to make sure I have the right to 
call people such as the County or CCWD to ask questions to. Can I initiate 
conversations, can I get information without interfering with what he is 
presently doing? If I needed to ask Dave Schricker a question, I would need 
to go through Clemens. Does this make sense? Director Harvey directed his 
questions to Mr. Schricker. 

District Counsel Schricker explained there were different kinds of questions. 
If Director Harvey is concerned about conflict of interest or a Brown Act 
issue, he can contact Mr. Schricker. Individually, and not with this Board, I 
have had an elected official ask me for personal advise and I have to ask 
them to contact their own attorney. In some cases if I receive a call or email 
from a Board member on a legal issue, I will respond and include all other 
Board members. 

Director Boyd noted we have touched on this topic every few years and 
each time we have talked about making a policy's. This is normal, we get 
involved in things and every now and again we need a course correct and 
this is fine. 

Director Huber recommending electronic distribution. 

Director Wilson noted it is important to funnel our communication through 
the General Manager. That will protect us and will also protect the 
emplo~ees from any perceived relationship issues. 

District Counsel Schricker was asked to explain the difference between 
contacting legal counsel and or the accountant. Is there a difference for a 
Board member in calling you or a vendor of the district? Mr. Schricker 
explained the problem with a Board Member contacting a vendor is in that 
the administration of the vendor's agreement is the responsibility of the 
General Manager. If the General Manager doesn't know about that, that 
could be construed or could actually be an interference of the administration 

MWSD Minutes 
1st October, 2015 

15 



of the contract. The recommended approach would be to contact the 
General Manager if you have any questions about the performance of the 
vendor. Although the Board approves of the agreement, the General 
Manager has the authority in the administration of the agreement. The same 
thing applies to an employee. The recommendation is for any Board 
members to contact the General Manager with concerns regarding any 
employees. 

District Counsel Schricker further noted it is easy to slip up on occasion 
particularly when you are passionate on an issue, but it is his opinion that 
this Board is well informed on the Brown Act. 

REPORTS 
1. Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside Meetings (Harvey) - Director Harvey 
reported SAM is still negotiating for a new General Manager. We are hopefully 
in final negotiations. Director Harvey reported in closed session the Board gave 
direction to staff to ask for bids for the recycling project for just SAM's roll in the 
project. We received two bids and now will have a meeting regarding questions 
that came up during the process of going over the bidding process. Director 
Boyd reported District Counsel Copeland has announced his retirement for the 
end of this year. He has been a very steady voice for the last 40 years. We will 
miss him and have appreciated his service. 
2. MidCoast Community Council Meeting (Slater-Carter) - None 
3. CSDA Report (Slater-Carter)- Director Slater-Carter reported there would 
be a meeting on October 271h. Director Slater-Carter reported she had attended 
the CSDA Conference and found it to be very informative and very well 
attended. CSDA is doing a really good job doing more for special districts. 
There were a lot of good workshops. There was an interesting discussion 
regarding dealing with disruptive public. We do have the ability to shorten the 
time, but rude behavior is freedom of speech and there is little we can do about 
it. The next conference will be in San Diego. 
4. CCWD, NCCWD Committee Report - (Harvey, Huber) - None 
5. Attorney's Report (Schricker) - None 
6. Directors Report - Director Huber reported the General Manager and he 
had attended a Sea Level Rise Vulnerability Study meeting and wanted to 
report on this. There were two meetings. The County sees this an important 
issue to the economic health of the County considering the amount of 
businesses that are riming the bay. We did identify some of the areas within our 
District that are vulnerable. Basically was the sewer facilities. 
General Manager Heldmaier reported that there had been one more meeting 
he attended. Next Wednesday will be a follow up meeting SAM staff will be 
attending and represent the sewer facilities. · 
Director Huber noted he had attended a meeting that was basically Santa Clara 
focused. They are expecting a 36 inch sea level rise that will cause them to put 
up a 13 to 15 foot wall around some of the areas in Santa Clara. 
7. General Manager's Report (Held maier) - None 

MWSD Minutes 
1st October, 2015 

16 



ATTACHMENT D 

MAXIMUM RATES 

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1-2016 

RESIDENTIAL 

1. Weekly collection, single container placed in front of premises, wet and dry 

garbage ("first can service") in wheeled carts: 

a. Container limits:volume - 20 gals. (3/10 cu yd),weight 40 lbs, per mo charge 

b. Container limits:volume - 32 gals (1/4 cu yd), weight 60 lbs, per mo charge 

c. Container limits: volume - 64 gals (1/2 cu yd), weight 100 lbs, per mo charge 

2. Special Services (charges added to above, basic changes): 

a. Container placed at side or rear of dwelling - per container 

b. Container not placed at specified collection point and return call required

per container 

c. Extra 30 gallon bag with collection (excludes 20 gallon cart service), per bag 

d. Special collections combined with regular service, including collections for 

brush, yard clippings, boxes, ect 

3. Bulky goods dropoff service four times a year within Montara city limits 

including greenwaste and motor oil in Recology provided bottles only 

4. Weekly commingled recyclable materials collection (64 gallon wheeled cart) 

5. Every other week greenwaste (yard trimmings, ect.) collection, limited to four 

(4) thirty gallon containers - customers own containers 

6. Bulky goods curbside collection service, limited to four (4) times a year 

One item up to 200 lbs or 5-30 gallon bags 

7. Dropoff at Recycling yard in Pacifica of motor oil, latex paint, unpainted lumber, 

large pieces of metal, styrofoam, e-waste, large white goods, furniture, mattresses, 

large amounts of recyclable materials 

8. Christmas trees free of charge thru January 31st of each year 

a. After January 31st charge is $20 per tree for removal 

MULTIFAMILY, COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL SERVICE 

1. Service to restaurants, hotels, cafes, apartment houses, stores and similar 

places of business, factories, schools and institutions, wet and dry garbage

container limits: volume - 30 gal. cans (1/4 cu. Yd), weight - 75 lbs 

a. Regular collections: 

1/1/2015 

$16.15 
$19.86 
$65.25 

$4.96 
$10.12 

1/1/2016 

$23.87 
$29.35 
$96.44 

$7.33 
$14.95 

$5.36 $7.92 
estimate estimate 

inc. w/service inc. w/service 

inc. w/service inc. w/service 

inc. w/service inc. w/service 

inc. w/service inc. w/service 

inc. w/service inc. w/service 

inc. w/service inc. w/service 

$20.00 $20.00 



ATTACHMENT D 

MAXIMUM RATES 

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1-2016 

1-64 gallon collection once per week 

1-96 gallon collection once per week 

b. Additional 64 or 96 gallon commercial carts picked up more than once a week 

will be original charge times the number of pickups 

2. Commercial Container Rental: 

a. 1 cubic yard box - per mo 

b. 2 cubic yard box - per mo 

3. Commercial Container Collections: 

a. 1 cubic yard box - per collection 

b. 2 cubic yard box - per collection 

4. Compacted Commercial Container Service: 

a. 1 cubic yard box - per collection 

b. 2 cubic yard box - per collection 

5. Recyclable material collection up to five times a week 

DEBRIS BOX SERVICE 

7, 14, 20 and 30 yard containers 

a. Container rental and delivery and pickup charge 

b. $80 per ton confirmed by disposal site weight slip 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

1. Financial hardship rate for weekly collection for single container placed in front of 

·bage 30 gallon can (PGE CARE PROGRAM) 15% reduction 

1/1/2015 

$78.36 
$128.23 

$35.65 
$46.22 

$30.65 
$60.99 

$58.80 
$118.78 

1/1/2016 

$115.81 
$189.52 

WILL VARY BY SIZE 

$52.69 
$68.31 

$44.52 
$88.58 

$86.90 
$175.55 

INC. W/SERVICE INC. W/SERVICE 

$290.00 
$67.00 

$16.92 

$350.00 
$80.00 

$25.00 



J:HgL.nan::- - rnmer-rm::nu1y rormac IIU(J:/ I Ulgl;lli:11ll:i .llli:111\Cl Wi:1ll;Jl .\;UIIU JJI JIIU pl UIL ,i:11:i JJ I IIUl:iClUllt5~"' 1 .. , 

l of l 

~ o 
mcharts 

To print this page, select File/Print from your browser's menu 

Back lo Page 

DJ IA Dow Jones lndustrl:il Average (INDEX) Delayed quoto data 

Last: Change: Open: High: Low: 

!:':J-12.69 . 1J_,~~B.,87 ..••. 16,073.62 

Print Color Version 

1011/2015 04:35 PM 

Volume: 
_111,416,980 .. 16,272.01 

Percent Change: 

-0.08% 

• 16,278.62 

Yield: 

n/a 
PIE Ratio: 
n/a 

52 Week Range: 

15,~7~.3_3 to 18,3_51:36 

11).· ,l · . 

18,500 

18,000 

17,000 

16,500 

15,500 

'---''--...!..--' '---'--...!..- --'---__... _ _ ..,_ ____ _.1 15,000 

'l)Bli;Charts.com 

~--j:1tt!d±--.J-EH--~1=i ~ 
Feb. N.ar Apr J1ay Jun Ju I Aug Sep 

" 6 

= 
Nov Dec 

Company Data 

Company ~~111e:_ 
Dow Jones Industry: 

Exchan~e: 

Shares Outstanding: ... . . ..... 

M.'.'~~:t ~'.'P: 
Short Interest: 

52-Week EPS: 

~~:~~ek_ Hig_h: 

52-Week Low: 

P/E Ratio: 

Yield: 

Averag__e .~~ic_e: .. 

J\v~r~9.eyo1ume: . 

IS 

. Do:"J ~n.es ~~dust~~I A~ia~g.:' 

Not Available 

OJI 

n/a 

n/a 

-~~ch~-~g_e_ pr_~~i_d~~ _n_~_sh,o~ (nteres_t__cl~!~ ..... ... ... .. . 
n/a 

. ..•.. 18,351.36 on Tuesday, _May 19, 2015 .. 

15,3_70.33 _o_n_ M.on?ay, Au?ust_ 24; _2015 . 

nla 

n/a 

. . ~~'.~~?.:~~92 (~°.~8,Y) _17..~~B-~7!_8 .(~.°.O-<l_~}'.) 

. J~~:?.~,~~8 (50:<Jay) 10~: ??~: 1.~1 (~0°.-<!~~1. 

CoP}'r1ght 2015 Mari<etWatch, Inc. All rights reserved. 

Mv , •;ff'l~ :•.h Ht' 'tC1i, ·tr, 

By using this site, you agree to the Terms of Use. Privacy Po Dey (Updated 5/512015), and Cookie Polley (Updated 5/512015). 

lnlraday Data provided by SlX Flnancial Information and subJectto teJmS of use. 

HJslorica/ and current end.of-day data provided by SIX Financial Information. lnlraday data delayed per exchange requirements. S&P/Oow Jones Indices (SM) 

from Dow Jones & Company, Inc. All quotes are In local exchange time. Real time last sale data provided by NASDAQ. 

More Information on NASDAQ traded symbols and their current financial status. 

lntraday data delayed 15 minutes for Nasdaq, and 20 minutes for other exchanges. 

S&PIDow Jones Indices (SM) from Dow Jones & Company, Inc. 

SEHK lntraday data Is provided by SIX Financial Information and Is at least 60-mlnutes delayed. 

All quotes are In local exchange time. 

10/1/15, 18:42 



'l'f uaL .1.:), a iv.tuLuaa .a ·uuu .l .1v..:,pvvLu.:,: JILLp,11 ui..,511u1v1..:,.111 Y 1.,1..:,a.,u.uvua..vv.uu vu, J.u1.u.uu.1..1. uuu.J .1. 1 UJ YY _.1..1.u"- .1.:,- ., . 

,f 3 

.~BOUT.Cot.: ,=ooo HEALTH HOMC MC,/JEY STYLE TEOH TRAVEL MORE · 

mutual funds prospeclus 

About.com About Money Investing for Beginners Investing In Mutual Funds 

1 By Joshua Kennon SHARE 
.. , J, Investing for Beginners Expert 

Ads Bond Investing Investing for Beginners Mutual Fund Investment Inventing Stool<s lnv~strnent Mana~;emenl ETF lnve~Ung 

Sign Up for our 
Free Newsletters 

About Money 

Small Business 

Investing for Beginners 

INVE!iTlllIG FOR 
BEGINNERS 

CATEGORIES 

Investing In Stocks :· 

Investing In Mutual Funds ' 

Investing In ETFs · 

lnvesiing for Retirement · 

Investing Strategies , 

Investing Lessons & Quizzes 

Investing Basics , 

Portfolio Management , 

Investing In Bonds ; 

Investing In Real Estate ; 

Investing In Small Businesses , 

Investing for College ; 

Accounting & Finance · 

Personal Finance 1 

Ta,ces 

Investing Basics : 

Retirement Planning & Wealth 
Building ; 

How to Begin Researching 
Stocks, Bonds, Mutual Funds, 
and Other Investments , 

Updated Articles and 
Resources : 

Expert Videos : 

Before you buy a single share of a mutual fund, you absolutely must read the prospectus. 
This legal document filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC) Isn't 
Just standard boilerplate stuff you can ignore. It Is extremely Important to your portfolio 
because it includes vital information on the mutual fund such as: 

A description of the investing strategy the mutual fund management company will use to 
invest your money. Some funds follow a value investing strategy, some go for growth 
stocks, while still others may use risky strategies involving stock options. 

A breakdown of the historical expenses paid by the mutual fund shareholders over the 
past few years. 

A long-term performance disclosure comparing the mutual fund's performance to a 
benchmark such as the Dow Jones Industrial Average. 

CONTINUE READING BELOW OUR VIDEO 

Beginner's Gulde To Mutual Funds 

Information about the managers of the mutual fund assets to help you determine whether 
or not you think they have the credentials to handle your money. 

How to Get a Mutual Fund Prospectus 

Mutual fund campanles are re<:1ulred·by law to provide you with a prospectus before you 
Invest In iheir mutual .fund. Virtually alrtund·companles now malce their prospectuses 

available onlfne as a free download. 
Once you read a few dozen mutual fund prospectuses, you should start to recognize 
what Is normal and what Isn't This is Important because, If you are wise, it can aid you in 

constructing a better portfolio for your own needs. 

Related Artid es 
o Why Read the Mutual Fund 

Prospectus? 

• How Mutual Funds Work 

• Global Mutual Funds vs. International 
Mutual Funds 

o If You Are Investing in Mutual Funds, 
Avoid These 5 Mistakes 

o How a Mutual Fund Family Worl<s 

Rate +I· 

3.091% 

3.886% 

2.796% 

2.871% 
R.:itodebb 
lriorrn;,R,~hSorvlces,/ne. 

PIN 

Last Week Product 

3.104% lll•J f! llt tiY.#tl 

3.916% iu,,u,,i ,110,1 

2.832% !II AfiM 

2.902% il/11\HM 

VrewRales In Youi Stale 

10/1/15, 14:34 



.:;ummary rrospecms - w nar ts a .:;ummary nospecmsr nup:,, murnau unu:s .aUUUL .CUJIU UU/ JII ULUi:11! UIIUl,;IU:S:Si:11 J 11;,f :S Ulllllli::I .. , 

of 3 

ABOUT.COM FOOD HEALTH HOME MONEY STYLE TECH 

mutual 1unds prospecrus 

About.com About Money Mutual Funds Mutual Fund Glossary 

The Summary Prospectus 
By Lee McGowan 
Mutual Funds Expert 

TAAVEL MORE -

SHARE PIN 

Ads Mutual Fund Investment Funds Retirement Investment Personal Investment Investment Online Investors Funds Investing 

Sign Up for our 
Free Newsletters 

About Money 

Small Business 

Mutual Funds 

SIGN UP 

MUTUAL FUNDS 
CATEGORIES 

Best Mutual Funds , 

Index Funds , 

Mutual Fund Basics > 

Where to Invest Now ~ 

Mutual Fund Taxation., 

Funds for Retirement · 

Investment Advice , 

Types of Funds • 

Value vs Growth Investing , 

No-Load vs. Load Funds ~ 

Active vs. Passive :· 

Buying Mutual Funds • 

Managing Your Portfolio , 

Analyzing a Mutual Fund , 

Mutual Fund Fees 1 

Mutual Fund Glossary , 

· Blog 1 

Mutual Fund Basics ; 

Index & No-Loads > 

Build a Portfolio 1 

Definition: 

The summary prospectus offers an improvement over the full length mutual fund 

prospectus that is often confusing and muddled with legalese. The new summary 

prospectus rules were effective on February 28th, 2009, and funds must comply with the 

changes on January 1, 2010. 

The summary prospectus rules require that funds provide investors with a brief summary 

(generally three to four pages) -- in plain English -- of the key information that will allow 

Investors to make Informed investment decisions. 

Buffett's Top 5 Stocks 

www.streetauthority.com 

Ads 

These 5 stocks make up 75% of his 

firm's portfolio. Free picks. 

6 Stocks to Hold Forever 

wealthyretirement.com/Retirement 

Looking to retire? These 6 stocks will 
generate regular income. 

8% AnAuai Annuity Return 

advisorwond.com/CompareAnnuities 

Get guaranteed lifetime income and 

reduced risks to retirees all here. 

• Mutual Fund 

• investment Funds 

• Reti rement Investment 

• Personal Investment 

• Investment Online 

The SEC also adopted a new rule that 

allows a summary prospectus to satisfy 

prospectus delivery requirements as long as 

the summary prospectus, the full, statutory 

prospectus, and other required information 

is available online. 

The summary prospectus must contain the 

following items in standardized order and 

cannot include additional information, nor 

omit required information: 

1. Investment objectives/goals 

2. Fee and expense tables 

3. Principal investment strategies, principal 

risks and performance table 

4. Management Information 

5. Purchase and sale information 

6. Tax information 

7. Financial intermediary compensation 

Information 

Not to be confused with: Profile prospectus, statutory prospectus 

Securjt/es and Exchange Commission final Action on the Summary ProspA9tus Ru/es 

Examples: 

Example of a Summary Prospectus for GAAEX 

Related Articles 
• Why Read the Mutual Fund 

Prospectus? 

• What Is a Mutual Fund Prospectus? 

• The Co's and Don'ts of Buying Mutual 
Funds 

• What Is the Quiet Period 

• How Mutual Funds Work 

• Finding Right Mutual Fund for 
Investing In Stock Market 

Our Expert Recommends 
• A Prospectus: The Owner's Manual to 

Your Mutual Fund 

Money Market Savings CO 

Rate 

0.750 % 

0.780 % 

0.790 % 

0.790 % 

+/. Lest Week 

0.750% 

0.780% 

0.790% 

0.790% 

Min.to Earn 

52,500 

S 10,000 

$25.000 

850,000 

RZadebh 
lrionn~ Rasun:h Sttwbs, lnc. View Rates In Your State 

10/1/15, 14:36 



Summary Prospectus - What Is a Summary Prospectus? 

~ lt!tua! .Pm'!ds 3sse:.1riais 

The 3 Best S&P 500 
Index Funds 
Index Funds 

I Like Dave Ramsey 
But He's Dead 
Wrong on Mutual 
Funds 
Mutual Fund Basics 

No-Loads or Load 
Funds· Which Is 
Best? 
No-Load vs. Load Funds 

!;lest No-Load 
Funds to Get 
Started Investing 
With Just $100 
Best MutuaJ Functs 

Do This Homework 
Before Building 
Your Mutual Fund 
Portfolio 
Managing Your Po~(Qllo 

• The 3 Best S&P 500 Index Funds 

• A Simple Explanation of Mutual Funds 

o The Top 10 Best Mutual Funds 

o I Like Dave Ramsey But He's Dead 
Wrong on Mutual Funds 

o Mutual Funds 101 • The Beginners 
Guide to Mutual Funds 

Mones, S!idesh ow s 

How Long Will Your 
Money Last In 
Retirement? 
Money Over 55 

How to File for 
Banl,ruptcy In 9 
Steps 
Bankruptcy 

24 Ways to Give 
Your Grocery List a 
Savings Makeover 
Frugal Uvlng 

10 Secrets of the 
Rich (Shhhh!) 
Investing for Beginners 

129 •utehacks" to 
Save You Time and 
Money 

r ·-.. -- --- ------·-
.A. I! t.fl<! ~P ll CQ · 

~<1.(!tJJ'l ty ~' Oll ll P. ·d 

- 0 o 

http://mutualfunds.about.com/od/mutualfundglossary/g/summa ... 

8% Annual Annuityl 
Return / 

Get guaranteed lifetime income 
and reduced risks to retirees all 

here. 
0 0 

Ads Mutual Fund Investment Funds Retirement lnveatment Personal Investment Investment Onllne Investors Funds lnvesllng 

of 3 10/1/15, 14:36 



THE XYZ BALANCED FUND SUMMARY PROSPECTUS 
(Class A and Class B Shares) November I, 2007 

Before you invest, you may want to review the Fund's prospectus, which contains more infonnation about the Fund and its risks. You 
can find the Fw1d's prospectus and other infonnation about the Fund, including the statement of additional infonnation and most 
recent reports to shareholders, online at [Web address]. You can also get this information at no cost by calling 1.:.800-000-0000 or by 
sending an e-mail request to [ e-mail address]. The Fund's prospectus and statement of additional information, both dated April 27, 

1, 2007, and most recent report to shareholders, dated June 30, 2007, are all incorporated by reference into this Summary Prospectus. 
' --- ---· ······· ·-·------··----·- -----··----- --- ·--·---- ·---- - -

Investment Objscthre: Income and capital growth consistent with reasonable risks. 

fees and Expenses of file Fund: The tables below describe the fees and expenses that you may pay if you buy and hold 
shares of the Fund. You may qualify for sales charge discounts if you and your family invest, or agree to invest in the 
future, at least $25,000 in XYZ Funds. 

Maximum _Sales Charge (Load) Imposed on Purchases (as percentage o 
offering price) · 

M~1mµrn Deferred $ales Charge (LoadJ. (as percentage of the lower of 
ong,na1 purchase price or sale proceeds} 

Management Fees 

D1str rbut,on (12b I) Fees 

Sen11ce ( 12b· 1) Fees 

Other Expenses 

Tota Annual Fund Operating Expenses 

Example 

Class A Class B 

5.75% None 

None 5.00% 

Class A Class B 

0.66% 0.66% 

0.00% 0.75% 

0.23% 0.23% 

0.28% 046% 

1.1 7% 2.10'% 

The Example below is intended to help you compare the cost of investing in the Fund with the cost of investing in other 
mutual funds. The Example assumes that you invest $10,000 in the Fund for the time periods indicated. The Example 
also assumes that your investment has a 5% return each year and that the Fund's operating ex,penscs remain the same. 
Although your actual costs may be higher or lower, based on these assumptions your costs would be: 

Class A (whether or not shares are redeemed) $687 

Class B {if shares are redeemed) $713 

Class B (if shares are not redeemed) $213 

$925 

$958 

$658 

$1 ,182 $1 ,914 

S 1,329 s, ,97 4. 

$1, 129 $1,97 4 



Portfolio TL!rnover 
The Fund pays transaction c;iosts, such as commissions, when it buys and sells securities (or "turns overn its portfolio). A 
higher portfolio turnover may indicate higher transaction costs. These costs, which are not reflected in annual fund 
operating expenses or in the example, affect the Fund's performance. During the most recent fiscal year, the Fund's 
portfolio turnover rate was 63% of the average value of its whole portfolio. 

Principal lmresitmient Sirategies: The Fund invests mainly in common stocks, bonds, and notes of U.S. and foreign 
compames. Q Q •••• 11 • •••••••• " , • " ••• " •••• !I Ill • " ............ °' .......... , • , , •• , ., ....... ·" •• " • "' ••• Q •• , , • " •••• " ~ •• o • 

............................. l'.•• ••······-··••11•0•••••1t!1!1•••11•, .•••••••1J•••~·.,,.,.., .. ... , •• , ... .......... , •• 

I o o o ll 111 0 Q I • 0 • Q O Q O Ill • I 1! • q I !f I o o a a o 11 11 o I o 11 ' o o q o Cl O o Q Q o O fll Q .. a I q !I II fl 11 '!I q I !I .I • .t ... IP • ~ .. II • II ... lf • C, 4' II 'I • • Cf !t • t • '9 • e • ·• • • Cl • • 

• ,t ... ell ~ Ill • II • "' • Cf • !If • o it ft • • • Cf t ,. • • • It • II !t It • 't • It • ft • • • '!I It • 11 q • q • q • 'I II q t o • fl II O t <I • t t o 7 o It O ! ' • • • II • • e t ' • • ii !'I ~ II • ' II f • 9 • II • • ,. 1' 

•••••••••~•o.•'!,.ctllct•••ct•••••ct••••••••••••••••••ri1111•1111111•o•••••••••••!t'••q,.11 .•q•••ct•••••11••••1t••o•••4'•• 
0 Q II II I, Q Cl Cl Ill q C "' ._ II It. II O O • 0 • 11 0 !If II II O O O O • 11 11 O • (t • 0 11 Q • q q Q Q q O a O q III Q • q • (t • 1? 111 ... !' .It Q I 9 0 It ' ' •• ~ ct It • It O • II a II O O ' ••• II Cl ,0 Q It q t Q • e 

•••111aoqq111q•••ct•Q!IIQtOlct••• .•••1t1t•11t••,..1t~1t,11••••••••~••••••••••••••••11!t•••-=• !'l•'l'J'•.,'!I• ••••"• • •••••••••.,•• 

Principal Risll{s: 
0 You could lose money by investing in the Fund. 

,, .Risk Number 1wo - II ...................... _ ... II " • _ •• II ••••• A ••• - • •• ft ..... "' ......... ill ..... ill ....... 111 • ill • 

••••&.a•••• 11••• •• •• •••o •- •• 001111011 •• 11000 •••••11•••11 •• ,. • .... •• •• •• •-•• &e.•••••••a•••••••••• •11•• 

...... Q.OOIIOII••························································· .. ········· ·· '"·" · ··· 

a Risk Number Three - ...••.•••• II ••••••••••••••••••••••• II ••••••• II • Ill .... ........ ............. Cl • II .. 

•• •• • • •• ~· •••• 00011~0 oo •• •• •••••• 01100110 •11••~• •• o ••• •• • ••• o• •••• •••11"•"••••••111•••• •••• •• • • •• 

lltOQOOOODOIIOOODOOOilfO.O .. CIIIOQOQOQOO•OOOQQallae"IIIIO•ct•ODOOD,lfOOO.ODOCIO""OORO<t'l>ctOCIOl,oOOOO<tOOCIOO 

cl Risk NllID.ber Fom - • Q ......... II ........ . . "' .......... , ••••••• ,. • , ............ ,. "' " ••••• • " , 1111 ••• o ......... . 

O ct • 0 • 11t • • • 1111 O ll • ct a 'II II e e 11]1 It " • fl • ct a q • • ' 'Ill e '! • Cl 1- • • It • • 11 o • Q a o III Cl Cl e !I e ' 9 It Cl • I! O • ct <t "- ., • • i.> 0 • fl • • • Cl II t ' • • Cl • · I • II ' • ' • 

o Risk Number Five ...... • .... ~ ... ,, ••••• " ........ ~ ••. Cit ......... ., ••• !'I ..... ~ •• " .... ., " ........ ~ • 4,1 ••••• " ..... o; II ••• 

._ll),11aoa•1!11ttt,•JJ~l!l,i'IC11fllllCIOllll••••ct•11110•11011111••111111111t•1111t11•o•lll!•~•ctlf•,11 .. ••• .. <Jlllllll"8'Cl'llll,,lll!•"fl•1tCo10••1t•.i•• 

.. a: ••• I!! ••• ~ JII •• q • q ••• fl " • "' Ill • ~ ••• " • " • " .... '!' ... 't • 'I " • "' Ill •• q ••• '.I .ft " • fl ' " .Ill '!I •• " • " " .. " • ~ ..... ct • , • " ' • • • '' • ' ••• 

Annual Total Reb.lrn: Th~ following bar chart and table provide some indication pf the rfab of in~esting in tb.0 Fund. 
The bar chart show~ changes in tho Fund's performanco from yeftf to year for Clas~ A shares. The mole shows how the 
Fund1s average ann»aI returns for 1, 5, and 10 years comp~d with those of a broad measure ofn'l.atket performance. The 
Fund's past perfolmance (before and after taxes) is not necessarily an indication of how the Fund wiU perform in the 
future. 

Sales charges are not reflected in the bar chart, and if those charges were included, 1·eturns would b~ less than those 
shown. 

30% 

20% 

10% 

0% 

-10% 

-20% 

-30% 

23;72% 
i7.98% 

098% iO.B5% 6 
~ -· ~ . 6.38 Yo 1 . .8_9_% 

9A3% 10.37% 
3:-72% -

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 

Best Quarter ( ended 6/30/03): 12.08%. Worst Quarter ( ended 9/30/01 ): -11.06%. The year-to-date return as of the most 
recent calendar quarter, which ended September 30, 2007, was 7.03%. 

2 



1 Year 5 Years 10 Years 

Class A 'Peturn Before Taxes) 4.04% 5.72% 7.26% 

Class A (Return After Taxes on Distributions) 2.48 4.52 5.05 

Class A /Return After Taxes on Distributions and Sale of Fund Shares) 2.30 4.34 4.90 

Class B (Retu rn Betcre Taxes) 4.38 5.62 7.12 

S&P 500 Index (reflects no deduction for tees, expenses or taxes) 15.79% 6.19% 8.42% 

The after-tax retums are shown only for Class A shares and are calculated using the historical highest individual federal 
marginal income tax rates and do not reflect the impact of state and local taxes. Actual after~tax returns depend on an 
investor's tax situation and may differ from those shown. After-tax returns are not relevant to investors who hold their 
Fund shares through tax-deferred arrangements, such as 40l(k) plans or individual retirement accounts. 

Rank Security Rani· Security 

XYZ, Inc. (3.0%) 6 The DEF Co. ( 1.3%) 

2 The ABC Co. (2.3%) 7 The NOP Corp. (1.3%) 

3 XYZ Growth, Inc. (1 . 7%) 8 HIJ Co. '1 .1%) 

4 he TUY Corp. 11.6%) 9 ABC Corp. ('1.0%) 

5 ORS Co. (1.4% ) 10 OPQ, !nc. (0 .9%) 

lm,esimsni AcMsar: XYZ Management Company, LLC 

Portfolio Manager; John E. Smith, CF.A, Vice President and Equity Portfolio Manag~r of XYZ Mania,gelncnt Company, 
LLC. .Mr. Smith has managed the Fund since 2005. 

Purchase and Sale of Fund Shares: You may purchase or redeem shares of the Fund on any business day online or 
through our Web site at [Web address], by mail (XYZ Fw1ds\ Box 1000, Anytown; USA 10000), or by telephone at 
800-000-0000. Shares may be purchased by electronic bank tra11sfer1 by check, or by wire. You may receive redemption 
proceeds by electronic bank transfer or by check. You generally buy and redeem shares at the Fund's next-determined net 
asset value (NAV) after XYZ receives your request in good order. NAV s are determined only on days when the NYSE is 
open for regular trading. The minimum initial purchase is $2,500. Th.e minimum subsequent investment is $100 (or $50 
under an automatic investment plan). 

Di11idends, Capital Gains, and Taxes: The Fun.d·s distributions are taxable, and will be taxed as ordinary income or 
capital gains, unless you are investing through a tax-deferred arrangement, such as a 401(k) plan or an individual 
retirement account. 

Payments to Broker-Dealers and Other financBaf Intermediaries: If you purchase the Fund through a broker-dealer or 
other :financial intermediary (such as a bank)t the Fund and its related companies may pay the intennediary for the sale of 
Fund shares and related services. These payments may influence the broker-dealer or other intermediary and your 
S'3lesperson to recommend the Fund over another investment. Ask your salesperson or visit your financial intermediary's 
Web site for more information. 

3 



G'UINNESS 
ATKINSON'M 

F U D NASDAQ Symbol: GAAEX 

0 3 I 23 I 201s 
Before you invest, you may want to review the Fund's prospectus, which contains more information about the Fund and 
Its risks. You can find the Fund's prospectus and other information about the Fund online at www.gafunds.com. You may 
also obtain this information at no cost: by calling 1-800-915-6566 or by sending an e-mail request to mall@gafunds.com. 
The Fund's Statutory Prospectus and Statement of Additional Information, both dated March 23, 207 5, are incorporated 
by reference into this Summary Prospectus. 

lnve tment Objedive 
The Aliernative Energy Fund's investment objective is tong-term capital appreciation . 

.F es and Exp .ns -_ of the Fund 
This table describes the fees and expenses that you may pay if you buy and hold shares of the Alternative Energy Fund: 

Management Fees: 

Distribution {12b-l) Fees: 

Other Expenses: 
Shareholder servicing plan fees 
All Other Expenses - ---

Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses: 

Fee Waiver/Expense Reimbursement (21: 

0.20% 
0.86% 

1.00% 

None 

1.06% 

2.06% -------- ----· -·--- 1-----1 
.. Q.04% 

.. 

Total Annual Fund Operating Expenses After Fee Waiver and/or E)cpense Reimbursemen t. (?.l; 2.02% 

/1! The Fund may charge a $75 fee for wire trr.msacUons. 
r.?J Tile Advisor has contractually agreed to reduce its fees and/or pay Fund expenses (excluding Acquired Fund Fi:!es amf Expenses, Interest, taxes, 
dividends on short positions and extraordinary expenses) In order to limit the Fund's 1otalAnnual Operating F:xpenses to 1.98% through June 30, 
2016. To the extent that the Advisor waives Its fees and/or absorbs expenses to satisfy this cap, It may seek repayment of a portion or all of such 
amot1nts at any time within three fiscal years after tfle fiscal year in which such amounts were waived or absorbed, subject to tl1e 1.98% expense cap. 

For additional information about the Fund's expenses, please see Fund Expenses, Redemption Fee, and 
Ffnancial Highlights ,in the prospectus. 

Exampl.e 
This example .Is intended to help you compare the cost of investing fn the Alternative Energy Fund with the cost of 
investing in other mutual funds. The Example assumes that you invest $10,000 in the Fund for the time periods 
indicated. The Example also assumes that your investment has a 5% return each year and that the Fund's operating 
expenses remain the same. Although your actual costs may be higher or lower. under these assumptions, your costs 
would be: 

$205 $642 $1~05 $2,386 

,..,. . I 



_, . . :• '!-,: . l. . ·., ' ' . 

The Fund pays transacifon costs, suc11 as commissions, whr;in It buys cHJO sells sa(:urll:les (or "turns ove,·" its poi'tw 
{al.lo). A hig:her portfolio t•.1mover may indicate higher transaction costs and may result in hlgt·ier taxes when Fune; 
Ehares are ;held in a ta.:<able account. These costs, which are not; refle.cte.d .in i:!i'Jnual fund op;: ating exp~nses o.-
in ttle l=Xampte, :affect the Fund's perfotmance. During the most recent. fiscal yea,; the Funci's portfolio turnover 
rate was 42.27% of the averag$ value of its portfol.lo. 

J ·fu~· ;J:_j,:: ( · .. ~,, 1~<!:'..i.l!~ ,( .S..:i:-- • · ·:: ':;I I ~: 

Thz Alt~rnat1va En~;rgy Fund Invests at lec1s~ 80% of Its n~t as.sets {pl.us any bcrrnwini,1s for lrwest111eni pwprJses) 
!n equity securities of alternative energy companies {both U.S. ano. nor. .. u . .s.). Alternative S)ntarg~, companies 
include, but ar~ not limited to companies that ger,erai;e povtet trirough .sola1; wind, hydroe(ectric, tidal w'e.v~, 
geothermal, Jilornass or blofuels and the varlo1.1s companies tl1ci !. f.JrP'lld.e: thfl eq~1ipment and technolo!:)les tbat 
er;able the.se sources to be tapped, used, stored or transported, tnduding compar.les that create. facllltat'.= or 
improve technologies that conserve or enc;1bte more afficien ~ use of 5:nergy. The Fund will Mi:: d1anl;Je this poUcy 
1 • .mless Ii: gives sharef1olders at L~ast 60 days' notice. Equity securities may include cormnon stocf<:s, preferred 
stoc!c;, securi tJes .:onveri:ible into common stoc!cs, rights and warran;:s, Tl1e Fund's conce,1t -atfon mayvary 
depending on changing mar!(et conditions (Including but not tlmlted to, liquidity, votat llltv, and tti.e number Q/ 
companies meeting selection c1iterla) although the Advisor has a bias towards concentration. Tile degree oi coi",
centration of the portfolio wilt vary over time, and under normal market conditions, the Fund r:..1ay have as few 
as 25 /1oldings1 or may hold securities in 75 or more companies. The AdVisor will. invest the Fund's 3ssets in 
securlties of all mar!<et capitalization companies and in companies domiciled In the U.S. and foreign countries, 
fnduding, potenLiaHy; companies domiciled or traded In emerging markets. Additional information on Pri1:cip2i. 
investment Strategies can be found in the prospectus. A(so see Additional lnvesti-nent S11'ategies and Risks ln 
.he Statemen of.Additional lnforn1at ion . 

• · 'f ,i.:1:J•at HH0; 
U.S. and foreign stock mar!(ets have been subject to significant volatility recently which has Increased the rls!(S 
assodated with an Investment in the Fund. You may lose money by lnvesl;lng in tills Fvnd If anv of the following 
o<:cur: 

Prices of energy (lndudfng tradlt.tonal siour,;es of '.ilnergy sue!'! as oil, flclS, or el.e,: t!'fdi:y) or atter1 ti:lt!Vtz e::n· 
eigy decline d!-le to many fc;lc:tc:;,rs, lndudlng International po!.ltkat development$, prociw.::Uon ~nd cflsirfbutluii 
polldes of t he OPEC (Organization <;if Petroteurn Expo1·tfng Countrfes) ;:md other rJlf:·prodt1cln9 countries; 

Tti~ Fund's focus on the energy Sfi':c;: tor to the :exd ttston o -other .sectors e}..'poses the Fund to greater rn~r" 
ket risk and potent/ill monetary tosses thari If th"' Fund's ris.set'.!f w~re dfwrslfi~ci 1m1ong varlbw, se1:t<,1rs; 

The Pun.d has cf1fficutty seU/119 small~ or rnld··<:ap or emerging m,nl<et. star.ks due to lower r.lqufdlty and 
hlghef' voLaWity; 

The c:;urrendes that r.:ienomlnate :;my fol'elgn hot.ding~ In the f1qnd dec:;Une In vat~,e ~g~inst u,~ U.S. dr.iUar; 
/J.. foreign governnwmt exproprlatijs (-'I' natlon~llz:;s thG ~ssets ol' file Fund or C<Jmpanle.s rn wl1Jcfl tl1e 

Fund Invests;: 
PoOtlcaL, .social, <;:urrency~rate Huctuatlons oi· ac.r:,119rnk: lnst~bilftv within foreign c:,;.11.m!:1·la$ cause tt1e 

v;:;ttUC;! of the .Fund's fol'elgn tnvestments to decllnei 
Th(:l Fund dect/n~s in value d1.1e to Its non~dlv~rsHfc;~Uo i .status whii:h exposes lt ~o gr~cil er !oSSi or 
The Advisor's f nvestm(;;<nt .si trate9y does noi; ad1lev~ the F1.1w l'.s objw;tlve er l!1e Advlsur does n<it ln1p1,8, 

m~nt the strategy property. 

for rnore Information on the risks ot' Investing In this i::und, ptease .see th~ Principal Risks and Rlst<:s of Investing 
In Our Funds in the prospectus. You may atso refet' to the section Risk Factors unC: Spedal Consfde(atlo1 1s In the 
::aatement of Additional Information. 

· .; 'c / · anc.G. 
'ihe annual J'eturns bar chart demonstrates the l'lsks of Investing in the Alternative Energy Fund by showing how 
the Fund's performance has varied from year to year. The table belovv also demonstrates these risks by showing 
how t.he Fund's average annual returns compat'E:! with those of a broad-based securWes market it1dex, as well as 
two energywsector indices that, more closely resemble the Investments o,• the Fund. Unlike the Fund's returns, 
the lnde~{ returns do not reflect any deductions for fees, expenses or taxes. For addit!on:;;L infoirmatlon on these 
indices, please see Index Descriptions in the prospectus. Past performance, before or after taxes, is not indicative 
of future performance. Updated performance information Is available on the Fund's webs1te www.gafunds.com. 



• ' • !> 

j Alternative Energy Fund: 

Return Before Taxes -1 4 .29% -12.02% -12.44% 

Return After Ta;{es on Distributionsul -14.29% -·12.02%% -12.68% 

Return Af ter Taxes on Distributions and Sale of Fund Sharesn) -8.09% -8 .49% -8 .08% 
- - ------- - -
Wif.derhill Clean Energy Index {ECO) -·16 .93% -12.49% -14.36% 

Wilderhill New Energy Global Innovation Index (NEX) -2.15% ·-5.07% -3.45% 

MSCI World Index 5.62% 10.94% 5.76% 
'----- --------·---- ---
OJ Art er-tax returns are calculated using the historically highest individual federal marginal Income tax rates and do not reflect the 
impacl of state and local taxes. Actual after-tax returns depend on an Investor 's tax situation and may differ from those shown, 
and after-tax returns shown are not relevant to Investors who hold their Fund shares through tax-deferred arrangements, such as 
40'/(k) plans or individual retirement accounts. In certain cases, the figure representing "Return After Taxes on Dfstrlbut/ons and 
Sale of Fund S/1ares1

' may be higher tfian the ocher return figures for the same pe,'iod. A higher after-tax re tum results when a 
capiial loss occut~~ upon redemption and provides an assumed tax deductfon that benefits the Investor. 

investment Ao/visor 
Guinness AtfdnsonTM .l\sset Management, Inc. For more information on the Investment Advisor, please see Man~ 
agernent of the Funds In th 1:1 prospectus and The Investment Advisor in the StatemP.nt of Add itional lnforrnat.lon. 

Portfolio Managers 
EdY.tard Guinness, Portfolio Manage1; has been lead manager since April 2013 and co~manager {February 2007 to 
April 2013) . For additional information, please see Portfol.io Management in the prospectus and Portfolio Managers 
in the Statement of Additional Information. 

Purcha e and. Sale of Fund Shar s 
Investors may purchase or redeem Fund shares on any business day by written request, wire transfer; or tele
phone. You may conduct transactions by mail (Guinness A.tkinson™ Funds, c/o U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC, 
6'15 East Michigan Street, 3rd Floor. Milwaukee, WI 53201-0701), or by telephone at 1-800-915-6566. (Redemp
tions by telephone are only permitted upon previously receiving appropriate authorization.) Investors who wish 
to purchase, exchange or redeem Fund shares through a broker-dealer should contact the broker-dealer directly. 
The minimum Initial and subsequent investment amounts for various types of accounts are shown below, al
though we may reduce or waive the minim urns in some cases. 



.. 
r- {_I I) 

R;g~·~-;;;;h;~h;;;;::·t~~ Gu!nne5$Atk!nson™ Fl;;,,j.fa~;ity) I ··~Es:,?o~~J~~E~-~-J 
Regular (r.:urnant sharehotser of another G:Ir:n:ss At~nsonT1>1 Furn.I) J~--$~,soo ·~---·/'~ ... -,_J250 -·· .. J

1 
1 Ratke,·nent f $"!,fJO(; ~i?.50 

Gift {UG1'-'fA/UTMAj - --·-·-=-~-~=--=--=-r-·~· :~50 -~~r:-·-· $250 --.-~ 

i.. Autcmadc investment p(an (!oitlat a~d Installment paymi;;nts1 
1 

.$100 j $100 _J 
!=or adciii:ionaL information, please see How ,o Purchase, B <ch.,mgE: and Redeem Sh~res In the pros1:;r:;ctus 3n,:1 
Additional PurchasE: ano Redemption lnforma~ion ir. the St;:;ternent of Additional in:lOffi'iaUoii. 

- '-~ f. I •,...., . i .I ! :; .! , 

... 
:.) 

Ti1a Fund's distributions are taxable, and wilt be taxed as ordinaty income or capital gains, tml.essyou are invest .. 
ing through a tax-deferred arrangement, such 3-.:; a 401(fcJ µ:.cm or an fndlvlduat reure;mmt :1:cc1:mnt vV!thd1c1wcL oi 
monies from such tax-ciefurred arl"angemenl:s may be ta;rabi.e. For additional infortnat!m 1, pt~se see Dlc;tJiblJ·· 
tions and Ta;~es in the prospectt,s and Tc:JX Matters in the Sl:atement. of Addltlonal !niumiation . . 

:. IL ' ':1"."3 tc · · r'·· i.: '! ,. , , 'I. :. · =a,1 ( t _;. · i i11 , -r-, , .. , -, -. - . 1;;: 

If you p!.m:ha.sa the Fund through a brot<'.er-cfeai.er or oth'3i" financial. ii1termectiary (sucri :is a bai"ll(), the ftmd and 
Its related companies may pay ti1e intermediaiy for i:he sal.e of Fund shares and r~i.atecl seMc-~s. .11,ese payment.!:· 
may create a cor:Wct of interest by influencing the l:>ro/{er-dealer or other lntermr;!drary and your sate.,-person to 
recommend the F ,,me/ over another investment P..sk your .sates person or vlsit yot1 r ·t, ,andal intem1ecliac(s Web 
site for more Information. Al.so see Distribution and 5har'2:holde" Servicing Plans in Hie prospe::f:us and Dlst.r1bll·· 
t ion Agreement, Distribution Plan and Sh.:irehoi.der Sen1k;ing Pf.an and Additional Mar!~tfn~ .ind .Support Pay·
ms;1nts 1n the Staternent of P..ddrtional lnfurmi5.don. 

·,r,,; 



GENERAL RULES OF OFFICE FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
__________ DISTRICT 

1. Code of Ethics and Conduct. 

A. Purpose. The following principles outline some of the legal and ethical 
obligations of Board Members of the District, but do not supersede 
existing laws, regulations, and the Administrative Procedures applicable to Board 
Members. They serve as a general expression of policy to guide the Board in its 
decision-making and in carrying out its functions as a public body. 

B. Board Member General Duties and Obligations. Each Board Member shall: 

1. Represent and work for the common good of the District; 

2. Provide fair and equal treatment for all persons and matters coming before the 
Board; 

3. Become familiar with and understand the role and responsibilities of the Office 
of Board Member, including, without limitation, 

(a) become thoroughly knowledgeable about items of business coming before 
the Board before voting or developing a conclusion or recommendation on or 
about them; 

(b) regularly attend Board meetings and scheduled Committee meetings; 

(c) when in session, direct all communications to and through the President of 
the Board, respect all determinations and directions of the President and 
otherwise adhere to the District's rules of order; 

(d) listen courteously and attentively to all public discussions and avoid 
interrupting other speakers; 

(e) refrain from abusive conduct, personal charges or verbal attacks upon the 
character, motives, ethics or morals of other members of the Board, District 
employees, consultants, contractors and members of the public; 

(f) maintain a respectful and professional relationship with the General Manager 
of the District and staff personnel including (i) refraining from giving directions to 
them and otherwise avoiding involvement in their respective responsibilities and 
activities, (ii) using discretion when communicating with them in carrying out 
Board Member responsibilities, such as seeking information necessary or 
appropriate for being thoroughly knowledgeable about items of business coming 

1 
SampleCdeCndct100115 



before the Board and (iii) bringing to the attention of the General Manager or the 
Board President any observed significant deficiencies in performance of duties or 
conflicts with established policies; 

(g) Scrupulously adhere to the requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Gov. C. 
§54950 et seq.), the Political Reform Act of 1974 (Gov. C. §81000 et seq.), 
prohibitions against conflicts of interest, including, without limitation, the 
prohibition against financial interests in District contracts (Gov. C. §1090), and 
the regulations, Codes and policies implementive thereof; and 

(h) irrespective of and in addition to the foregoing legal authorities, refrain from 
accepting gifts, favors or making promises of future benefits which might 
compromise, tend to impair independent judgment or action or create the 
appearance of a conflict of interest or otherwise reflect adversely on the Board or 
the District. 

2. Collective District of BoardMembers. 

Individual Members of the Board are not independently authorized to expend 
public funds, enter into agreements or contracts, employ staff, sign documents on 
behalf of the Board, or bind the Board or the District. This authority can only be granted 
by motion or resolution of the Board. 

2 
SampleCdeCndct100115 



FUTURE AGENDAS- Rain Barrels 
Grey Water 
Public Goods Charges or other taxes on water bills 
Good Government to make a presentation to the Board 

REGULAR MEETING ENDED at 10:25 P.M. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Secretary 

Approved on the 5th November, 2015 

Signed ____________________ _ 

MWSD Minutes 
1st October, 2015 

President 

17 



&,..;;.,,.::+-lL'.:t .......... ,.MONTARA WATER & SANITARY 

DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
January 7, 2016 

MINUTES 

REGULAR SESSION BEGAN AT 7:41 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 
Directors Present: 
Directors Absent: 
Staff Present: 

Others Present: 

Slater-Carter, Harvey, Boyd, Wilson and Huber 
None 
General Manager, Clemens Heldmaier, 
District Clerk, Judy Gramm 
District Counsel Schricker 
District Financial Advisor, Alex Handlers 

PRESIDENT'S STATEMENT - Director Boyd wished everyone a very happy new 
year and requested we all continue to conserve water. The entire community has 
done exceptionally well to conserve and even though we are experiencing rain, 
please continue to conserve. 

Director Boyd introduced Beverly Marshall, the new General Manager of the Sewer 
Authority. We are very excited to have her on board and she has hit the ground 
running. 

ORAL COMMENTS -

Beverly Marshall, thanked Director Boyd for his introduction. Mrs. Marshall is a 
new resident of Montara and has enjoyed getting to know the community. Beverly 
is not only looking forward to being one of the managers of an agency on the 
coast, but also to be a member of the community. Mrs. Marshall looks forward to 
being involved on many levels and thanks the MWSD Board for being very 
welcoming. 

MWSD Minutes 
7th, January 2016 

1 



PUBLIC HEARING - None 

CONSENT AGENDA -

1. Approve Minutes for Meeting of November 5, 2015 
2. Approve Financial Statements for November 2015. 
3. Approve Warrants for January 2016. 
4. Monthly Review of Current Investment Portfolio. 
5. Connection Permit Applications Received. 
6. Monthly Water Production Report for November 2015. 
7. Rain Report 
8. Solar Energy Report. 

Director Slater-Carter is requesting to have a PARS report on the consent 
agenda. As the outgoing Treasurer and a Board Member, Director Slater
Carter is again requesting to have a monthly report to be included in the 
Consent Agenda. 

Director Slater-Carter requested to have attached and included in the 
minutes a document she handed out this evening. The document is titled: 
Highlights from Vanguard's 2016 global economic and investment outlook. 
Director Slater-Carter reported the plan we have is not starting out very well. 
By the time you start deducting the fees and account fees, we are going to 
to have to be looking at adjusting the deposits to that account. Probably 
pretty soon. The only way to keep this District out of hot water is to fully fund 
it from day one. If we do not, we are going to go downhill and will be in a lot 
of trouble. The document mentioned above is attached to the minutes. 

Director Slater-Carter moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Director 
Harvey seconded the motion. 

All Directors were in favor and the motion passed 5 - 0. 

Director Boyd reported the agenda will be re-arranged and the next item 
discussed will be New Business, Item 1. 

NEW BUSINESS-

1. Discussion on Remodel Connection Fee for 570 Marine Blvd. 

General Manager Heldmaier reported the home owner Joe Loomis built his 
home in 1972. Now Mr. Loomis would like to add a shower to the downstairs 
bathroom. In addition to administrative fees, the District is asking for 
additional connection fees based on 2 fixture units for the shower of $935 X 
2. 

Connection fees are categorized as restricted funds and are dedicated to be 
used for capital improvements only. Mr. Loomis is questioning the fairness 

MWSD Minutes 
71h, January 2016 

2 



of the charges based on potential uses and suggests to base the collection 
of needed capital funds through volume based sewer service charges 
exclusively. 

After receipt of two letters in this regard from Mr. Loomis, the Board asked 
for a discussion on this item. Additionally, Mr. Loomis summarized his 
concerns in a third document. Legal Counsel is preparing a memo to the 
Board that will be available at the meeting addressing Mr. Loomis concerns. 

General Manager Heldmaier noted the District had gone through a growing 
period in the past decade. We acquired the water system and many 
changes were made to our policies. We are still catching up with the major 
step of adding the water system. My observation is we face now different 
challenges that we faced in the 80's and 90's particularly with remodels. 
We are now trying to streamline this process and work with the County of 
San Mateo. General Manager Heldmaier suggests to review and reconsider 
some of our policies. 

Director Harvey would like clarity on what the General Manager is 
recommending. 

General Manager Heldmaier is recommending specifically a simplification of 
our fee structures and permitting policies. 

Director Wilson noted Mr. Loomis has sent the Board a lot of material and 
wonders if the best approach is to ask the General Manager to come back 
and propose what the appropriate changes would be based on the feedback 
he has received from the community and include his own thoughts and 
come back to the Board with specific recommendations. 

Director Boyd agrees with this approach but would still like to hear what Mr. 
Loomis has to say along with Dave Schricker and Alex Handlers. Perhaps 
develop a small committee to sit down and discuss this issue. 

District Counsel Schricker complimented Mr. Loomis for raising the issues. 
he did and noted Mr. Loomis was very perceptive. The issues raised really 
relate to policies. Mr. Loomis raised the question regarding using fixture 
units in remodeling permits. This is an industry standardized method for 
determining weight and volume for particular fixtures that discharge into the 
system. With respect to using the fixture unit standard as a means by which 
volume and treatment strength are assigned to particular fixtures. In Mr. 
Loomis case, he wants to install a new shower and involves 2 fixtures with a 
rate of $1870.00 in which Mr. Loomis finds staggering. Our codes provide 
as many sewer agencies do, use the fixture unit standard with respect to 
sewer connections and that standard is established by the unified building 
code. Mr. Loomis feels this is not fair because it is not based on actual use. 
What is relevant is the demand that is placed upon the sewer system by the 

MWSD Minutes 
7th, January 2016 

3 



connection. The district must hold ready the facilities to receive, transmit 
and dispose of the sewage as measured by the fixtures as opposed by 
actual use. This has been held legal because the fixture constitutes a given 
potential maximum burden imposed upon the facilities. It is the potential that 
is relevant and has been reviewed by the courts as being valid. It 
recognizes that it is not precise, but the law does not require precision. 
The theory being that you do not know what the actual use is going to be 
but you do know how many fixture are out there and what they represent in 
potential capacity. 

Mr. Loomis referred to the case of Vespremi vs MWSD. That case dealt 
with an assessment district that was established by the District to provide for 
the expansion of the Sewer Authority Mid Coastside some years ago. The 
court decided the assessments that were against vacant parcels were 
invalid. 

In summary, the fixture unit is a valid methodology which is not precise, but 
the courts have viewed as valid. 

Director Huber reported after reading the letters from Mr. Loomis, he did 
some comparisons with other districts regarding permits. 

MWSD charges for a Permit, Administration Fee, Inspection Fee and Fixture 
units at $935.00 per unit. On top of that, San Mateo County Permit, filing fee 
and plumbing permit. It comes up to approximately $3500.00. 

El Granada Community Service District do no permitting, but one must go to 
the County and pay $380.00 for adding a shower to a bathroom. 

The City of Half Moon Bay base on the value of the project. Director Huber 
suggested adding a shower to a half bath at approximately $5000.00. The 
City of Half Moon Bay reported the permit would be from $185.00 to 
$200.00. Director Huber asked if he was required to get a permit from 
CCWD. CCWD reported if they needed to do a plan check, the fee would 
be $150.00 and smaller projects such as adding a shower to a half bath 
would not need a formal plan check. The purpose of the plan check is to see 
if the water line is properly sized for the project. If it is, there is no additional 
fee. So a project such as Joe's in the City of Half Moon Bay would cost 
from $185.00 to $350.00. 

Next, DirectorHuber checked with the City of Pacifica and they gave him a 
rough estimate of $500.00. Then he spoke with NCCWD and was told they 
do not get involved in a project unless it requires upgrading the water 
supply. If the water supply was needed to get upgraded, there would be a 
$300 application fee, $2100 deposit towards what they would have to do to 
increase the line and a storage and transmission fee which is approximately 
$3500. But a project such as Joe's would be about $500. 

MWSD Minutes 
7th, January 2016 

4 



Director Huber noted, some points to consider in all of these jurisdictions, 
there are inspections for completed work to make sure they have compiled 
with appropriate codes. From what I can tell we are the only agency that has 
a redundant process of Application, Permit and Inspection with associated 
cost to the customer. Any additional burden on the sewer system will be 
compensated through the fees associated with water usage. By making the 
project cost much more than any agency, we are basically setting up a 
stage for non-compliance. By making project costs significantly more than 
other jurisdictions reputation as the Montara Water and Sanitary District. We 
are here to serve our rate payers, not to impose fees that are unduly 
burdensome. Additionally, we do not have the resources to monitor and 
inforce compliance. I looked at the budget and inspection fees were 
budgeted for $4500 and year to date it is $1300. I also looked at remodel 
fees and we budgeted $7000 and year to date we are over that and almost 
at $12,000. Director Huber is proposing to have the General Manager 
bring back to the Board, a proposal to revise our permit process, to have the 
cost be in line with other agencies on the coast, eliminate redundant permit 
and inspection fees where there are existing sewer and water supplies 
currently servicing the property and finally to address the need to make sure 
the water and sewer laterals are adequate for post construction usage. 

Director Boyd reminded the Board of the interesting differences of our 
local neighboring agencies. We have a very fine grained capacity 
mechanism that is place. Director Boyd would be interested in what 
agencies are charging over the hill as well. 

Director Huber noted in the current 2015 uniform plumbing code fixtures 
have changed dramatically. Efficiencies of dishwashers, toilets, washing 
machines, and shower heads have changed dramatically. Are we using an 
antiquated approach by using the 1991 uniform plumbing code? 

General Manager Heldmaier understands this approach but we are 
changing our fixture unit counts with the newest uniform plumbing codes. 

Director Slater-Carter suggested to hear from Mr. Handlers and Mr. Loomis 
at this time. 

Mr. Handlers noted conceptually, what your connection fee does is to allow 
the district a way of recouping costs for your infrastructure. There are a lot 
of different approaches to this. In your case this is legally defensible and 
makes sense. Nothing is perfect and this is one of those cases that makes 
us think about revisiting policies. 

Joe Loomis, a Moss Beach resident, appreciates all the comments tonight 
and would like to summarize all his points to the public: 

I am coming from a position in asking the Board to look at the model they 
are using and determine whether or not if possible can be made more 

MWSD Minutes 
7th, January 2016 

5 



equitable. Especially in a case like his where it would not be putting more of 
a load on the system and the cost of the project is nominal. The fees from 
the District are 5 times the cost of the project. My 4 points are the following: 

First Point: 

From Mr. Loomis's perspective, the additional shower stall will have 
no additional impact on the sewer system. The District's rational for the 
additional fee is that it is a potential of more water to be used and more 
water going down to the treatment plant to be treated. In my case, I live 
alone and will not be using any additional water other than what I am using 
at present. Additional people not the shower stall would cause more usage. 
If more water is used, that additional water will be paid for and the sewer 
service charge will go up. We pay considerable charges already. Mr. Loomis 
was told the current remodel connection fee will be used for capital 
improvements and is only charged to people that remodel. It seems unfair or 
equitable to charge certain customers for these capital improvements when 
these capital improvements do not benefit everyone in the district, although 
not everyone pays for these. Mr. Loomis would like the District to focus on 
policy and fairness and re-examine what the District is doing. 

Mr. Loomis noted Article 130 of the California Constitution states: 
"Fees or charges based on potential or future use of a service are not 
permitted." 

Second Point: 

Mr. Loomis requests the District to charge everyone on the basis of actual 
usage. Can this be done, I don't know but this is my idea to make it fair for 
everyone. 

Third Point: 

This goes back to my analogy with respect to PG&E. PG& E can adequately 
finance its operations and infrastructure based on charges of customers 
only using actual kilowatts of electricity used. Our highway system is built in 
part by taxes on gallons of fuel purchased which is proportional to your 
actual use of the highways. People do not buy into the highway use or pay 
a connection fee to the highway. 

Fourth Point: 

This goes back to the Vespremi case and I will leave that up to the scholars 
to discuss. Again, this indicates there should be some kind of fairness and 
perhaps this could be re-examined in this case. 

Mr. Carl May, Montara resident noted a lot of people in this town, as I do, 
believe they are co-owners in this District. We are undefined, we have our 

MWSD Minutes 
71h, January 2016 

6 



own water supply. Some people think that somewhere there is this magic 
spigot that will keep providing all this water. Right at this current time the 
entire California water status is insane. You are dealing with a finite amount 
of water here. You can see things clearly because of that. You can size your 
district because of that and you know what the cost of providing that water is 
and you know what the cost of taking away the waste is because we are 
nicely a unit. I am not up here to suggest that fees are too high or too low, I 
am suggesting they are to be applied in a very businesslike manner and for 
this District to face the reality of the water you have to provide for additional 
permits that are going to be allowed. When you give somebody a permit for 
a certain amount of capacity, it is beside the point. A permit is actually using 
that full capacity at that time. You have obligated the District to provide that 
capacity that is permitted by that permit at some time in the future. You must 
build your infrastructure based on what you have permitted, based on that 
location you have just permitted. Maybe things can be fairer in doing these 
inspections and some of the other things. I am not up here to argue about 
that. I am up here to argue the fact that the infrastructure must be provided 
according to what amount of water you have to provide and you must cover 
the costs of the Districts, especially the capital costs. Going just by water 
rate does not cover your capital expenditures, or plant. The plant that all of 
us have been paying for quite dearly over all these years. The new people 
taping into our system must pay their fair share. I will point out that PG&E 
gets enormous subsidies beyond what people pay for electricity. A little 
District needs to think about all it has to pay for. Let's be fair to people and 
look at what your costs are in this district and charge accordingly. 

District Counsel Schricker responded to Mr. Loomis with his reference to the 
Constitution. That is a clause that is contained in proposition 218. Once you 
issue the permit, you agree to provide the services. That is legal. 

Director Boyd would like to see more conversation on this subject along with 
additional water conservation possibilities and recycling water. 

Director Wilson would like to establish under the GM's management a 
committee on this subject. 

Director Slater-Carter thanked Mr. Loomis for bringing this up to the Board. 
Director Slater-Carter additionally thanked Dave Schricker and Alex 
Handlers for their comments and Director Huber for all his research on the 
subject. 

Director Slater-Carter noted there are considerations we need to keep in 
mind during this discussion. For this District, water and sewer are 
separate financial centers. We do not mix the revenue. The revenue we 
have some discretion on is from property tax and cell tower receipts. I 
would note the property taxes are all under prop 13. Joes house that 
was built in the 70's has a very low pre prop 13 tax base as opposed to 
the newer homes in the community that have a higher property tax rate. 

MWSD Minutes 
7th, January 2016 

7 



Granada Sanitary District and Half Moon Bay have assessments for the 
SAM plant on every single property. We do not have that, because of the 
Vespremi case, we opted not to do it and opted to have fixture unit and 
building fees go into accounts so if we needed to buy additional capacity, 
we had the funds to do it. Every new fixture unit adds additional demand 
that takes away from the reserve we have at SAM. In addition, we have 13 
pump stations. These are a lot of costs to this District that other districts 
do not have. We have an entirely capital needs. When we are talking 
about Inspection, Administration and Permit fees, this is a different 
discussion. But a fixture unit fee we should not confuse with other districts. 
Our District is very different. Asking who pays what is a critical question. We 
are trying to be fair and cover the financial needs of the district now and the 
capital needs in the future. 

Director Slater-Carter thanked Mr. Loomis for bringing this subject up to the 
Board and would like this District to work with Alex Handlers to see what 
other Districts are doing. These are Director Slater-Carters comments and 
considerations she would like brought to a committee. Director Slater-Carter 
suggested to have this item as a standing agenda item. General Manager 
Heldmaier suggested instead of having as standing agenda item to have as 
a priority item in the strategic plan. 

Director Wilson would like to see a committee formed tonight and give them 
the time to look into this issue and report back to the Board. 

The committee is as follows: 

OLD BUSINESS -

Director Slater-Carter 
Director Boyd 
General Manager Heldmaier 
Alex Handlers, Financial Consultant 

1. Review and Possible Action Concerning OpenGovernment 
Online Platform. 

General Manager Heldmaier reported at the last meeting the Board received 
a presentation from OpenGov.com about their software product. The web 
application visualizes financial information for citizens, like general ledger, 
chart of accounts, current year spending and balance sheet. 

Opengov has submitted a quote for services to MWSD. Cost for the 
software use would be a $4000 per year, with an additional one time setup 
fee of $1000. 

Director Slater-Carter reported it is important to have our financials 
transparent for the public. We want to make the complexities we do more 
understandable to the public and we can do this with Opengov. They can 
work with our existing accounting firm. 

MWSD Minutes 
7th, January 2016 

8 



Director Slater-Carter moved to enter in an agreement with Opengov for a 
three years. Director Harvey seconded the motion. 

Director Huber has reasons why the District should not enter in an 
agreement with Opengov: 

We spent in the vicinity of $18,000 for a Strategic Plan which included 
Board member workshops, two public workshops and interviews with public 
officials and the public. Director Huber carefully reviewed the 2015 strategic 
that was approved by this Board and there is no mention of an issue of 
transparency or a need for a good need for a good system to visualize 
financial information for citizens, the stated reason for engaging with a 
private vendor Opengov. The work plan associated with the 2015 Strategic 
Plan list goals. The priority ranking associated with the timeline for 
implementation. There is no mention of negotiating with a private vendor for 
a software package addressing transparency issue by the General Manager 
who is the person in charge of implementing this strategic plan. We should 
stay focused on the priorities outlined in the 2015 Strategic Plan as the 
associated work plan. Engaging with Opengov. Only serves to dilute our 
Strategic Plan objectives and undermines its value as a blueprint to follow. 
The whole process undermines the proper rolls of the Directors and the 
General Manager. The General Manager is responsible for coming to the 
Board with a recommendation on why we need to increase our level of 
transparency or is directed by the Board to address the problem, in this 
case transparency. This is then to be followed up by the General Manager 
and staff with a recommendation listing anticipated costs associated with it, 
where it fits into the existing budget. The General Manager is also 
responsible in where this fits into the Strategic Plan and what alternatives 
have been investigated. All these steps have been eliminated. We have a 
fundamental obligation to conduct MWSD business in an open and 
transparent manner. Reserving confidentiality to those areas as outlined in 
the Brown Act. We also have a fundamental obligation to make public 
records available. We do not have an obligation to do research at the 
insistence of anyone in the publics sphere, this is their obligation. Although it 
is a nice thing to provide detailed analysis and maybe desire to further 
District goals, it is by no means mandatory. We already have a good system 
to visualize financial information for rate payers and other interested citizens 
as a result of Peter from Maze and Associates work. We all agree it was a 
major improvement providing easy to understand chart of accounts, current 
year spending and balance sheet information. Although it doesn't 
automatically provide detail general ledger information that can be easily be 
provided if requested. To achieve transparency, we are better served to 
make sure up to date information is always available on the MWSD website 
and provide the General Manager and his staff the tools to do this. I think 
we have made great strides in updating our website in that it is easy to 
understand and to use. Our focus and vigilance should now be on making 
sure that it is up to date and accurate. The contract from this vendor 
requires an extensive list of requirements of the district that will take up 

MWSD Minutes 
71h, January 2016 

9 



management, staff and outside accountant time. This expense is both up 
front and has a onetime component and is ongoing. There is no analysis of 
the cost to the district or the general labor hours to provide this. There is no 
indications on labor hours that will be needed to be devoted to train staff. 
Where in the budget is money allocated for this? This is an important issue. 
There is mention in the contract of hardware requirements, but no detailed 
listing of what they are. Without this, we can't determine if our present 
computer equipment is adequate. We do not know if an expensive upgrade 
will be required. There is also the issue of vendor costs. The initial $5000 is 
for the software package that automatically renews each year unless there 
is a 30 day minimum notice given. In the contract, there is no mention of the 
degree of support they will provide and at what cost. There is no mention in 
the contract of what training will be provided and at what cost. It is not 
uncommon for support services costs vastly exceed the software package 
cost. The contract also states that Opengov shall have the right to use and 
display customers logos and trade names for marketing and promotional 
purposes in connection with Opengov's website and marketing materials 
subject to customer's trademark usage guidelines as provided to Opengov. 
Not only do we not want to give them the unilateral right to this, it may not 
be legal. Remember the problem we had getting information on what other 
Districts use PARS? They would not give us a list stating confidentiality 
issues. For the reasons outlined, I am opposed to contracting with Opengov. 
I think we are better served to have the General Manager concentrate on a 
timely distribution of the packet to the Board members and make sure it is 
up on our website prior to meetings. 

Director Wilson is not inherently opposed to this but has been the receiver 
of many software salespeople come to me and there is yet to be one that 
has been as simple as advertised. Director Wilson shares the desire for 
transparency with Director Slater-Carter, but has been down the line to 
many times. Opengovs presentation had more questions than answers 
particularly on a 3 year contract. Director Wilson would have been more 
impressed if Brendan had negotiated with us on the contract and gave the 
district a way out if it had become too burdensome. Director Wilson is 
nervous regarding a 3 year contract. The question is regarding the burden 
on the staff and what happens if it doesn't function as advertised. If it meets 
the goals as Kathryn is suggesting, then I am all for it. 

Director Slater-Carter agrees with Director Wilson, but believes it is 
important for this Board to take a leadership role in the community in terms 
of our finances. For instance, I have heard many times that our water rates 
are the highest in the country. I want people to know where their property 
taxes are going, what their operations fees are and how this district works. 
The movement in the Special District Association and the courts is toward 
more and more transparency. Director Slater-Carter believes by taking a 
leadership role would be very important. This District was the first on the 
coast to have its own website. We have a history of taking a leadership 
position. There are quite a few cities that have signed and used their 

MWSD Minutes 
71h, January 2016 

10 



services. In looking at them, I was impressed about the information we 
could get from this service. 

Director Harvey noted the Board had agreed to pursue this. Director Harvey 
questioned General Manager Heldmaier as to his thoughts regarding this 
service and if it would save staff time. General Manager Heldmaier did not 
believe it would save staff time, however if it is set up and on auto pilot and 
all we need to use is one hour a month from Maze to upload the data, I feel 
it is a good price. I am concerned about additional time on the staff 
regarding this. If this is not the case, then I believe it could be a good 
service. 

Director Boyd feels this is a nominal fee for what would be a website 
enhancement. We asked many questions the night of the presentation and 
Brendan's answers that night made this seem to be a very straight forward 
data based program. For the money and our ability at some point to say 
this is not working and stop seems worth it to me. This would be a 
tremendous help during budget time. We can search in the meantime for 
feedback from other agencies using this service, but I feel it is worth it. 

Director Wilson suggested to give them 90 days and have the option to get 
out of the contract. 

General Manager Heldmaier will be tracking the hours Maze will be using. 

Director Slater-Carter reported they already have a contract with San Mateo 
County Harbor District. 

Director Wilson suggested if the General Manager at any time found this 
service burdensome, he could bring the concerns back to the Board for 
further discussion. 

The motion passed unanimously 5 -0. 

2. Receive Update on Development of Multi-Year Water Connection 
Fee Payment Program. 

General Manager Heldmaier reported at the last meeting the Board received 
a brief presentation on this topic and decided to move the discussion to a 
following meeting. 

Alex Handlers with Bartle Wells gave a brief presentation of the details on 
the suggested program. 

Director Wilson questioned who is responsible for the outstanding lien if the 
house is sold? Can the new owner request that lien be paid off? District 
Counsel Schricker responded we could probably provide a regulation 
requirement for that. There would have to be an ordinance regarding this. 

MWSD Minutes 
7th, January 2016 

11 



I would have to do some research on this subject. If you are looking for a 
voluntary approach that does not mandate you have to connect you will 
have more flexibility in the agreement we. 

Director Slater-Carter suggests just as you would do with mortgages, you 
could do a prepayment. If we allow prepayment, this would allow the 
homeowner to have the flexibility to pay off sooner or upon the sale of the 
property, it would become negotiable as far as the buyer to request the lien 
to be paid off with no penalty for prepayment or allow the new buyer to 
assume the debt and have the same opportunity to prepay as well. Director 
Slater-Carter recommends to charge interest even at 2%. Director Slater
Carter is concerned about the gift of public funds. Perhaps offering a 0% 
loan if people destroy the onsite well .Director Slater-Carter noted, most of 
the people she has talked to want to tie into the system but keep the wells to 
irrigate their yards. General Manager Heldmaier noted the destruction of the 
wells is regulated by San Mateo County and every well specifically put in 
after 1989 right now has to be back filled according to San Mateo County 
Health Standards if they want to connect to the system. This adds an 
additional cost to the conversion that is not included in our chart. 

Mr. Schricker noted what we are looking at are 3 issues, length of term of 
the agreement, interest charge and issue or payment of any outstanding 
balance upon sale. With those, we could probable come back to you with 
something for the Board to review. 

General Manager Heldmaier questioned Mr. Schricker if we could issue a 0 
percent interest rate or is this considered a gift of public funds. Mr. Schricker 
noted the Board has some discretion. As long as there is a rational basis 
for a rate you decided it would be legally supportable as a legislative matter. 
To suggest a O rate on the basis that it would be an incentive to make that 
connection. On the other side, you have the authority to mandate without 
an agreement those connections. You have never wanted to go there. 

Director Boyd is really glad to have come this far in being able to offer 
connections to the system. Director Boyd noted we should not forget the 
cost of living increases. Director Boyd will not support anything that is · 
designed to make money. There is no need for this. Our goal is to get 
everyone on the system we are legally allowed to serve. This is what we 
have worked so hard for. We have a lot of flexibility here. I am fine with O % 
and I would be fine with 2%. I want to help people who want to sign up to do 
so. 

Director Slater-Carter would like to see post cards sent out to the well 
owners and information posted on the web that we are offering a zero 
interest rate for 2016. After 2016 we are looking at a fixed interest rate that 
will be justified by what our loan interest rates are. This may encourage 
more people to sign up in 2016. 

MWSD Minutes 
7th, January 2016 

12 



Director Wilson recommends to revisit this at a future meeting knowing the 
Board is in agreement in the first year (2016) the offer of a zero interest loan 
with a 10 year cap with a prepayment option will be offered to well owners. 
District Counsel will follow up with a legal document to guide the Board to 
the legal structure of a contract. 

General Manager Heldmaier would like to have a public meeting to inform 
the well owners. 

NEW BUSINESS-

1. Discussion on Remodel Connection Fee for 570 Marine Blvd. 

This item was discussed earlier in the meeting. 

2. Review and Possible Action Concerning Change to Electronic 
Distribution of Board Packets to Directors. 

General Manager Heldmaier reported staff is currently seeking ways to 
improve services and at the same time increase internal efficiencies. Board 
packets will be scanned in searchable pdf format, recent years packets 
converted to searchable format, and packets presented in a user friendly 
multi-link format that allows download of individual agenda items. 

Director Slater-Carter suggested issuance of I-Pads to Directors and 
General Manager and exclusive electronic distribution of the agenda. 
The overall cost for 6 iPad Pros with a slight discount is around $6000. The 
cost would be offset according to the calculation after about 18 months. 
Additional savings can be expected through other voluminous District 
documents that are copied by the District for directors throughout the year. 

If the board would be inclined to issue electronic readers, staff would 
develop, and ask for the adoption of, a simple policy that clarifies ownership 
of the device (district), surplus of units, and allowed uses, etc. 

It was noted Director Boyd would not be gaining any personal gain from this 
purchase. 

There was a discussion regarding policies and procedures for the use of the 
devices including emailing. 

District Counsel Schricker will be developing clear policies for guidance in 
the use of the devices for the Board. 

Director Slater-Carter moved to have a proposal on a simple policy that 
clarifies ownership of the device (District), surplus of units, and allowed 

MWSD Minutes 
7th, January 2016 

13 



uses, email uses, insurance which includes loss of the devise and other 
restrictions for the next meeting. Director Harvey seconded the motion. 

Director Boyd suggested to have a support policy for the devise. 

All Directors are in favor and the motion and the motion carried 5 - 0. 

3. Review and Possible Action Concerning Appointment of Board 
Officers and Committee Assignments for 2016. 

Director Boyd stated it had been an honor to serve as the President of the 
Board over the past year. We have grown into a team that is doing really 
good work and is very proud to be a part of this organization. 

Director Slater-Carter nominated Jim Harvey for president. 

Director Harvey accepted the nomination. Director Harvey has served on 
the board for many years and turned down the presidency previously and 
feels this is a good time to accept. 

Director Harvey suggested Director Wilson as President Pro-Tern. 

After a brief discussion, Director Wilson accepted the roll of President Pro
Tem. 

Director Slater-Carter would like to become Secretary. 

Director Huber would like to become Treasurer. 

Director Slater-Carter moved to approve the assignments as stated below: 

Jim Harvey 
Dwight Wilson 
Kathryn Slater-Carter 
Bill Huber 
Scott Boyd 

President 
President Pro tern 
Secretary 
Treasurer 
Director 

All Directors were in favor and the motion passed 5 - 0. 

Director Harvey at this time would like to step down from his appointment of 
SAM Representative. Director Harvey nominates Director.Slater-Carter for 
this appointment. 

Director Huber believes the appointment should be either Director Wilson or 
himself. It should not always be deferring back to the most established 
board members. 

MWSD Minutes 
7th, January 2016 

14 



Director Wilson agrees with Director Huber. This is an opportunity for 
movement in leadership. This is not about the good work, it is about the 
influx of other ideas as you rotate. The foundation you have put together is 
solid. Director Wilson recommends that Director Slater-Carter and Director 
Huber go to the meetings together. Although Director Wilson admires the 
work that has been done by the previous representatives, it is a good time 
for rotation. 

Director Slater-Carter would like to see Director Boyd remain. We are at the 
end of a critical point that we have been working on for about the last 10 
years. SAM Board is always opened to taking input from the audience. You 
do not have to sit on the board to bring in new ideas. 

Director Slater-Carter moved to extend the meeting for 1 hour at maximum. 
Director Harvey seconded the motion. 

All were in favor and the motion passed unanimously. 

After a brief discussion, the Board agreed on Director Slater-Carters 
appointment. Director Huber will become the alternate. 

Attached to the minutes is a copy of the Board Officers, Agency 
Representatives and Committee Assignments for 2016 information sheet. 

REPORTS 
1. Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside Meetings (Harvey) -

Director Harvey reported: There will be a Recycled Water Committee 
meeting on Monday and a SAM Board Meeting later this month. 
The new General Manager has introduced herself earlier this evening and 
look forward to working with her in the future. 

2. MidCoast Community Council Meeting (Slater-Carter) - None 
3. CSDA Report (Slater-Carter) -None 
4. CCWD, NCCWD Committee Report - (Harvey, Huber) None 
5. Attorney's Report (Schricker) -District Counsel Schricker reported the 

ACWA and State Association of Counties and League of Cities have 
submitted a proposed initiative to the Attorney General for preparation of 
title and summary. The initiative would be an amendment to the Constitution 
for more flexibility for local water and sewer agencies in the establishment 
of rates including authorization in establishing a low income rate. From a 
legal standpoint, this has always been problematic. It has not been finalized 
yet but is pending. 

6. Directors Report - None 
7. General Manager's Report (Held maier) - General Manager Heldmaier 

Reported the District will have to take a massive tree down that has been 
damaging to the Wagner Well. This will be very costly but if we do not take it 
down, it will damage the well more. 

FUTURE AGENDAS-

MWSD Minutes 
7th, January 2016 

15 



REGULAR MEETING ENDED at 11:25 P.M. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Signed ____________________ _ 
Secretary 

Approved on the 3rd March, 2016 

Signed ____________________ _ 

MWSD Minutes 
7th, January 2016 

President 

16 



MARKETS & ECONOMY 

Highlights from Vanguard's 2016 global 
economic and investment outlook 
DECEMBER 04, 2015 

Vanguard's economic team, led by Global Chief Economist Joe Davis, Ph.D., projects 
what various market and economic events the coming year may bring. along with the 
challenges and opportunities for investors. Their study spans the general global 
economic environment, inflation, monetary policies, interest rates, bond and stock 
markets, and asset allocation considerations. 

TEXT SIZE: A A A 

COMMENT 

E-MAIL 

SHARE 

SUBSCRIBE 

PRINT 

Read their global market outlook summary be/ow. and find their in-depth analysis in the comprehensive research 
paper. Vanguard's economic and investment outlool<. 

Global economy: Structural convergence 

World economic growth will remain frustratingly fragile. As in Vanguard's past Economic and Investment 
Outlooks, we view a world not in secular stagnation but, rather, in the midst of structural deceleration. Vanguard's 
non-consensus view is that the global economy will ultimately converge over time toward a more balanced, 
unlevered, and healthier equilibrium, once the debt-deleveraging cycle in the global private sector is complete. 

Most significantly, the high-growth "goldilocks" era enjoyed by many emerging markets over !he past 15 years is 
over. Indeed, we anticipate "sustained fragility"for global trade and manufacturing, given China's ongoing 
rebalanclng and until structural. business-model adjustment occurs across emerging markets. We do not 
anticipate a Chinese recession in the near term, but China's investment slowdown represents the greatest 
downside risk. 

The growth outlook for developed markets, on the other hand, remains modest, but steady. As a result, the 
developed economies of the United States and Europe should contribute !heir highest relative percentage to 
global growth In nearly two decades. 

Now at full employment, the U.S. economy is unlikely to accelerate in 2016, yet is on course to experience its 
longest expansion in nearly a century, underscoring our continuing view of ils resiliency. Indeed, our long-held 
estimate of 2% U.S. trend growth is neither "neW" nor "subpar' when one both accounts for structurally lower 
population growth and removes the consumer-debt-fueled bOost to growth between 1980 and the global financial 
crisis that began In 2007. Our Interpretation fully explains the persistent drop in U.S. unemployment despite 
below-average economic growth. 

Inflation: Secular deflationary bias waning 

As we have discussed in past outlooks. policymakers are llkely to continue struggling to achieve 2% inflation over 
!he medium term. As of December 2015, however, some of the most pernicious deflationary forces (commodity 
prices, labor "slack") are beginning to moderate cyclicalty. Inflation trends In !he developed markets should firm 
up, and even begin to turn, In 2016. That said, achieving more than 2% core inflation across developed markets 
could take several years and will ultimately require a more vibrant global rebound. 

A deflationary threat will likely continue to hover over the world. In aggregate, reflationary monetary policies wlll 
continue to counteract the disinflationary drag of post-financial crisis global deleveraging. As suggested In 
Vanguard's past outlooks, recent consumer price Inflation remains near generational lows and, in several major 
economies, Is below the targeted inflation rate. 

Key drivers of U.S. consumer Inflation generally point to price stability, with core Inflation in the 1%-3% range 
over the next several years. Nascent wage pressures should build In !he United States In 2015 and beyond, but 
low commodity prices and the prospects of a strong U.S. dollar should keep inflation expectations anchored. In 
Europe, deflation remains a significant risk that will not soon disappear. 

Monetary policy and interest rates: A 'dovish tightening' by a lonely Fed 

Convergence in global growth dynamics will continue to necessitate and generate divergence In policy 
responses. 

The U.S. Federal Reserve is likely to pursue a "dovish tightening" cycle that removes some of the unprecedented 
accommodation exercised due to the "exigent circumstances" of the global financial crisis. In our view, there is a 
high likelihood of an extended pause In interest rates at, say, 1 %, that opens the door for balance-sheet 
normalization and leaves the inflation-adjusted federal funds rate negative through 2017. 

Elsewhere, further monetaiy stimulus is highly likely. The European Central Bank and Bank of Japan are both 
likely to pursue additional quantitative easing and, as we noted in our 2015 outlook, are unlikely to raise rates this 
decade. This view is another potential factor !hat could result in a pause for the federal funds rate this business 
cycle. 

Chinese policymakers have arguably the most difficult task of engineering a "soft landing" by lowering real 
borrowing costs and the real exchange rate without accelerating capital outflows. The margin of error is fairly 
slim, and policymakers should aggressively stimulate the economy this year In an attempt to stabilize below
target growth. 



Investment outlook: Still conservative 

Vanguard's outlook for global stocks and bonds remains the most guarded since 2006. given fairty high equity 

valuations and the low-interest-rate environment. We continue to view the global low-rate environment as 

s,;c::ilar, not cyclical. 

Bonds 

The return outlook for fixed income remains positive, yet muted. In line with our past outlooks, our long-term 

estimate of the equilibrium federal funds rate remains anchored near 2.5% and below that of the Fed's "dot 

plots:·1 As a result, our "fair value" estimate for the benchmark 10-year U.S. Treasury yield still resides at about 

2.5%, even with a Fed liftoff. As we stated in our 2015 outlook. even in a rising rate environment, duration lilts are 

not without risks, given global inflation dynamics and our expectations for monetary policy. 

Stocks 

After several years of suggesting that low economic growth need not equate with poor equity returns, our 

medium-run outlook for global equities remains guarded in the 6%-8% range. That said, our long-term oullook is 

not bearish and can even be viewed as constructive when adjusted for the low-rate environment. 

Our long-standing concern over "froth" in certain past high-performing segments of the capital markets has been 

marginally tempered by the general relative underperformance of those market segments in 2015. Despite our 

more muted outlook for stocks, the ongoing U.S. equity bull market is likely to persist for some time. 

Asset a/location 

Going forward, the global crosscurrents of not-cheap valuations, structural deceleration, and {the exiting from or 

insufficiency of) near-0% short-term rates imply that the investment environment is likely to be more challenging 

and volatile. Even so, Vanguard firmly believes that the principles of portfolio construction remain unchanged, 

given the expected risk-return trade-off among asset classes. investors with an appropriate level of discipline. 

diversificalion. and patience are likely to be rewarded over the next decade with fair inflation-adjusted returns. 

1 "Dot plots" refer to charts published by the Federal Open Market Committee {FOMC) in the Summary of 
Economic Projections that show where the FOMC participants, who are kept anonymous, think the federal 
funds rate should be over the next few years. 

**Indexes used in our historical calculations 

The long-term returns for our hypothetical portfolios are based on data for the appropriate market Indexes 
through September 2015. We chose these benchmarks to provide the best history possible, and we split the 
global allocations to align with Vanguard's guidance In constructing diversified portfolios. 

U.S. bonds: Standard & Poor's High Grade Corporate Index from 1926 through 1968; Citigroup High Grade 
Index from 1969 through 1972; Lehman Brothers U.S. Long Credit AA Index from 1973 through 1975; and 
Barclays U.S. Aggregate Bond Index thereafter. 

Ex-U.S. bonds: Citigroup World Government Bond Ex-U.S. Index from 1985 to January 1989 and Barclays 
Global Aggregate ex-USD Index thereafter. 

Global bonds: Before 1985, 100% U.S. bonds, as defined above. After 1985, 80% U.S. bonds and 20% ex
U.S. bonds, rebalanced monthly. 

U.S. equities: S&P 90 Index from January 1926 through March 1957; S&P 500 Index from March 1957 
through 1974; Dow Jones WIishire 5000 Index from 1975 through April 2005; and MSC! US Broad Market 
Index thereafter. 

Ex-u.s. equities: MSC! World ex USA Index from January 1970 through 1987 and MSC! Ail Country World ex 
USA Index thereafter. 

Global equities: Before 1970, 100% U.S. equities, as defined above. After 1970, 70% U.S. equities and 30% 
ex-u.s. equities, rebalanced monthly. 

The asset-return distributions shown here represent Vanguard's view on the potential range of risk 
premiums that may occur over the next ten years; such long-term projections are not Intended to be 
extrapolated Into a short-term view. These potential outcomes for long-term investment returns are 
generated by the Vanguard Capital Markets Model® (VCMM-see the description In the appendix) and reflect 
the collective perspective of our Investment Strategy Group. The expected risk premiums-and the 
uncertainty surrounding those expectations-are among a number of qualitative and quantitative inputs 
used In Vanguard's investment methodology and portfolio construction process. 

IMPORTANT: The projections or other information generated by the VCMM regarding the 
likelihood of various investment outcomes are hypothetical in nature, do not reflect actual 
investment results, and are not guarantees of future results. Distribution of return outcomes 
from the VCMM, derived from 10,000 simulations for each modeled asset class. Simulations as of 
September 30, 2015. Results from the model may vary with each use and over time. 

Notes: 

• All investing is subject to risk, including the possible loss of the money you invest. 

• The projections or other information generated by the Vanguard Capital Markets Model regarding the 
likelihood of various investment outcomes are hypothetical In nature. do not reflect actual investment results. 
and are not guarantees of future results. VCMM results will val)' with each use and over time. The VCMM 

projections are based on a statistical analysis of historical data. Future returns may behave differently from the 

historical patterns captured in the VCMM. More important, the VCMM may be underestimating extreme 

negative scenarios unobserved in the historical period on which the model estimation is based. The VCMM is 

a proprietary financial simulation tool developed and maintained by Vanguard investment Strategy Group. The 



model forecasts distributions of future returns for a wide array of broad asset classes. Those asset classes 

include U.S. and international equity markets, several maturities of the U.S. Treasury and corporate fixed 

income markets, international fixed income markets, U.S. money markets, commodities, and certain 

altemative investment strategies. The theoretical and empirical foundation for the Vanguard Capital Markets 

Model is thal the returns of various asset classes reflect the compensation investors require for bearing 

different types of systematic risk (beta). At the core of the model are estimates of the dynamic statistical 

relationship between risk factors and asset returns. obtained from statistical analysis based on available 

monthly financial and economic data from as early as 1960. Using a system of estimated equations. the model 

then applies a Monte Carlo simulation method to project the estimated interrelationships among risk factors 

and asset classes as well as uncertainty and randomness over time. The model generates a large set of 

simulated outcomes for each asset class over several time horizons. Forecasts are obtained by computing 

measures of central tendency in these simulations. Results produced by the tool will vary with each use and 

over time. The primary value of the VCMM is in its application to analyzlng potential client portfolios. VCMM 

asset-class forecasts-comprising distributions of expected returns, volatilities, and correlations-are key to 

the evaluation of potential downside risks, various risk-return tradeoffs, and the diversification benefits of 

various asset classes. Although central tendencies are generated in any return distribution, Vanguard stresses 

that focusing on the full range of potential outcomes for the assets considered is the most effective way to use 

VCMM output. The VCMM seeks to represent the uncertainty in the forecast by generating a wide range of 

potential outcomes. It is Important to recognize that the VCMM does not Impose "normality" on the return 

distributions, but rather is influenced by the so-called fat tails and skewness in the empirical distribution of 

modeled asset-class returns. Within the range of outcomes, individual experiences can be quite different, 

underscoring the varied nature of potential future paths. 

• Past performance is no guarantee of future returns. 

• Investments in bond funds are subject to interest rate, credit. and inflation risk. Foreign investing involves 

additional risks, including currency fluctuations and political uncertainty. 

• Diversification does not ensure a profit or protect against a loss In a declining market. There is no guarantee 

that any particular asset allocation or mix of funds will meet your investment objectives or provide you with a 

given level of income. The performance of an index is not an exact representation of any particular investment, 

as you cannot invest directly in an index. 

• Stocks of companies in emerging markets are generally more risky than stocks of companies in developed 

countries. U.S. government backing of Treasury or agency securities applies only to the underlying securities 

and does not prevent price fluctuations. Investments that concentrate on a relatively narrow market sector face 

the risk of higher price volatility. 

COMMENT I E-MAIL I SHARE I SUBSCRIBE PRINT 

Vanguard funds not held in a brokerage account are held by The Vanguard Group, Inc., and are not protected by SIPC. Brokerage assets are held by 

Vanguard Brokerage Services, a division of Vanguard Marketing Corporation, member FINRA and SIPC 

© 1995-2016 The Vanguard Group, Inc. All rights reserved. Vanguard Marketing Corporation, Distributor of the Vanguard Funds. Your use of this 

site signifies that you accept our terms and conditions of USE;, 

Security I Technical support I Mutual fund prospectuses I Exchange-traded fund (ETF) prospectuses I Variable annuity prospectuses I Careers I Mobile app I Social media 

Feedback 



MRTLE WELLS ASSOCIATES 
1:-.: DI rt , I>! I'-,. I l't d H IC l"IN ,\N ( I \D\' l :.O d l~'i 

• Background 

• Water Connection Fees 

• Payment Program Options 

• Preliminary Recommendations 

• Legal Authority 

------------------

2 



B cg 
• District's service area inclu :Jes a number of properties served by private wells 

,.. A number of these properties had to install wells during prior moratorium on new 
connections to the water system 

,. Rough estimate of 300 private wells (difference between water & sewer accounts) with 
100 of these wells within the urban/rural zoned boundary eligible for District service 

,. Properties with wells draw water from same aquifer yet do not contribute toward long
term water supply reliability 

, These properties also pay for operations, repair, and replacement of their wells 

,. Coastal Commission & County require conversion to District water service for 
properties that can be served by the District (although no enforcement) 

;- Mutually beneficial to convert properties served by wells to District water supply 

11 A number of property-owners with wells have said they would like to connect to 
the District, but the water connection fees pose too high of a financial hu ·die 

;- Some noted they could better afford the -transition if fees were spread over time 

• To help facilitate well conversions, District can adopt a multi-year connection 
fee payment program 

3 

4 

Wa er Connection Fees 

Water Connection Fees & Related Charges 

;.. Domestic Water Connection Fee (5/8" x 3/4" Meter) : $15,259 

-,,, Admin/l nspect ion/Engineering Review Fees: $3,490 

,. Est. Construction Cost for Service Line & Meter: 

:.- Total without Private Fire Service Fee $22,749 

Note: Excludes Private Fire Service Connection Fee of $4,791 and the customer's 
cost for water service line from the meter box to the house 



ee a ment Pr gra 

• Applicable to water connection fees for well conversions only 

Payment program options (policy decision): 

, Term of repayment: e.g. 2 - 20 years 

, Interest rate: e.g. 0% - 4% 

• Potential alternatives (assumes $22,749 of total fees) 

5 Year $4,550 $4,826 $4,967 

lOYear 2,275 2,533 2,667 

15 Year 1,517 1,770 1,906 

20Year 1,137 1,391 1,529 

• Fees can be collected via annual property tax rolls 

$5,110 

2,805 . 

2,046 

1,674 

s 

5 

Preliminary Recommendations 

BWA generally recommends that the term of these types of payment agreement 
not exceed 10 years 

, Repayment term could be limited to 10 years maximum at property owner's discretion 

,. Allowance for optional payoff at any time at property owner's discretion 

,. · Note that District could require payoff of full balance upon sale of property 

• While BWA generally would recommend including interest repayment, in this 
case no interest may be appropriate 

6 

, Many of these private well owners have already been financially burdened 

;- Had to install wells due to prior moratorium 

, Were not able to previously join District and pay lower prior connection fees 

;- Ease of calculation (simply divide total charge by number of years of repayment) 

- -----·---



e 0 
• Legal review indicates fee recovery by tax rolls is allowable 

• California Health & Safety Code Section 5473: 

,. District Board must adopt an ordinance or resolution authorizing the collection of charges 
on the tax rolls by a two-thirds vote 

,. Each year, District must prepare & file with its clerk a written report that contains: 
a) a description of each parcel for which the deferred payments will be applied, and 
b) the amount of the annual charge or payment. 

a District should require a signed agreement with each property owner 

, To document the charges and repayment terms that apply to each property 

;; Indicate property-owner acknowledgment and consent 

, Allow for optional prepayment under which the property owner or their successor can 
elect to fully prepay outstanding amounts due 

11 Fee repayment can be structured as a lien on the property 

;, Repayment stays wi.th property, regardless of change in property ownership 

• District Counsel advises that the District Code must be amended to include 
provision for such agreements. 

7 

Fi anc· I mpacts 

• Overall positive financial impacts to District 

• Program expected to generate new connections from properties that 
would otherwise remain served by private wells 

• Potential financial cost to District for fronting the cost of construction of 
the. service line from water main to property line and meter box 

• Financial benefits to District & customer base include: 

8 

,, Revenues from water connection fee & related charges 

,,, Ongoing service charges 

,., Improved economies of scale 



Questio·ns I Discussion 

--------------------· 
9 



TA TER D SANITARY 
DI RICT 

BOARD OFFICERS, AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES AND 
COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

President 

President Pro T em 

Secretary 

Secretary Pro T em 

Treasurer 

SAM 
Representatives 

CSDAMember 

ACWAMember 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

.· A.PPOINTMENTSJ=OR, 
2015 ·. 

Scott Boyd 

Jim Harvey 

Dwight Wilson 

Jim Harvey (alter.) 
Kathryn Slater
Carter(alter.) 

Bill Huber alter. 
Kathryn Slater-Carter 

CURRENT·OFFICE·· 
· 2016 

Jim Harvey 

Dwight Wilson 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

Alternates: 
Scott Boyd 
Bill Huber 

Dwi ht Wilson 
Bill Huber 

AGENCY REPRESENTATIVES 

APPOINTMENTS FOR 
2015 · 

Jim Harvey 

Scott Boyd 

Kathryn Slater Carter 
(alternate) 

Bill Huber alternate 
Kathryn Slater-Carter 

Scott Boyd (Alternate) 

CURRENT 
APPOINTJVIENTS. 

2011.l 
Scott Boyd 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

Alternates: 
. Bill Huber 
Jim Harve 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

Scott Boyd (Alternate) 

Jim Harvey (Alternate) Jim Harvey (Alternate) 

Bill Huber (Alternate) Bill Huber (Alternate) 

Dwight Wilson (Alternate) Dwight Wilson (Alternate) 

Dwight Wilson Dwight Wilson 



NT TER AND S NITARY 

COMMITTEE 

Budget and 
Finance 

Personnel 

' COMMITTEE. · .. ·· 

. ,, 
.. 

Recycling/Solid 
Waste 

WEB 

Outreach/ 
Newsletter 

Legislative 

CCWD Committee 

Recycled Water 

Wireless Lease 

Planning Committee 
(PWP) 

DI RICT 
STANDING COMMITTEES 

.APPQINfMENTS FOR . 
2015.' . 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

Bill Huber 

Jim Harvey 

Dwight Wilson 

AD HOC COMMITTEES 

· ·. APP.CllN1MENTS FOR·. . • 

2015 
I• 

. ., ' 
Kathryn Slater-Carter 

Dwight Wilson 

Scott Boyd 

Bill Huber 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

Bill Huber 

Scott Boyd 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

Jim Harvey 

Bill Huber 

Dwight Wilson 

Scott Boyd 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

Scott Boyd 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

CURRENT 
APPOINTMENTS . 

. 201.6 
Bill Huber 

Dwight Wilson 

Jim Harvey 

Dwight Wilson 

:C:U~RENT ··• . 
·APPOINTMENTS 

2016 · 
Kathryn Slater-Carter 

Bill Huber 

Scott Boyd 

Bill Huber 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

Bill Huber 

Scott Boyd 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

Jim Harvey 

Bill Huber 

Bill Huber 

Scott Boyd 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

Scott Boyd 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

. 



CO.MMITTl=E 

Big Wave 

Rate Study 
(1/22/10) 

Connection Fee 
Committee 

Strategic Plan 
Pro ress 

AD HOC COMMITTEES 

APPOINTMENTS FOR 
2015· 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

Dwi ht Wilson 
Jim Harvey 

Kath n Slater-Carter 

ITARY 

. · .. C9RRE;NT 

. APP.OINTMENTS 
2016 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 

Dwi ht Wilson 
Jim Harvey 

Kath n Slater-Carter 
Scott Boyd 

Kathryn Slater-Carter 
Clemens Heldmaier 

Alex Handlers 
Kathryn Slater-Carter 

Dwi ht Wilson 

Note: Terms for all positions begin January 1, 2016 and end December 31, 2016 unless otherwise indicated by the Board 
of Directors. 



MONTARA WATER AND 
SANITARY DISTRICT 

Unaudited Financial Statements for 
January 

2016 



SUBJECT: 

MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

For Meeting Of: MARCH 03, 2016 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 

Unaudited Financial Statements - Executive 
Summary 

Budget vs. Actual - Sewer July thru January, 2016 Variances over $2,000: 

• 4460 Remodel Fees, $26,562 above Budget - No activity in January. 
Large amount of revenue collected in November, causing variance. 

• 4610 Property Tax Receipts, $99,275 above Budget -2st property tax 
assessment received in January. 

• 4710 Sewer Service Charges, $36,968 above Budget - San Mateo 
County remitted more than expected for the 1st Sewer Service Charge 
assessment. 

• 4720 - Sewer Service Refunds, $2,333 below budget - No refunds to 
date. 

• Overall Total Operating Income for the period ending January 31, 
2016 was $164,123 above budget. Total revenue received to date is 
$1,335,261. 

• 5270 Information Systems, $3,500 below budget- No activity to date. 
• 5350 LAFCO Assessment, $2,887 above budget - Two assessments paid 

for in the month of December. 
• 5400 Legal, $5,447 above Budget- Increased activity in the current fiscal 

year. 
• 5510 Maintenance-office, $2,444 above Budget - Electrical work to 

District offices performed in October. 
• 5630 Consulting, $5,539 above Budget - Costs associated to Rauch and 

PARS paid in the month of January. 
• 5640 Data Services, $3,222 above Budget - Payment made to Fred 

Weber for yearly services provided in conjunction with Sewer service rate. 
• 5800 Labor, $34,881 below Budget- Major driver causing below budget is 

the budgeted PARS expense. No expenses have been booked at this 
point in the fiscal year. If the PARS under budget amount of $25,902 were 
eliminated, Labor would be under budget by $8,979. Retro pay increases 
have not been applied. 

• 6170 Claims, Property Damage, $5,833 below Budget -No activity to date. 
• 6200 Engineering, $18,935 below Budget - Majority of engineering costs 

have been capital in nature. 
• 6400 Pumping, $5,725 below Budget - Timing difference; billing for 

services to PG&E appears to be behind by a month. 
• 6600 Collectionrrransmission, $5,833 below Budget - No activity to date. 



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

For Meeting Of: MARCH 03, 2016 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 

• 6940 SAM Maintenance, Collection Sys, $2,348 below Budget - Lift 
station maintenance $20,985 paid to SAM. 

• 6950 SAM Maintenance, Pumping, $29,167 below Budget - No activity to 
date. 

• Overall Total Operating Expenses for the period ending January 31, 
2016 were $68,010 below Budget. 

• Total overall Expenses for the period ending January 31, 2016 were 
$94,313 below budget. For a net ordinary income of $258,435, 
budgeted vs. actual. Actual net ordinary income is $418,427. 

• 7100 Connection Fees, $124, 134 below Budget - One connection issued 
in January. 

• 8000 CIP, $353,996 below Budget - Majority of projects will take place 
later in the fiscal year. 

• 9200 I-Bank Loan, $21,220 below Budget- Payments made twice a year. 



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

For Meeting Of: MARCH 03, 2016 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 

• Budget vs. Actual - Water July thru January, 2016 Variances over 
$2,000: 

• 4400 Mainline extension fees, $19,951 above Budget - No budget set up 
for revenue line item. 

• 4610 Property tax Receipts, $99,275 above Budget - 2st property tax 
assessment received in January. 

• 4740 Testing, Backflow, $4,468 above Budget - Increased activity over 
the fiscal year. 

• 4810 Water Sales Domestic, $47,832 above Budget - More water sales 
than anticipated. 

• Overall Total Operating Income for the period ending January 31, 
2016 was $172,117 above budget. Total revenue received to date is 
$1,299,307. 

• 5240 CDPH Fees, $6,479 above Budget- State Water Resources Control 
Board system fees paid in November and Permit fee paid in December. 

• 5400 Legal, $12,859 below Budget- Less activity than anticipated to date. 
• 5510 Maintenance-Office, $2,444 above Budget, - Electrical work to 

District offices performed in October. 
• 5530 Memberships, $6,725 above Budget, - Association of CA Water 

Agencies fees for 2016 paid in December. Most membership fees paid on 
a calendar year basis. Variance will decrease and fiscal year continues. 

• 5630 Consulting, $6,990 above Budget - Expenses for PARS and BW 
well conversion data paid in January. 

• 5720 Telephone & Internet, $4,121 above Budget - Increased cost for 
phone and internet connection. 

• 5800 Labor, $92,967 below Budget - Major driver causing below budget is 
the budgeted PARS expense. If the PARS under budget amount of 
$63,113 were eliminated, Labor would be under budget by $29,854. The 
main cause of this is staff time being under budget. Retro pay increases 
have not yet been applied. 

• 6160 Backflow, Prevention, $2,086 above budget - Increased activity for 
water conservation. 

• 6170 Claims, Property Damage, $5,833 below Budget -No activity to date. 
• 6195 Education & Training, $2,388 below Budget - Minimal activity in 

January, one recertification payment and a safety meeting. 
• 6200 Engineering, $10,407 above Budget - Water quality engineering 

expenses are higher than anticipated. 
• 6400 Pumping, $10,239 below Budget - Fuel and Electricity costs have 

also been less than expected. 



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

For Meeting Of: MARCH 03, 2016 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 

• 6500 Supply, $4,208 above Budget - Three invoices for Well maintenance 
paid in December for approximately $7,000. 

• 6600 Collectionffransmission, $2,361 below Budget- Water Service lines 
maintenance has minimal activity in January. 

• 6700 Treatment, $3,737 below Budget - Costs related to chemicals and 
filtering have been held below historic levels. 

• 6800 Vehicles, $4,692 below Budget - Maintenance and fuel costs have 
been held in check thus far. 

• Overall Total Operating Expenses for the period ending January 31, 
2016 were $9,700 below Budget. 

• Total overall Expenses for the period ending January 31, 2016 were 
$95,472 below budget. For a net ordinary income of $267,588, 
budgeted vs. actual. Actual net ordinary income is $560,519. 

• 7100 Connection Fees, $2,185 below Budget -No activity in January. 
• 7600 Bond Revenues, G.O. $79,213 below Budget - Minimal receipts 

received in January. 
• 8100 CIP, $206,757 above Budget - $75,309 in outflows for the month of 

January. 
• 9100 Interest Expense G.O. Bonds, $288,861 below Budget - Timing 

difference due to accrual. 
• 9150 SRF Loan, Interest payments made in December account for 

$25,540. Account was unbudgeted due to the understanding that 
payments would not begin until project completion. This turned out to not 
be the case. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
This is for Board information only 



Montara Water & Sanitary District 

Restricted and Non Restricted Cash Assets 

Assets and Reserves Information July 2015 through June 2016 

----1 Target $ Over/Under % Over/Under 
Year to Date Cash Information Jul_y~-~~ ~eptember October November December January Februa.'}'_~~~~ Reserves Targets Targets 

Sewer - Operations 

Wells Fargo Operating - Sewer 1,471,587.93 926,001.60 1,216,903.27 1,207,076.01 991,295.41 2,469,435.90 1,918,119.56 

Sewer - Reserve Accounts 

LAIF -
Operating Reserve 158,079.00 158,079.00 158,079.00 3,789,563.62 3,789,563.62 3,789,563.62 3,789,563.62 287,352.00 (129,273.00) 55% 
capital Reserve 3,789,583.62 3,789,583.62 3,789,563.62 325,604.00 325,604.00 325,604.00 325,604.00 2,750,446.00 1,039,137.62 138% 
Connection Fees Reserve 325,604.00 325,604.00 325,604.00 158,079.00 158,079.00 158,079.00 158,079.00 325,604.00 100% 

Sub-total 4,273,266.62 4,273,266.62 4,273,246.62 4,273,246.62 4,273,246.62 4,273,246.62 4,273,246.62 

Water - Operations 

Wells Fargo Operating - Water 480,373.79 490,509.32 502,080.00 513,613.83 524,911.47 535,841.51 546,618.31 

Water - Reserve Accounts 

Wells Fargo Bank-

Operating Reserve 190,251.00 190,251.00 190,251.00 190,251.00 190,251.00 190,251.00 190,251.00 217,906.00 (27,655.00) 87% 
Capital Reserve 398,249.00 398,249.00 398,249.00 398,249.00 398,249.00 398,249.00 398,249.00 1,207,180.00 (808,931.00) 33% 
Connection Fees Reserve 157,000.00 157,000.00 157,000.00 157,000.00 157,000.00 157,000.00 157,000.00 157,000.00 100% 

Sub-total 745,500.00 745,500.00 745,500.00 745,500.00 745,500.00 745,500.00 745,500.00 

Water - Restricted accounts 

First Republic Bank - Water 
Acquistion & Improvement Fund 436.13 436.13 436.13 436.13 436.13 436.13 436.13 
Cost of issuance 122.94 122.94 122.94 122.94 122.94 122.94 122.94 
GO Bonds Fund 1,355,991.77 822,750.55 822,750.55 823,461.66 831,427.39 831,427.39 1,411,446.46 

Sub-total 1,356,550.84 823,309.62 823,309.62 824,020.73 831,986.46 831,986.46 1,412,005.53 

Total cash and equivalents 8,327,279.18 7,258,587.16 7 ,561,039.5_1 7,563,457.19_ 7,366,939.96 8,856,010.49 8,895,490.02 



4:12PM Montara Water & Sanitary District 
02/18/16 
Accrual Basis Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer 

July 2015 through June 2016 
TOTAL 

Jul 15 Aug 16 Sep15 Oct 15 Nov 15 Oec15 Jan 16 Feb 16 Mar16 Apr16 May 16 Jun 16 Jul '15. Jun 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget 

Ordinary Income/Expense 

Income 

4220 • Cell Tower Lease 2,778.18 2,778.18 2,778.18 2,778.18 2,778.18 2,778.18 2,778.18 19,447.26 32,000.00 -12,552.74 60.77% 

4400 · Fees 

4410 • Administrative Fee (New Constr) 948.00 474.00 1,422.00 2,500.00 -1,078.00 56.88% 

4420 · Administrative Fee (Remodel) 474.00 474.00 3,000.00 -2,526.00 15.8% 

4430 · Inspection Fee (New Constr) 896.00 448.00 1,344.00 2,000.00 -656.00 67.2% 

4440 · Inspection Foo (Remodel) 1,087.00 103.00 103.00 103.00 309.00 103.00 1,808.00 4,500.00 -2,692.00 40.18% 

4460 • Remodel foes 11,075.00 435.00 332.00 18,700.00 103.00 30,645.00 7,000.00 23,645.00 437.79% 

Total 4400 • Fees 12,636.00 2,382.00 332.00 103.00 18,803.00 412.00 1,025.00 35,693.00 19,000.00 16,693.00 187.86% 

4610 · Property Tax Receipts 371.87 21,539.42 95,149.18 97,214.92 214,275.39 230,000.00 -15,724.61 93.16% 

4710 • Sewer Service Charges 1,056,939.32 1,056,939.32 2,039,943.00 -983 ,003 .68 51.81% 

4720 · Sewer Service Refunds, Customer -4,000.00 4,000.00 

4760 • Waste Collection Revenues 882.48 1,855.85 830.14 1,919.98 723.29 1,929.25 755,01 8,896.00 15,000.00 -6,104.00 59.31% 

4990 · Other Revenue 9.99 9.99 

Total Income 16,296.66 7,016.03 4,312.19 4,801.16 43,853.88 1,157,207.93 101,773.11 1,335,260.96 2,331,943.00 -996,682.04 57.26% 

Expense 

5000 · Administrative 

5190 · Bank Fees 260.66 265.13 266.16 257.57 296.15 256.45 350.73 1,952.85 4,000.00 -2,047.15 48.82% 

5200 · Board of Directors 

5210 • Board Meetings 125.00 -99.50 250,00 250.00 525.50 2,500.00 -1,974.50 21.02% 

5220 • Director Fees 337.50 525.00 525.00 337.50 1,725.00 3,300.00 -1,575.00 52.27% 

Total 5200 · Board of Directors 462.50 425.50 775.00 587.50 2,250.50 5,800.00 -3,549.50 38.8% 

5250 · Conference Attendance 2,000.00 -2,000.00 

5270 · lnfonnation Systems 6,000.00 -6,000,00 

5300 · Insurance 

5310 · Fidelity Bond 

5320 · Property & Liability Insurance 1,688.18 1,688.18 1,755.00 -66.82 96.19% 

Total 5300 · Insurance 1,688.18 1,688.18 1,755.00 -66.82 96.19% 

5350 · LAFCO Assessment 4,046.00 4,046.00 1,987.00 2,059.00 203.62% 

5400 • Legat 

5420 • Meeting Attendance, Legal 842.50 625.00 675.00 1,496.00 1,175.00 4,813.50 9,500.00 -4,686,50 50.67% 

5430 · General Legal 3,062.50 3,530.00 1,825.00 2,920.00 2,870.00 717.50 14,925.00 15,000.00 -75.00 99.5% 

5440 · Litigation 

Total 5400 · Legal 3,905.00 4,155.00 2,500.00 4,416.00 4,045.00 717.50 19,738.50 24,500.00 -4,761.50 80.57% 

5510 · Maintenance, Office 624.94 3,234.54 1,913.62 24.97 146.14 5,94421 6,000.00 -55.79 99.07% 

See Executive Summary Document Page 2 of 10 



4:12PM Montara Water & Sanitary District 
02/18/16 
Accrual Basis Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer 

July 2015 through June 2016 
TOTAL 

Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep15 0ct15 Nov 15 Dec15 Jan 16 Feb 16 Mar16 Apr16 May16 Jun 16 Jul'15-Jun16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget 

5520 · Meetings, Local 

5540 • Office Supplies 1,477.69 674.48 330.76 517.80 109.30 484.10 3,594.13 9,000.00 -5,405.87 39,94% 

5550 • Postage 117.66 77.64 117.62 100.50 486.36 900.16 2,000.00 -1,099.82 45.01% 

5560 • Printing & Publishing 202.67 65.96 35.69 135.66 440.02 3,000.00 -2,559.98 14.67% 

5600 • Professional Services 

5610 · Accounting 1,650.00 3,400.00 4,492.50 2,100.00 3,650,00 2,500.00 17,992.50 30,000.00 -12,007.50 59.98% 

5620 • Audit 4,500.00 5,500.00 2,050.00 12,050.00 13,000,00 -950,00 92.69% 

5630 · Consulting 426,88 2,781.88 952.50 1,013.98 245.42 7,701.89 13,122.55 13,000.00 122.55 100.94% 

5640 · Data Services 327.50 6,052.49 30.00 105.00 207.50 6,722.49 6,000.00 722.49 112.04% 

5650 · Labor & HR Support 750.00 750.00 2,250.00 -1,500.00 33.33% 

5660 • Payroll Services 60.98 60.98 60.98 60.98 60.03 60.98 119,53 464.46 800.00 -315.54 60.56% 

Total 5600 • Professional Services 60.98 2,665.36 16,795.35 11,035.98 3,279.01 4,706.40 12,578.92 51,122.00 65,050.00 -13,926,00 78.59% 

5710 · San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 115,50 115.50 2,500.00 -2,384.50 4.62% 

5720 • Telephone & Internet 127.10 892.61 1,820.00 131.05 956.74 1,110.89 968.58 6,006.97 9,000.00 -2,993,03 66.74% 

5730 • Mileage Reimbursement 72.30 50.00 54.99 189,01 366.30 1,500,00 -1,133,70 24.42% 

5740 • Reference Materials 200,00 -200.00 

5800 • Labor 

5810 • CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 1,095.25 1,058.45 1,092.56 1,353,69 1,073.60 1,136.67 1,116.63 7,926.85 13,709,00 -5,782.15 57.82% 

SS20 • Employee Benefits 2,693.79 2,693.79 2,693.79 2,693.79 2,693.79 3,410.97 16,879.92 36,497.00 -19,617.08 46.25'% 

5830 • Disability Insurance 113.37 113.37 113.37 113.36 113.36 113,36 680.19 1,450.00 -769.81 46.91% 

5840 · Payroll Taxes 1,196.98 1,156.76 1,170.51 874.25 762.30 808.88 1,220.34 7,190.02 14,983,00 -7,792,98 47.99% 

5850 • PARS 514.27 514.27 45,285.00 -44,770.73 1.14'% 

5900 ·Wages 

5910 · Management 6,625.44 6,625.44 6,625.45 9,760.61 6,989.86 6.989.86 7,190.82 50,807.48 86,041.00 -35,233.52 59.05% 

5920 • Staff 8,854.08 8,084.16 8,469.12 8,886.51 8,179.93 8,958.96 8,500.72 59,933.48 103,090.00 -43,156.52 58.14% 

5930 • Staff Certification 150,00 150.00 150,00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 1,050.00 1,854.00 -804.00 56.63% 

5940 • Staff Overtime 17.04 261.28 363,52 541.50 17.47 139.74 110.57 1,451.12 3,718.00 -2,266,88 39,03% 

6960 · Staff Standby 1,147.00 -1,147.00 

Total 5900 · Wages 15,646.56 15,120.88 15,608.09 19,338.62 15,337.26 16,238.56 15,952.11 113,242.08 195,850.00 -82,607.92 57,82% 

5960 · Worker's Comp Insurance 490.61 490.61 3,891,00 -3,400,39 12.61%, 

Total 5800 · Labor 20,632.58 20,143.25 20,678.32 24,864.33 19,980.31 18,297.47 22,327.68 146,923.94 311,665.00 -164,741.06 47.14%, 

Total 5000 • Administrative 22,769.50 30,554.14 48,324.32 41,161.15 30,520.31 33,375.16 38,384.70 245,089.28 455,957.00 -210,867.72 53.75% 

6000 · Operations 

6170 • Claims, Property Damage 10,000.00 -10,000.00 

6195 · Education & Training 1,000.00 -1,000.00 

6200 · Engineering 

6210 · Meeting Attendance, Engineering 2,000.00 -2,000.00 

See Executive Summary Document Page 3 of 10 



4:12PM Montara Water & Sanitary District 
02/18/16 
Accrual Basis Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer 

July 2015 through June 2016 
TOTAL 

Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep15 Oct15 Nov15 Dec 15 Jan 16 Feb 16 Mar16 Apr16 May16 Jun 16 Jul •15 - Jun 16 Budget $ Over Budget %of Budget 

6220 · General Engineering 895.00 1,750.50 581.75 6,023.50 537.00 1,611.00 11,398.75 50,000.00 -38,601.25 22,8% 

Total 6200 • Engineering 895.00 1,750.50 581.75 6,023.50 537.00 1,611.00 11,398.75 52,000.00 -40,601.25 21.92% 

6320 · Equipment & Tools, Expensed 1,000.00 -1,000.00 

6330 · Facilities 

6335 · Atarm Services 391.80 1,066.04 444.30 391.80 512.78 444.30 391.80 3,642.82 5,000.00 -1,357.18 72.86% 

6337 • Landscaping 190.00 380.00 372.06 1,330.00 190.00 2,462.06 2,400.00 62.06 102.59% 

Total 6330 • Facilities 391.80 1,256.04 824.30 391.80 884.84 1,774.30 581.80 6,104.88 7,400.00 -1,295.12 82,5% 

6400 · Pumping 

6410 • Pumping Fuel & Electricity 4,524.11 1,956.77 1,829.49 1,714.86 10,025.23 27,000.00 -16,974.77 37.13% 

Total 6400 • Pumping 4,524.11 1,956.77 1,829.49 1,714.86 10,025.23 27,000.00 -16,974.77 37.13% 

6600 · Colfectlon/Transmlnion 

6660 · Maintenance, Collection System 10,000.00 -10,000.00 

Total 6600 · Collection/Transmission 10,000.00 -10,000.00 

6800 • Vehicles 

6810, Fuel 800.00 -800.00 

6820 • Truck Equipment, Expensed 160.00 -160.00 

6830 · Truck Repairs 400.00 -400.00 

Total 6800 • Vehicles 1,360.00 -1,360.00 

6900 · Sewer Authority Midcoasts.ide 

6910 · SAM Collections 30,042.00 30,042.00 60,084.00 30,042.00 30,042.00 30,042.00 210,294.00 360,500.00 -150,206.00 58.33% 

6920 · SAM Operations 58,991.00 58,991.00 117,982.00 58,991.00 58,991.00 58,991.00 412,937.00 707,892.00 -294,955.00 58.33% 

6940 · SAM Maintenance, Collection Sys 20,984.97 20,984.97 40,000.00 -19,015.03 52.46% 

6950 · SAM Maintenance, Pumping 50,000.00 -50,000.00 

Total 6900 · Sewer Authority Midcoastside 69,033.00 89,033.00 178,066.00 89,033.00 110,017.97 89,033.00 644,215.97 1,158,392.00 -514,176.03 55.61% 

Total 6000 • Operations 90,319.80 92,039.54 183,414.41 973.55 97,898.11 114,158.76 92,940.66 671,744.83 1,268,152.00 -596,407.17 52.97% 

Total Expense 113,089.30 122,593.68 231,738.73 42,134.70 128,418.42 147,533.92 131,325.36 916,834.11 1,724,109.00 -807,274.89 53.18% 

Net Ordinary Income -96,792.64 -115,577.65 -227,426.54 -37,333.54 -84,564.54 1,009,674.01 -29,552.25 418,426.85 607,834.00 -189,407.15 68.84% 

Other Income/Expense 

Other Income 

7000 · Capital Account Revenues 

7100 · Connection Fees 

7110 · Connection Foes {New cons tr) 50,490.00 2,873.00 53,363.00 275,604.00 -222,241.00 19.36% 

See Executive Summary Document Page4of10 



4:12PM Montara Water & Sanitary District 
02/18/16 
Accrual Basis Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer 

July 2015 through June 2016 
TOTAL 

Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep 15 Oet15 Nov15 Dec 15 Jan 16 Feb 16 Mar16 Apr16 May16 Jun 16 Jul '15 • Jun 16 Budget $ over Budget % of Budget 

7120 · Conn&ction Fees (Remodel) 12,439.00 12,439.00 50,000,00 -37,561.00 24.88% 

Total 7100 · Connection Fees 12,439,00 50,490.00 2,873.00 65,802.00 325,604.00 -259,802.00 20.21% 

7200 • Interest Income - LAIF 3,443.11 3,961.03 7,404.14 8,000.00 -595.86 92.55% 

7700 • Interest, Employee Loans 303.97 298.48 292.97 895.42 3,281.00 -2,385,58 27.29% 

Total 7000 • Capital Account Revenues 12,742.97 298.48 54,226.08 3,961.03 2,873.00 74,101.56 336,885.00 -262,783,44 22.0% 

Total Other Income 12,742.97 298.48 54,226.08 3,961.03 2,873.00 74,101.56 336,885.00 -262,783.44 22.0% 

Other Expense 

8000 • Capital Improvement Program 

8075 · Sewer 3,071.25 12,703.00 984.50 6,935.50 21,280.00 895.00 45,869.25 685,483,00 -639,613,75 6.69% 

8100 •Water 

Total 8000 • Capital Improvement Program 3,071.25 12,703.00 984.50 6,935.50 21,280.00 895.00 45,869.25 685,483.00 -639,613.75 6.69% 

9000 · Capital Account Expenses 

9125 • PNC Equipment Lease Interest 887.68 1,768.13 3,512.71 1,744.53 1,736.63 1,728.70 11,378.38 20,790.00 ,9,411.62 54.73% 

9175 • Capital Assessment• SAM 13,389.00 13,389.00 26,778.00 13,389.00 13,389.00 13,389.00 13,389.00 107,112.00 160,666,00 -53,554,00 66.67% 

9200 · I-Bank Loan 4,801.62 4,801.62 26,022.00 -21.220.38 18.45% 

Total 9000 • Capital Account Expenses 19,078.30 15,157.13 30,290.71 15,133.53 15,125.63 15,117.70 13,389.00 123,292.00 207,478.00 -84,186.00 59.42% 

Total Other Expense 22,149.55 27,860.13 30,290.71 984.50 22,069.03 36,405,63 16,012.70 13,389.00 169,161.25 892,961.00 -723,799,75 18.94% 

Net Other Income -9,406,58 -27,561.65 23,935.37 -984.50 -22,069.03 -32,444.60 -13,139.70 -13,389.00 -95,059.69 -556,076.00 461,016.31 17.1% 

Net Income -106,199.22 ,143,139.30 __ -203,491.17 -38,318.04 __..1_06,633.57 9'/'I,22_9,41 -42,69_1.9_5_ -13,389,00 323~~758.00 271,609.16 624.77% 

See Executive Summary Document Page 5 of 10 



2:05 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District 
02111116 
Accrual Basis Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water 

July 2015 through June 2016 
TOTAL 

Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep 15 Oct15 Nov 15 Oec15 Jan 16 Feb 16 Mar16 Apr16 May16 Jun 16 Jul'1S·Jun16 Budget $ Over Budget %of Budget 

Ordinary lncome!Expense 

Income 

4220 • Cell Tower Lease 2,778.19 2,778.19 2,778.19 2,778.19 2,778.19 2,778.19 2,778.19 19,447.33 32,000.00 -12,552.67 60.77%1 

4400 • Fees 

4410 • Administrative Fee (New Constr} 1,896.00 1,896.00 4,500.00 -2,604.00 42.13% 

4420 • Administrative Fee (Remodel) 900.00 -900.00 

4430 • Inspection Fee (New Constr} 1,792.00 1,792.00 4,250.00 -2.458.00 42.17%, 

4440 • Inspection Fee (Remodel) 800.00 -800.00 

4450 • Mainline Extension Fees 19,951.00 19,951.00 

Total 4400 • Fees 3,688.00 19,951.00 23,639.00 10,450.00 13,189.00 226.21% 

4610 • Property Tax Receipts 371.87 21,539.43 95,149.16 97,214.90 214,275.36 230,000.00 -15,724.64 93.16% 

4740, Testing, Backflow 2,781.00 2,266.00 3,708.00 3,296.00 12,051.00 13,000.00 -949.00 92.7% 

4810 • Water Sates, Domestic 154,270.38 151,053.90 168,526.48 142,366.98 153,716.54 122,026.03 137,466.56 1,029,426.87 1,682,734.00 -653,307 .13 61.18% 

4850 • Water Sates Refunds, Customer· -1,488.35 -1,488.35 -3,000.00 1,511.65 49.61% 

4990 • Other Revenue 692.00 621.00 643.00 1,956.00 

Total Income 159,033.22 159,786.09 171,676.54 145,766.17 202,336.16 219,953.38 240,755.65 1,299,307.21 1,965,184.00 -665,876.79 66.12% 

Expense 

5000 • Administrative 

5190 • Bank Fees 532.63 500.81 469.12 516.30 488.27 477.68 543.76 3,528.57 9,000.00 -5,471.43 39.21% 

5200 • Board of Directors 

5210 • Board Meetings 125.00 -99.50 250.00 250.00 525.50 2,500.00 -1,974.50 21.02% 

5220 • Director Fees 337.50 525.00 525.00 337.50 1,725.00 3,300.00 -1,575.00 52.27% 

Total 5200 • Board of Directors 462.50 425.50 775.00 587.50 2,250.50 5,800.00 -3,549.50 38.8% 

5240 • COPH Fees 13,141.34 2,088.00 15,229.34 15,000.00 229.34 101.53% 

5250 • Conference Attendance 600.00 600.00 1,200.00 4,000.00 -2,800.00 30.0% 

5270 • lnfonnatJon Systems 3,200.00 -3,200.00 

5300 • Insurance 

5310 • Fidelity Bond 

5320 • Property & Liability Insurance 1,688.18 1,688.18 1,755.00 -66.82 96.19% 

Total 5300 • Insurance 1,688.18 1,688.18 1,755.00 -66.82 96.19% 

5350 • LAFCO Assessment 2,800.00 -2,800.00 

5400 • Legal 

5420 • Meeting Attendance, Legal 845.00 625.00 675.00 1,492.00 1,175.00 4,812.00 8,500.00 -3,688.00 56.61% 

5430 • General Legal 3,625.00 4,657.50 6,300.00 4,917.00 1,755.00 1,032.50 22.287.00 60,000.00 -37,713.00 37.15% 

5440 • Litigation 

Total 5400 • Legal 4,470.00 5,282.50 6,975.00 6,409.00 2,930.00 1,032.50 27,099.00 68,500.00 -41,401.00 39.56Q/() 

See Executive Summary Document Page 6 of 10 



2:05 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District 
02111116 
Accrual Basis Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water 

July 2015 through June 2016 
TOTAL 

Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep15 0ct15 Nov 15 Dec 15 Jan 16 Feb 16 Mar16 Apr16 May16 Jun 16 Jul '15 ~ Jun 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget 

5510 · Maintenance, Office 624.85 3,234.53 1,913.62 24,98 146,15 5,944,13 6,000.00 ,55.87 99.07% 

5520 · Meetings, Local 

5530 · Memberships 254.15 249.00 5,778.00 10,944.00 17,225.15 18,000.00 -774.85 95.7% 

5540 · Office Supplies 1,477.66 674.45 330.77 517,80 109.30 484.10 3,594.08 9,000.00 -5,405.92 39.93% 

5550 · Postage 564.77 665.57 567,85 615.70 599,15 1,035.79 4,048.83 6,000.00 -1,951.17 67.48% 

5560 • Printing & Publishing 202.67 65.98 35.68 35.68 340,01 2,000.00 ·1,659.99 17.0% 

5600 • Professional Services 

5610 · Accounting 1,850.00 3,400.00 4,492.50 2,100.00 3,650.00 2,500.00 17,992.50 30,000.00 ·12,007.50 59.98% 

5620 • Audit 4,500.00 5,500.00 2,050.00 12,050.00 13,000.00 -950,00 92.69% 

5630 · Consulting 754.37 8,852.96 3,929.50 1,498.97 245.41 6,292.50 21,573.71 25,000.00 -3,426.29 86.3% 

5640 · Data Services 1,978.00 1,978.00 

5650 • Labor & HR Support 750,00 750.00 750,00 100.0% 

5660 · Payroll Services. 60.98 60.98 60,98 60.98 60.03 60.98 119.53 484.46 850.00 -365,54 57.0% 

5690 • Other Professional Services 226.94 226.94 

Total 5600 • Professional Services 60.98 2,665.35 16,813.94 13,982.98 3,659.00 4,933,33 12,940.03 55,055.61 68,850.00 -13,794.39 79.97% 

5710 · San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 122.50 122.50 

5720 • Telephone & Internet 267.56 1,496.23 2,194.97 652.41 1,749:45 1,644,73 1,346.14 9,371.49 9,000.00 371.49 104.13% 

5730 • Mileage Reimbursement 192.74 66.33 107,33 120.96 297,08 270,91 1,075.37 2,000.00 ,924.63 53.77% 

57 40 · Reference Materials BOO.OD -BOO.DO 

5800 • Labor 

5810 · CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 2,539,79 2,485.10 2,575.08 2,769.69 2,446.02 2,560.99 2,479.98 17,656,65 35,154.00 -17,297,35 50.8% 

5820 · Employee Benefits 5,405.84 5,405.84 5,405,84 5,405.84 5,405.84 10,608.70 37,637.90 61,277.00 -23,639.10 61.42% 

5830 · Disability Insurance 280,52 260,52 280.52 280,52 280.52 280.52 1,683,12 3,549.00 ·1,865.86 47.43% 

5840 · Payroll Taxes 3,017.54 2,908.21 2,986.43 2,587.01 2,428.05 2,528.15 2,907.87 19,363.26 38,419.00 -19,055.74 50.4% 

5850 • PARS 375.00 375.00 375.00 976.16 2,101.16 111,796.00 -109,694.84 1.88% 

5900 ·Wages 

5910 · Management 6,625.46 6,625.46 6,625.45 9,760.62 6,989.84 6,989.84 7,190.80 50,807.47 86,041.00 -35,233.53 59.05% 

5920 · Staff 26,717.05 23,907,14 24,991.45 25,363.13 23,839.87 25,993,73 24,291.09 175,103.46 336,765,00 -163,681.54 51.69% 

5930 · Staff Certlftcation 750,00 750.00 810.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 5,310.00 9,167.00 -3,657.00 57.93% 

5940 · Staff Overtime 3,524.31 4,866,78 5,168.25 3,975.38 3,692.39 3,124.70 3,838.45 28,190.26 49,918,00 -21,727,74 56.47%, 

5950 • Staff Standby 1,828.57 1,866.99 1,810.74 1,876,64 1,840,35 1,854.16 1,941.26 13,020.71 18,295,00 -5,274.29 71.17% 

Total 5900 · Wages 39,445,39 38,016.37 39,405.89 41,727.77 37,112,45 38,712.43 38,011,60 272,431.90 502,206.00 ·229,774.10 54.25% 

5960 • Worker's Comp Insurance 4,787.58 4,787.58 17,019.00 -12,231.42 28.13% 

Total 5800 · Labor 50,783.56 49,471.04 50,653.76 57,933.41 47,672.88 44,082.09 55,264.83 355,861.57 769,420.00 -413,558.43 46.25% 

Total 5000 · Administrative 53,352.91 62,180.10 81,552.34 83,579.67 61,115,90 68,753.52 73,099.89 503,634.33 1,001,125.00 -497,490.67 50.31% 

6000 · Operations 

See Executive Summary Document Page 7 of 10 



2:05 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District 
02/11/16 
Accrual Basis Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water 

July 2015 through June 2016 
TOTAL 

Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep15 Oct1S Nov 15 Dec15 Jan 16 Feb 16 Mar16 Apr16 Mey16 Jun 16 Jul '15 ~Jun 16 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget 

6160 · Backflow Prevention 756.94 1,812.67 600.00 500.00 550.00 200.00 4,419.61 4,000.00 419.61 110.49% 

6170 · Claims, Property Damage 10,000.00 -10,000.00 

6180 • Communications 

6185 · SCADA Maintenance 2,574.91 75.00 5,557.75 1,287.00 9,494.66 15,000.00 -5,505.34 63.3% 

Total 6180 · Communications 2,574.91 75.00 5,557.75 1,287.00 9,494.66 15,000.00 -5,505.34 63.3% 

6195 · Education & Training 210.00 210.00 210.00 210.00 271.74 1,111.74 6,000.00 -4,888.26 18.53% 

6200 · Engineering 

6210 • Meeting Attendance, Engineering 2,000.00 -2,000.00 

6220 · General Engineering 150.00 330.00 8,965.00 1,550.00 10,995.00 30,000.00 -19,005.00 36.65% 

6230 • Water Quality Engineering 15,935.00 4,811.25 7,454.90 10,294.33 38,495.48 35,000.00 3,495.48 109,99% 

Total 6200 • Engineering 16,085.00 5,141.25 16,419.90 11,844.33 49,490.48 67,000.00 -17,509.52 73.87% 

6320 · Equipment & Tools, Expensed 126.25 25.38 864.63 499.25 393.80 887.12 2,796.43 6,000.00 -3.203.57 46.61% 

6330 • Facilities 

6335 • Alarm Services 119.25 52.50 120.97 52.50 345.22 750.00 -404.78 46.03% 

6337 · Landscaping 300.00 600.00 482.06 1,804.09 420.00 3,606.15 4,500.00 -893.85 80.14% 

Total 6330 · Facilities 419.25 652.50 603.03 1,856.59 420.00 3,951.37 5,250.00 -1,298.63 75.26% 

6370 · Lab Supplies & Equipment 501.73 501.73 1,000.00 -49827 50.17% 

6380 · Meter Reading 

6400 · Pumping 

6410 · Pumping Fuel & Etectriclty 7,128.32 8,824.03 1,374.39 4,427.71 4,957.90 3,754.09 30,466.44 65,000.00 -34,533.56 46.87% 

6420 · Pumping Maintenance, Generators 4,771.43 4,771.43 13,000.00 -8,228.57 36.7% 

6430 · Pumping Maintenance, General 49.99 808.66 148,54 1,007.41 2,500.00 -1,492.59 40.3% 

6440 • Pumping Equipment, Expensed 1,641.07 1,641.07 2,000.00 -358.93 82.05% 

T eta! 6400 • Pumping 7,178.31 9,632.91 1,374.39 9,199.14 5,106.44 5,395.16 37,886.35 82,500.00 -44,613.65 45.92%, 

6600 · Supply 

6510 • Maintenance, Raw Water Mains 

6520 • Maintonance, Wells 2,212.66 6,934.70 1,046.09 10,193.45 5,000.00 5,193.45 203.87% 

6530 · Water Purchases 20,264.06 20,264.06 40,000.00 -19,735.94 50.66% 

Total 6500 · Supply 20,264.06 2,212.66 6,934.70 1,046.09 30,457.51 45,000.00 -14,542.49 67.68% 

6600 • Collectionfl'ransmission 

6610 · Hydrants 1,000.00 -1,000.00 

6620 • Maintenance, Water Mains 8,704.72 14,505.69 8,354.63 11,041.15 5,020.60 47,626.79 55,000.00 -7,373.21 86.59% 

6630 • Maintenance, Water Svc Lines 3,019.61 3,019.61 25,000.00 -21,980.39 12.08% 

6640 · Maintenance, Tanks 307.06 307.06 1,000.00 -692.94 30.71% 

6650 · Maint., Distribution General 10,000.00 -10,000.00 

6670 · Meters 787.69 668.19 354.89 1,810.77 2,500.00 -68923 72,43% 

See Exocutive Summary Document Page 8 of 10 



2:05 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District 
02111116 
Accrual Basis Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water 

July 2015 through June 2016 
TOTAL 

Jul 15 Aug 15 Sep15 Oct 15 Nov 15 Oec15 Jan 16 Feb16 Mar16 Apr16 May16 Jun 16 Jul '15 - Jun 16 Budget $ Over Budget %of Budget 

Total 6600 • CollectionrTransmiHion 8,704.72 15,600.44 8,354.63 11,709.34 5,375.49 3,019.61 52,764.23 94,500.00 -41,735.77 55,84% 

6700 • Treatment 

6710 · Chemicals & Flftering 622.14 230.74 667.87 428.73 530.21 484,63 2,964.32 30,000.00 -27,035.68 9.88% 

6720 • Maintenance, Treatment Equip. 2,053.81 62.47 693.15 11.50 2,475.99 5,296.92 4,000.00 1,296.92 132.42% 

6730 • Treatment Analysis 2,306.00 6,451.95 850.00 1,835.00 6,339.30 4,635.94 22,418.19 25,000.00 -2,581.81 89.67% 

Total 6700 • Treatment 4,981.95 6,745.16 2,211.02 2,275.23 9,345.50 5,120.57 30,679.43 59,000.00 -28,320.57 52.0% 

6770 · Uniforms 1,835.41 1,128.38 856.31 1,507.37 1,348.37 6,675.84 9,000.00 -2,324.16 74.18% 

6800 · Vehicles 

6310 · Fuel 662.50 639.06 631.20 808.47 649.73 396.50 3,787.46 8,500.00 -4,712.54 44.56% 

6820 • Truck Equipment, Expensed 17.05 212.36 229.41 2,000.00 -1,770.59 11.47% 

6830 • Truck Repairs 54.22 61.28 216.99 332.49 5,000.00 -4,667.51 6.65% 

Total 6800 · Vehicles 679.55 639.06 685.42 869.75 866.72 608.86 4,349.36 15,500.00 ·11,150.64 28.06% 

6890 · Other Operations 575.00 575.00 

6000 · Operations - Other 

Total 6000 • Operations 43,342.29 60,798.43 15,428.47 50,912.36 34,510.34 30,161.85 235,153.74 419,750.00 -184,595.26 56,02% 

Total Expense 53,352.91 105,522.39 142,350.77 99,008.14 132,028.26 103,263.86 103,261.74 738,788.07 1,420,875.00 -682,086.93 52.0% 

Net Ordinary Income 105,680.31 54,263.70 29,325.77 46,758.03 70,307.90 116,689.52 137,493.91 560,519.14 544,309.00 16,210.14 102.98% 

Other Income/Expense 

Other Income 

7000 · Capital Account Revenues 

7100 · Connection Fees 

7110 · Connection Fees (New Const.r) 16,785.00 16,785.00 15,060.50 48,630.50 101,000.00 -52,369.50 48.15% 

7120 · Connection Fees (Remodel} 3,000.00 -3,000.00 

7130 ·Conn.Foos, PFP (NewConstr) 11,962.00 8,002.00 12,802.00 8,002.00 40,768.00 53,000.00 -12,232.00 76.92% 

7140 •Conn.Fees, PFP (Remodel) 

Total 7100 • Connection Fees 11,962.00 24,787.00 29,587.00 23,062.50 89,398.50 157,000.00 -67,601.50 56.94% 

7600 · Bond Revenues, G.O. 711.11 7,965.73 575,033.66 8,164.47 591,874.97 1,150,436.00 -558,561.03 51.45% 

Total 7000 · Capital Account Revenues 11,962.00 25,498.11 29,587.00 31,028.23 575,033.66 8,164.47 681,273.47 1,307,436.00 -626, 162.53 52.11% 

Total Other lncomo 11,962.00 25,498.11 29,587.00 31,028.23 575,033.66 8,164.47 681,273.47 1,307,436.00 -626, 162.53 52.11% 

Other Expense 

8000 · Capital Improvement Program 

8100 ·Water 387,790.51 362,246.06 141,80025 173,535.33 74,658.74 75,309.44 1,215,340.33 1,729,000.00 -513,659.67 70.29% 

See Executive Summary Document Page 9 of 10 



2:05 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District 
02111/16 
Accrual Basis Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water 

July 2015 through June 2016 
TOTAL 

Jul 15 Aug15 Sep15 Oct 15 Nov 15 Dec15 Jan 16 Feb 16 Mar16 Apr16 May16 Jun 16 Jul '15-Jun 16 Budget $ Over Budget %of Budget 

Total 8000 • Capital Improvement Program 387,790.51 362,246.06 141,800.25 173,535.33 74,658.74 75,309.44 1,215,340.33 1,729,000.00 -513,659.67 70.29% 

9000 • Capital Account Expenses 

9100 • Interest Expense -GO Bonds 26,484.91 26,484.91 315,346.00 -288,861.09 8.4%) 

9125 · PNC Equipment Lease Interest 887.68 1,768.14 3,512.71 1,744.54 1,736.63 1,728.71 11,378.41 20,790.00 -9,411.59 54.73% 

9150 · SRF Loan 25,540.12 25,540.12 25,540.12 100.0% 

Total 9000 · Capital Account Expenses 887.68 28,253.05 3,512.71 1,744.54 27,276.75 1,728.71 63,403.44 336,136.00 -272,732.56 18.86% 

Total other Expense 887.68 416,043.56 365,758.77 141,800.25 175,279.87 101,935.49 77,038.15 1,278,743.77 2,065,136.00 -786,392.23 61.92% 

Net Other Income 11,074.32 -416,043.56 -340,260.66 -112,213.25 -144,251.64 473,098.17 -68,873.68 -597,470.30 -757,700.00 160,229.70 78.85% 

Net Income 116,754.63 -361,779.86 -310,934.89 -45,455,22 -73,943.74 589,787.69 68,620,23 -36,951.16 -2_13,391.00 176,439.84 17.32% 

See Executive Summary Document Page 10 of 10 



2:22 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District 
2/11/16 Funds Balance Sheet 
Accrual Basis As of January 31, 2016 

Sewer Water TOTAL 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Checking/Savings 
Sewer - Bank Accounts 

Wells Fargo Operating - Sewer 1,918,119.56 0.00 1,918,119.56 
LAIF Investment Fund 

Capital Reserve 3,789,563.62 0.00 3,789,563.62 
Connection Fees Reserve 325,604.00 0.00 325,604.00 
Operating Reserve 158,079.00 0.00 158,079.00 

Total LAIF Investment Fund 4,273,246.62 0.00 4,273,246.62 

Total Sewer - Bank Accounts 6,191,366.18 0.00 6,191,366.18 

Water - Bank Accounts 
Wells Fargo Operating - Water 0.00 546,618.31 546,618.31 
Capital Reserve 0.00 398,249.00 398,249.00 
Operating Reserve 0.00 190,251.00 190,251.00 
Restricted Cash 

Acq & lmprov Fund 0.00 436.13 436.13 
Connection Fees Reserve 0.00 157,000.00 157,000.00 
Cost of Issuance 0.00 122.94 122.94 
GO Bonds Fund 0.00 1,411,446.46 1,411,446.46 

Total Restricted Cash 0.00 1,569,005.53 1,569,005.53 

Total Water - Bank Accounts 0.00 2,704,123.84 2,704,123.84 

Total Checking/Savings 6,191,366.18 2,704,123.84 8,895,490.02 

Accounts Receivable 
Sewer - Accounts Receivable 

Accounts Receivable 13,612.67 0.00 13,612.67 
Property Tax Receivable 20,625.07 0.00 20,625.07 

Total Sewer - Accounts Receivable 34,237.74 0.00 34,237.74 

Water - Accounts Receivable 
Accounts Receivable 0.00 -2,600.00 -2,600.00 
Accounts Rec. - Backflow 0.00 10,989.51 10,989.51 
Accounts Rec. - Water Residents 0.00 93,467.19 93,467.19 
Unbilled Water Receivables 0.00 195,064.08 195,064.08 

Total Water - Accounts Receivable 0.00 296,920.78 296,920.78 

Total Accounts Receivable 34,237.74 296,920.78 331,158.52 

Other Current Assets 
Maint/Parts Inventory 0.00 42,656.32 42,656.32 

Total Other Current Assets 0.00 42,656.32 42,656.32 

Total Current Assets 6,225,603.92 3,043,700.94 9,269,304.86 

Fixed Assets 
Sewer - Fixed Assets 

General Plant 2,091,544.42 0.00 2,091,544.42 
Land 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 
Other Capital lmprov. 

Sewer-Original Cost 685,599.18 0.00 685,599.18 
Other Cap. lmprov. 2,564,810.39 0.00 2,564,810.39 

Total Other Capital lmprov. 3,250,409.57 0.00 3,250,409.57 

Seal Cove Collection System 995,505.00 0.00 995,505.00 
Sewage Collection Facility 

Collection Facility • Org. Cost 1,349,064.00 0.00 1,349,064.00 
Collection Facility - Other 3,991,243.33 0.00 3,991,243.33 

Total Sewage Collection Facility 5,340,307.33 0.00 5,340,307.33 

Page 1 



2:22 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District 
2/11/16 Funds Balance Sheet 
Accrual Basis As of January 31, 2016 

Treatment Facility 244,539.84 0.00 244,539.84 
Accumulated Depreciation -6,886,088.00 0.00 -6,886,088.00 

Total Sewer - Fixed Assets 5,041,218.16 0.00 5,041,218.16 

Water - Fixed Assets 
General Plant 0.00 24,301,100.60 24,301,100.60 
Land & Easements 0.00 734,500.00 734,500.00 
Surface Water Rights 0.00 300,000.00 300,000.00 
Water Meters 0.00 1,058,985.00 1,058,985.00 
Fixed Assets - Other 0.00 48,171.78 48,171.78 
Accumulated Depreciation 0.00 -8,014,973.00 -8,014,973.00 

Total Water - Fixed Assets 0.00 18,427,784.38 18,427,784.38 

Total Fixed Assets 5,041,218.16 18,427,784.38 23,469,002.54 

Other Assets 
Sewer - Other Assets 

Due from Water Fund 803,385.23 0.00 803,385.23 
Joint Power Authority 

SAM - Orig Collection Facility 981,592.00 0.00 981,592.00 
SAM - Expansion 1,705,955.08 0.00 1,705,955.08 

Total Joint Power Authority 2,687,547.08 0.00 2,687,547.08 

Total Sewer - Other Assets 3,490,932.31 0.00 3,490,932.31 

Water - Other Assets 
Bond Acquisition Cost 010 0.00 62,522.40 62,522.40 
Bond Issue Cost 0.00 66,832.40 66,832.40 

Total Water - Other Assets 0.00 129,354.80 129,354.80 

Total Other Assets 3,490,932.31 129,354.80 3,620,287.11 

Due From/(To) 
Sewer 0.00 -580,019.07 
Water 580,019.07 0.00 

Total Due From/(To) 580,019.07 -580,019.07 0.00 

TOTAL ASSETS 15,337,773.46 21,020,821.05 36,358,594.51 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 
Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

Accounts Payable - Sewer 7,957.00 0.00 7,957.00 
Accounts Payable - Water 0.00 23,131.58 23,131.58 

Total Accounts Payable 7,957.00 23,131.58 31,088.58 

Other Current Liabilities 
Sewer - Current Liabilities 

Accrued Vacations 357.63 0.00 357.63 
Deposits Payable 9,583.00 0.00 9,583.00 
I-Bank Loan - Current 26,540.23 0.00 26,540.23 
PNC Equip. Loan - SIT 16,276.02 0.00 16,276.02 

Total Sewer - Current Liabilities 52,756.88 0.00 52,756.88 

Water - Current Liabilities 
Accrued Payables - Water 0.00 903.90 903.90 
Accrued Vacations 0.00 16,555.47 16,555.47 
Deposits Payable 0.00 6,308.35 6,308.35 
GO Bonds - SIT 0.00 418,781.41 418,781.41 
PFP Water Deposits 0.00 4,302.50 4,302.50 
PNC Equip. Loan - SIT 0.00 16,275.99 16,275.99 

Total Water - Current Liabilities 0.00 463,127.62 463,127.62 

Page 2 



2:22 PM Montara Water & Sanitary District 
2/11/16 Funds Balance Sheet 
Accrual Basis As of January 31, 2016 

Payroll Liabilities 

Employee Benefits Payable 3,138.89 5,729.22 8,868.11 

Total Payroll Liabilities 3,138.89 5,729.22 8,868.11 

Total Other Current Liabilities 55,895.77 468,856.84 524,752.61 

Total Current Liabilities 63,852.77 491,988.42 555,841.19 

Long Term Liabilities 
Sewer - Long Term Liabilities 

Accrued Vacations 3,890.95 0.00 3,890.95 
I-Bank Loan 800,575.13 0.00 800,575.13 
PNC Equip. Loan - UT 683,657.26 0.00 683,657.26 

Total Sewer - Long Term Liabilities 1,488,123.34 0.00 1,488,123.34 

Water - Long Term Liabilities 
Accrued Vacations 0.00 12,283.28 12,283.28 
Deferred on Refunding 0.00 -243,278.00 -243,278.00 
Due to Sewer Fund 0.00 803,385.23 803,385.23 
GO Bonds - UT 0.00 12,334,204.80 12,334,204.80 
PNC Equip. Loan - UT 0.00 683,657.28 683,657.28 
SRF Loan Payable 0.00 2,599,694.43 2,599,694.43 

Total Water - Long Term Liabilities 0.00 16,189,947.02 16,189,947.02 

Total Long Term Liabilities 1,488,123.34 16,189,947.02 17,678,070.36 

Total Liabilities 1,551,976.11 16,681,935.44 18,233,911.55 

Equity 
Sewer - Equity Accounts 

Capital Assets Net 3,408,252.20 0.00 3,408,252.20 
Fund Balance - Unrestricted 8,646,292.87 0.00 8,646,292.87 
Retained Earnings 296,823.22 0.00 296,823.22 

Total Sewer - Equity Accounts 12,351,368.29 0.00 12,351,368.29 

Water - Equity Accounts 
Capital Assets Net 0.00 2,868,858.70 2,868,858.70 
Restricted Debt Service 0.00 1,384,997.90 1,384,997.90 
Unrestricted 0.00 -1,562,801.59 -1,562,801.59 
Retained Earnings 0.00 -296,823.22 -296,823.22 

Total Water - Equity Accounts 0.00 2,394,231.79 2,394,231.79 

Equity Adjustment Account 1,105,077.04 1,981,604.98 3,086,682.02 
Net Income 329,352.02 -36,951.16 292,400.86 

Total Equity 13,785,797.35 4,338,885.61 18,124,682.96 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 15,337,773.46 21,020,821.05 36,358,594.51 

Page3 



2:03 PM 

02/11/16 

Accrual Basis 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

4220 · Cell Tower Lease 
4400 · Fees 

4410 · Administrative Fee (New Constr) 
4420 • Administrative Fee (Remodel) 
4430 · Inspection Fee (New Constr) 
4440 · Inspection Fee (Remodel) 
4450 • Mainline Extension Fees 

Total 4400 • Fees 

4610 • Property Tax Receipts 
4740 • Testing, Backflow 
4810 • Water Sales, Domestic 
4850 • Water Sales Refunds, Customer 
4990 · Other Revenue 

Total Income 

Expense 
5000 • Administrative 

5190 • Bank Fees 
5200 · Board of Directors 

521 O • Board Meetings 
5220 · Director Fees 

Total 5200 · Board of Directors 

5240 • CDPH Fees 
5250 · Conference Attendance 
5270 · Information Systems 
5300 · Insurance 

5320 · Property & Liability Insurance 

Total 5300 • Insurance 

5350 · LAFCO Assessment 
5400 • Legal 

5420 • Meeting Attendance, Legal 
5430 · General Legal 

Total 5400 · Legal 

5510 • Maintenance, Office 
5530 • Memberships 
5540 • Office Supplies 
5550 • Postage 
5560 • Printing & Publishing 
5600 • Professional Services 

5610 · Accounting 
5620 · Audit 
5630 · Consulting 
5640 · Data Services 
5650 · Labor & HR Support 
5660 • Payroll Services 
5690 · Other Professional Services 

Total 5600 · Professional Services 

See Executive Summary Document 

Montara Water & Sanitary District 
Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water 

July 2015 through January 2016 

Water 

19,447.33 18,666.69 

1,896.00 2,625.00 
0.00 525.00 

1,792.00 2,479.19 
0.00 466.69 

19,951.00 

23,639.00 6,095.88 

214,275.36 115,000.00 
12,051.00 7,583.31 

1,029,426.87 981,594.81 
-1,488.35 -1,750.00 
1,956.00 

1,299,307.21 1,127,190.69 

3,528.57 5,250.00 

525.50 1,458.31 
1,725.00 1,925.00 

2,250.50 3,383.31 

15,229.34 8,750.00 
1,200.00 2,333.31 

0.00 1,866.69 

1,688.18 1,023.75 

1,688.18 1,023.75 

0.00 1,633.31 

4,812.00 4,958.31 
22,287.00 35,000.00 

27,099.00 39,958.31 

5,944.13 3,500.00 
17,225.15 10,500.00 
3,594.08 5,250.00 
4,048.83 3,500.00 

340.01 1,166.69 

17,992.50 17,500.00 
12,050.00 13,000.00 
21.573.71 14,583.31 
1,978.00 

750.00 
484.46 495.81 
226.94 

55,055.61 45,579.12 

Over Budget 

780.64 

-729.00 
-525.00 
-687.19 
-466.69 

17,543.12 

99,275.36 
4,467.69 

47,832.06 
261.65 

172,116.52 

-1,721.43 

-932.81 
-200.00 

-1,132.81 

6,479.34 
-1,133.31 
-1,866.69 

664.43 

664.43 

-1,633.31 

-146.31 
-12,713.00 

-12,859.31 

2,444.13 
6,725.15 

-1,655.92 
548.83 

-826.68 

492.50 
-950.00 

6,990.40 

-11.35 

9,476.49 

Page 1 



2:03 PM 

02/11/16 

Accrual Basis 

5710 · San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 
5720 · Telephone & Internet 
5730 · Mileage Reimbursement 
57 40 · Reference Materials 
5800 · Labor 

5810 • CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 
5820 · Employee Benefits 
5830 · Disability Insurance 
5840 · Payroll Taxes 
5850 · PARS 
5900 · Wages 

5910 · Management 
5920 · Staff 
5930 · Staff Certification 
5940 • Staff Overtime 
5950 · Staff Standby 

Total 5900 · Wages 

5960 • Worker's Comp Insurance 

Total 5800 · Labor 

Total 5000 • Administrative 

6000 • Operations 
6160 • Backflow Prevention 
6170 · Claims, Property Damage 
6180 · Communications 

6185 • SCADA Maintenance 

Total 6180 · Communications 

6195 · Education & Training 
6200 · Engineering 

6210 · Meeting Attendance, Engineering 
6220 • General Engineering 
6230 • Water Quality Engineering 

Total 6200 · Engineering 

6320 • Equipment & Tools, Expensed 
6330 · Facilities 

6335 · Alarm Services 
6337 · Landscaping 

Total 6330 • Faclllties 

6370 • Lab Supplies & Equipment 
6400 • Pumping 

6410 • Pumping Fuel & Electricity 
6420 • Pumping Maintenance, Generators 
6430 · Pumping Maintenance, General 
6440 · Pumping Equipment, Expensed 

Total 6400 • Pumping 

6500 • Supply 
6520 · Maintenance, Wells 
6530 · Water Purchases 

Total 6500 · Supply 

See Executive Summary Document 

Montara Water & Sanitary District 
Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water 

July 2015 through January 2016 

Jul '15. Jan 16 

50,807.47 
175,103.46 

5,310.00 
28,190.26 
13,020.71 

17,856.65 
37,637.90 

1,683.12 
19,363.26 
2,101.16 

272,431.90 

4,787.58 

122.50 
9,371.49 
1,075.37 

0.00 

355,861.57 

9,494.66 

0.00 
10,995.00 
38,495.48 

345.22 
3,606.15 

30,466.44 
4,771.43 
1,007.41 
1,641.07 

10,193.45 
20,264.06 

503,634.33 

4,419.61 
0.00 

9.494.66 

1,111.74 

49,490.48 

2,796.43 

3,951.37 

501.73 

37,886.35 

30,457.51 

Water 

Budget 

50,190.56 
197,624.56 

5,347.44 
29,118.81 
10,672.06 

20,506.50 
35,744.94 
2,070.25 

22,411.06 
65,214.31 

292,953.43 

9,927.75 

5,250.00 
1,166.69 

466.69 

448,828.24 

8,750.00 

1,166.69 
17,500.00 
20,416.69 
--

437.50 
2,625.00 

37,916.69 
7,583.31 
1,458.31 
1,166.69 

2,916.69 
23,333.31 

589,406.11 

2,333.31 
5,833.31 

8,750.00 

3,500.00 

39,083.38 

3,500.00 

3,062.50 

583.31 

48,125.00 

26,250.00 

$ Over Budget 

-2,649.85 
1,892.96 
-387.13 

-3,047.80 
-63,113.15 

616.91 
-22,521.10 

-37.44 
-928.55 

2,348.65 

-20,521.53 

-5, 140.17 

4,121.49 
-91.32 

-466.69 

-92,966.67 

-85,771.78 

2,086.30 
-5,833.31 

744.66 

744.66 

-2,388.26 

-1,166.69 
-6,505.00 
18,078.79 
--

10,407.10 

-703.57 

-92.28 
981.15 
--

888.87 

-81.58 

-7,450.25 
-2,811.88 

-450.90 
474.38 

-10,238.65 

7,276.76 
-3,069.25 

4,207.51 

Page 2 



2:03 PM 

02/11/16 

Accrual Basis 

6600 • Collection/Transmission 
6610 · Hydrants 
6620 • Maintenance, Water Mains 
6630 • Maintenance, Water Svc Lines 
6640 • Maintenance, Tanks 
6650 • Maint., Distribution General 
6670 • Meters 

Total 6600 • Collectlon/Transmlsslon 

6700 · Treatment 
6710 · Chemicals & Filtering 
6720 · Maintenance, Treatment Equip. 
6730 · Treatment Analysis 

Total 6700 • Treatment 

6770 · Uniforms 
6800 · Vehicles 

6810 · Fuel 
6820 · Truck Equipment, Expensed 
6830 · Truck Repairs 

Total 6800 · Vehicles 

6890 · Other Operations 

Total 6000 · Operations 

Total Expense 

Net Ordinary Income 

Other Income/Expense 
Other Income 

7000 · Capital Account Revenues 
7100 • Connection Fees 

7110 · Connection Fees (New Constr) 
7120 • Connection Fees (Remodel) 
7130 ·Conn.Fees, PFP (New Constr) 

Total 7100 • Connection Fees 

7600 · Bond Revenues, G.O. 

Total 7000 • Capital Account Revenues 

Total Other Income 

Other Expense 
8000 · Capital Improvement Program 

8100 · Water 

Total 8000 · Capital Improvement Program 

See Executive Summary Document 

Montara Water & Sanitary District 
Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water 

July 2015 through January 2016 

Jul '15 - Jan 16 

0.00 
47,626.79 

3,019.61 
307.06 

0.00 
1,810.77 

52,764.23 

2,964.32 
5,296.92 

22,418.19 

3,787.46 
229.41 
332.49 

48,630.50 
0.00 

40,768.00 

30,679.43 

6,675.84 

4,349.36 

575.00 

235,153.74 

738,788.07 

560,519.14 

89,398.50 

591,874.97 

681,273.47 

681,273.47 

1,215,340.33 

1,215,340.33 

Water 

Budget 

583.31 
32,083.31 
14,583.31 

583.31 
5,833.31 
1,458.31 

17,500.00 
2,333.31 

14,583.31 

4,958.31 
1,166.69 
2,916.69 

58,916.69 
1,750.00 

30,916.69 

55,124.86 

34,416.62 

5,250.00 

9,041.69 

244,853.98 

834,260.09 

292,930.60 

91,583.38 

671,087.69 

762,671.07 

762,671.07 

1,008,583.31 

1,008,583.31 

$ Over Budget 

-583.31 
15,543.48 

-11,563.70 
-276.25 

-5,833.31 
352.46 

-14,535.68 
2,963.61 
7,834.88 

-1, 170.85 
-937.28 

-2,584.20 

-10,286.19 
-1,750.00 
9,851.31 

-2,360.63 

-3,737.19 

1,425.84 

-4,692.33 

-9,700.24 

-95,472.02 

267,588.54 

-2,184.88 

-79,212.72 

-81,397.60 

-81,397.60 

206,757.02 

206,757.02 

Page3 



2:03 PM 

02/11/16 

Accrual Basis 

9000 · Capital Account Expenses 
9100 • Interest Expense - GO Bonds 
9125 · PNC Equipment Lease Interest 
9150 • SRF Loan 

Total 9000 · Capital Account Expenses 

Total Other Expense 

Net Other Income 

Net Income 

See Executive Summary Document 

Montara Water & Sanitary District 
Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Water 

July 2015 through January 2016 

Jul '15 -Jan 16 

26,484.91 
11,378.41 
25,540.12 

63,403.44 

1,278,743.77 

-597,470.30 

-36,951.16 

Water 

Budget 

315,346.00 
12,266.09 

327,612.09 

1,336,195.40 

-573,524.33 

-280,593. 73 

$ Over Budget 

-288,861.09 
-887.68 

-264,208.65 

-57,451.63 

-23,945.97 

243,642.57 

Page4 



4:11 PM 

02/18/16 

Accrual Basis 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

4220 • Cell Tower Lease 
4400 · Fees 

4410 · Administrative Fee (New Constr) 
4420 · Administrative Fee (Remodel) 
4430 • Inspection Fee (New Constr) 
4440 • Inspection Fee (Remodel) 
4460 · Remodel Fees 

Total 4400 • Fees 

4610 · Property Tax Receipts 
4710 • Sewer Service Charges 
4720 · Sewer Service Refunds, Customer 
4760 • Waste Collection Revenues 
4990 · Other Revenue 

Total Income 

Expense 
5000 • Administrative 

5190 • Bank Fees 
5200 · Board of Directors 

5210 • Board Meetings 
5220 · Director Fees 

Total 5200 · Board of Directors 

5250 • Conference Attendance 
5270 · Information Systems 
5300 • Insurance 

5320 · Property & Liability Insurance 

Total 5300 • Insurance 

5350 · LAFCO Assessment 
5400 • Legal 

5420 • Meeting Attendance, Legal 
5430 • General Legal 

Total 5400 • Legal 

5510 · Maintenance, Office 
5540 · Office Supplies 
5550 · Postage 
5560 • Printing & Publishing 
5600 · Professional Services 

5610 · Accounting 
5620 · Audit 
5630 · Consulting 
5640 • Data Services 
5650 • Labor & HR Support 
5660 · Payroll Services 

Total 5600 · Professional Services 

5710 · San Mateo Co. Tax Roll Charges 
5720 · Telephone & Internet 
5730 • MIieage Reimbursement 
57 40 • Reference Materials 

See Executive Summary Document 

Montara Water & Sanitary District 
Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer 

July 2015 through January 2016 

Sewer 

Jul '15 • Jan 16 Budget 

19,447.26 18,666.69 

1,422.00 1,458.31 
474.00 1,750.00 

1,344.00 1,166.69 
1,808.00 2,625.00 

30,645.00 4,083.31 

35,693.00 11,083.31 

214,275.39 115,000.00 
1,056,939.32 1,019,971.50 

0.00 ·2,333.31 
8,896.00 8,750.00 

9.99 

1,335,260.96 1,171,138.19 

1,952.85 2,333.31 

525.50 1,458.31 
1,725.00 1,925.00 

2,250.50 3,383.31 

0.00 1,166.69 
0.00 3,500.00 

1,688.18 1,023.75 

1,688.18 1,023.75 

4,046.00 1,159.06 

4,813.50 5,541.69 
14,925.00 8,750.00 

19,738.50 14,291.69 

5,944.21 3,500.00 
3,594.13 5,250.00 

900.18 1,166.69 
440.02 1,750.00 

17,992.50 17,500.00 
12,050.00 13,000.00 
13,122.55 7,583.31 
6,722.49 3,500.00 

750.00 1,312.50 
484.46 466.69 

51,122.00 43,362.50 

115.50 1,458.31 
6,006.97 5,250.00 

366.30 875.00 
0.00 116.69 

$ Over Budget 

780.57 

-36.31 
-1,276.00 

177.31 
-817.00 

26,561.69 

24,609.69 

99,275.39 
36,967.82 
2,333.31 

146.00 

164,122.77 

-380.46 

-932.81 
-200.00 

-1,132.81 

-1, 166.69 
-3,500.00 

664.43 

664.43 

2,886.94 

-728.19 
6,175.00 

5,446.81 

2,444.21 
-1,655.87 

-266.51 
-1,309.98 

492.50 
-950.00 

5,539.24 
3,222.49 
-562.50 

17.77 

7,759.50 

-1,342.81 
756.97 

-508.70 
-116.69 

Page 1 



4:11 PM 

02/18/16 

Accrual Basis 

5800 · Labor 
5810 · CalPERS 457 Deferred Plan 
5820 • Employee Benefits 
5830 · Disability Insurance 
5840 · Payroll Taxes 
5850 • PARS 
5900 · Wages 

5910 • Management 
5920 • Staff 
5930 • Staff Certification 
5940 • Staff Overtime 
5950 • Staff Standby 

Total 5900 · Wages 

5960 · Worker's Comp Insurance 

Total 5800 • Labor 

Total 5000 • Administrative 

6000 • Operations 
6170 · Claims, Property Damage 
6195 · Education & Training 
6200 • Engineering 

6210 • Meeting Attendance, Engineering 
6220 • General Engineering 

Total 6200 • Engineering 

6320 · Equipment & Tools, Expensed 
6330 • Facilities 

6335 • Alarm Services 
6337 · Landscaping 

Total 6330 • Facilities 

6400 · Pumping 
6410 · Pumping Fuel & Electricity 

Total 6400 · Pumping 

6600 · Collection/Transmission 
6660 · Maintenance, Collection System 

Total 6600 • Collection/Transmission 

6800 • Vehicles 
6810 · Fuel 
6820 · Truck Equipment, Expensed 
6830 · Truck Repairs 

Total 6800 · Vehicles 

See Executive Summary Document 

Montara Water & Sanitary District 
Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer 

July 2015 through January 2016 

Jul '15 - Jan 16 

50,807.48 
59,933.48 

1,050.00 
1.451.12 

0.00 

7,926.85 
16,879.92 

680.19 
7,190.02 

514.27 

113,242.08 

490.61 

146,923.94 

0.00 
11,398.75 

3,642.82 
2,462.06 

10,025.23 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

245,089.28 

0.00 
0.00 

11,398.75 

0.00 

6,104.88 

10,025.23 

0.00 

0.00 

Sewer 

Budget 

50,190.56 
60,135.81 

1,081.50 
2,168.81 

669.06 

7,996.94 
21,289.94 

845.81 
8,740.06 

26,416.25 

114,245.74 

2,269.75 

181,804.49 

1,166.69 
29,166.69 

2,916.69 
1,400.00 --

15,750.00 
--

5,833.31 

466.69 
93.31 

233.31 

271,391.49 

5,833.31 
583.31 

30,333.38 

583.31 

4,316.69 

15,750.00 

5,833.31 

793.31 

$ Over Budget 

616.92 
-202.33 

-31.50 
-717.69 
-669.06 

-70.09 
-4,410.02 

-165.62 
-1,550.04 

-25,901.98 

-1,003.66 

-1,779.14 

-34,880.55 

-26,302.21 

-5,833.31 
-583.31 

-1,166.69 
-17,767.94 

-18,934.63 

726.13 
1,062.06 

-5,724.77 

-5,833.31 

-466.69 
-93.31 

-233.31 

-583.31 

1,788.19 

-5,724.77 

-5,833.31 

-793.31 

Page 2 



4:11 PM 

02/18/16 

Accrual Basis 

6900 • Sewer Authority Midcoastside 
6910 · SAM Collections 
6920 • SAM Operations 
6940 • SAM Maintenance, Collection Sys 
6950 .-SAM Maintenance, Pumping 

Total 6900 · Sewer Authority Midcoastside 

Total 6000 · Operations 

Total Expense 

Net Ordinary Income 

Other Income/Expense 
Other income 

7000 • Capital Account Revenues 
7100 · Connection Fees 

7110 · Connection Fees (New Constr) 
7120 · Connection Fees (Remodel) 

Total 7100 • Connection Fees 

7200 • Interest Income - LAIF 
7700 • Interest, Employee Loans 

Total 7000 · Capital Account Revenues 

Total Other Income 

Other Expense 
8000 · Capital Improvement Program 

8075 · Sewer 
8100 · Water 

Total 8000 • Capital Improvement Program 

9000 • Capital Account Exp_enses 
9125 · PNC Equipment Lease Interest 
9175 · Capital Assessment· SAM 
9200 · I-Bank Loan 

Total 9000 · Capital Account Expenses 

Total Other Expense 

Net Other Income 

Net Income 

See Executive Summary Document 

Montara Water & Sanitary District 
Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual - Sewer 

July 2015 through January 2016 

Jul '15 - Jan 16 

210,294.00 
412,937.00 

20,984.97 
0.00 

644,215.97 

671,744.83 

916,834.11 

418,426.85 

53,363.00 
12,439.00 

65,802.00 

7,404.14 
895.42 

74,101.56 

74,101.56 

45,869.25 
0.00 

45,869.25 

11,378.38 
93,723.00 
4,801.62 
--

109,903.00 

155,772.25 

-81,670.69 

336,756.16 

Sewer 

Budget 

210,291.69 
412,937.00 

23,333.31 
29,166.69 

675,728.69 

739,755.31 

1,011,146.80 

159,991.39 

160,769.00 
29,166.69 

189,935.69 

4,000.00 
2,011.87 

195,947.56 

195,947.56 

399,865.06 

399,865.06 

12,266.09 
93,721.81 
26,022.00 

132,009.90 

531,874.96 

-335,927.40 

-175,936.01 

$ Over Budget 

2.31 
0.00 

-2,348.34 
-29,166.69 

-31,512.72 

-68,010.48 

-94,312.69 

258,435.46 

-107,406.00 
-16,727.69 

-124.133.69 

3,404.14 
-1,116.45 

-121,846.00 

-121,846.00 

-353,995.81 

-353,995.81 

-887.71 
1.19 

-21,220.38 

-22,106.90 

-376,102.71 

254,256.71 

512,692.17 

Page 3 



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

For Meeting Of: March 3, 2016 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS .. _,,.-J') 

Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 0.~ FROM: 
J 

SUBJECT: SAM Flow Report for January 2016 

The Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside (SAM) has prepared the following attached 
reports for the SAM Board of Directors and the California Regional Water Quality 
Control Board: 

• Flow Report for January 2016. 

• Collection System Monthly Overflow Report,.... January 2016. 

The Average Daily Flow for Montara was 0.532 MGD in January 2016. There 
were no reportable overflows in January in the Montara System. SAM indicates 
there were 8.28 inches of rain in January 2016. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Review and file. 

Attachments 



January 2016 

Roots 
Grease 

Mechanical 
Wet Weather 

Other 
Total 

12 Month Moving Total 

Roots 
Grease 

Mechanical 
Wet Weather 

Other 
Total 

Reportable SSOs 

January 2016 
12 Month Moving Total 

SSOs I Year I 100 Miles 

January 2016 
12 Month Moving Total 

Category 1 
Category 2 
Category 3 

Miles of Sewers 

Total 
1 
0 
0 
0 
1 
2 

Total 
7 
2 
2 
0 
4 
15 

Total 
2 
15 

Total 
1.9 
14.4 
0.0 
1.9 

12.4 

104.5 1 

Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside 

Monthly Collection System Activity/SSO Distribution Report, January 2016 

Number of S.S. O's 
HMB GCSD MWSD SAM 

0 1 0 0 
0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 1 
0 1 0 1 

50% 50% 

12 month rolling Number 
HMB GCSD MWSD SAM 

1 3 3 0 
1 0 1 0 
o o 1 1 
o o o 0 
3 0 1 0 
5 3 6 1 

33% 20% 40% 7% 

Reportable Number of S.S. 0 . 's 
HMB GCSD MWSD SAM 

0 1 0 1 
5 3 6 1 

Number of S.S.O.'s !Year/100 Miles 
HMB GCSD MWSD SAM 
0.0 3.0 0.0 13.7 
13.5 9.0 22.2 13.7 
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
5.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 
8.1 9.0 22.2 13.7 

37.0 33.2 27.0 7.3 
35.4% 31 .8% 25.8% 7.0% 

I 

12 Month Rolling Total Sewer Cleaning Summary 

Total Total 
Month HMB GCSD MWSD Feet Miles 
Feb-15 4,134 14 324 21,170 39,628 7.5 
Mar-15 5127 10 476 18,072 33,675 6.4 
Aor-15 4 069 24 727 25 006 53 802 10.2 
May-15 5,273 22,269 29,550 57,092 10.8 
June-15 21,965 16,335 2,161 40,461 7.7 
July-15 21 ,643 18 222 2166 42 031 8.0 
Aua-15 22 512 17 746 o 40 258 7.6 
Seo-15 17 470 31 071 1 955 50496 9.6 
Oct-15 33 863 11 254 1 679 46 796 8.9 
Nov-15 24 921 1 834 2 031 28 786 5.5 
Dec-15 24177 2 740 2 029 28 946 5.5 
Jan-16 6 806 16 774 10 598 34178 6.5 

~ = m 
n 
::J' 

~I -A-nn_u_a-lft~!-19-1-,9-6-0~!-1-87-,7-7-2~!-1-1-6,-41-7~!~4-9-6-,1-4-9~!~~--.I~ 
~ -

I Annual Mi.! 36.4 I 35.6 I 22.0 I I 94.0 ] C 

20 

18 

16 

14 

12 

10 

8 

6 

4 

2 

0 

12 Month Moving SSO Totals Through January 2016 

' f: I r I r I ~ l 
1 2 3 4 S 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 

11 All S.S.O. 's 

• catl 

Cat 2 

• Cat3 



Attachment A 

Flow Distribution Report Summary For January 2016 

The daily flow report figures for the month of January 2016 have been converted to an Average 
Daily Flow (ADF) for each Member Agency. The results are attached for your review. 

*Influent flow is calculated using the mid-plant flow meter less process water and trucked in waste 

The summary of the ADF information is as follows: 

5.000 

4.500 

4.000 

3.500 

3.000 

0 
~ 2.500 

2.000 

1.500 

1.000 

0.500 

0.000 

MGD % 

The City of Half Moon Bay 0.946 47.3% 

Granada Community Services District 0.520 26.0% 

Montara Water and Sanitary District ~ 26.6% 

Total 1.999 100.0% 

Sewer Authori t y Mid-Coastside 
Monthly Flow Distribution Report, January 2016 

•--· -

-0- HM B --+- GCSD --+- MWSD -.-Plant ·· • · Rain, inches 

\ 

2.50 

2.00 

1.50 .,, 
<lJ 

.r: 
u 
C: 

c:' 
ro 

1.00 o:: 

0.50 

· - · 0.00 



Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside 

Monthly Flow Distribution Report for January 2016 

Rain Rain Rain 
Date HMB GCSD MWSD Plant Plant Portola Montara 

1/1/2016 0.638 0.390 0.285 1.313 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1/2/2016 0.654 0.391 0.291 1.336 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1/3/2016 0.674 0.395 0.289 1.358 0.05 0.06 0.07 
1/4/2016 0.754 0.356 0.301 1.411 0.08 0.10 0.12 
1/5/2016 1.169 0.555 0.702 2.426 1.11 0.99 1.29 
1/6/2016 1.573 0.789 0.955 3.317 1.21 1.22 1.25 
1/7/2016 0.880 0.548 0.608 2.036 0.05 0.04 0.04 
1/8/2016 0.833 0.463 0.467 1.764 0.00 0.01 0.00 
1/9/2016 0.781 0.477 0.431 1.689 0.01 0.00 0.05 
1/10/2016 0.786 0.475 0.412 1.673 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1/11/2016 0.730 0.244 0.409 1.383 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1/12/2016 0.690 0.377 0.455 1.522 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1/13/2016 0.785 0.437 0.402 1.624 0.50 0.20 0.33 
1/14/2016 0.770 0.426 0.392 1.588 0.31 0.19 0.35 
1/15/2016 0.713 0.431 0.425 1.569 0.13 0.17 0.22 
1/16/2016 0.846 0.496 0.479 1.821 0.13 0.10 0.21 
1/17/2016 0.952 0.570 0.584 2.106 1.19 1.30 1.44 
1/18/2016 1.810 0.918 1.088 3.816 0.19 0.15 0.28 
1/19/2016 2.143 1.025 1.349 4.517 2.06 1.30 1.50 
1/20/2016 1.299 0.708 0.816 2.823 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1/21/2016 0.997 0.599 0.620 2.217 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1/22/2016 1.064 0.561 0.574 2.199 0.55 0.17 0.32 
1/23/2016 1.086 0.606 0.599 2.291 0.11 0.20 0.18 
1/24/2016 0.976 0.584 0.541 2.101 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1/25/2016 0.880 0.461 0.480 1.821 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1/26/2016 0.732 0.457 0.361 1.550 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1/27/2016 0.713 0.463 0.448 1.624 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1/28/2016 0.827 0.440 0.369 1.636 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1/29/2016 0.891 0.454 0.422 1.767 0.75 0.25 0.63 
1/30/2016 0.866 0.530 0.498 1.894 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1/31/2016 0.827 0.497 0.451 1.775 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Totals 29.341 16.123 16.503 61.967 8.43 6.45 8.28 

Summary 

HMB GCSD MWSD Plant 

Minimum 0.638 0.244 0.285 1.313 

Average 0.946 0.520 0.532 1.999 

Maximum 2.143 1.025 1.349 4.517 

Distribution 47.3% 26.0% 26.6% 100.0% 



MGD 
0 0 .... .... ~ N w w .i:,. .i:,. \.n 

0 i.n 0 i.n 0 i.n 0 i.n 0 i.n 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

1/1/2016 I 
1/2/2016 I 

I 

1/3/2016 ~ 

1/4/2016 

1/5/2016 

1/6/2016 

1/7/2016 

1/8/2016 

+ 1/9/2016 

I 
1/10/2016 i ~ 

s 0 
OJ ::::l 

1/11/2016 
,...,. 

+ 
::; 

1/12/2016 -- --
-< - ,, V> 

GI - ro 
n 1/ 13/2016 

0 ~ 
VI ~ 0 ro 

+ 
1/14/2016 

0 """I 

-· )> 
Vl C 

1/15/2016 • ,...,. ,...,. 
::! . ::; 

s ! O" 0 
~ 1/16/2016 C """I 
VI ,...,. - · 
0 -·,...,. 

1/17/2016 
0 < 

+ 
::::l ~ 

1/18/2016 
;;:o -· ro 0. 

"U '"O I 

s;; 1/19/2016 0 n 
z """I 0 
-l ,r-t- OJ 

1/20/2016 i Vl '-- ,...,. 
fl 

OJ Vl 

I 1/21/2016 · - -
::::l 0. 
C ro 

"U OJ 
ru 1/22/2016 

"""I 

a < 
:0 N 
"' 1/23/2016 .... -
5· 0 

,. f-> 

1/24/ 2016 . en 
I 

1/25/2016 

1/26/2016 

1/27/2016 

1/28/2016 • ------ . 

1/29/2016 

1/30/2016 1 -- - .. 

1/31/2016 

0 0 .... .... N ~ 
0 i.n 0 i.n 0 VI 
0 0 0 0 0 0 

Rain, Inches 



Percent Distribution 
J-' N (.U .I>, V, cr, 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

i:::, i:::, i:::, i:::, i:::, i:::, i:::, 
"cf?- '*- "cf?- "cf?- *' "cf?- '*-

t 
1/1/2016 

1/2/2016 

::c 1/3/2016 $ 
co 

1/4/2016 

t 1/5/2016 

1/6/2016 Gl 
n 
V> 

1/7/2016 0 

t 
1/8/2016 

1/9/2016 

$ 
1/10/2016 ~ 

V> 
0 

1/11/2016 

t 
1/12/2016 

1/13/2016 -0 
""O 

(D 

DJ ""'I 

::l 1/14/2016 
'-- () 

.... OJ (D 
;,:) ::, ::, 
QJ 

::;· 1/15/2016 C l""T 
OJ 0 ""'I 

1/16/2016 < l/') 

N!'.:; 
1/17/2016 

0 -· 
...... 0-

C: 
1/18/2016 

(J) ~ 
::l 6' rt) 
QJ \ ::, ..... 

1/19/2016 "S: 
$ 
~ 1/20/2016 

1/21/2016 

1/22/2016 
r-
5' 1/23/2016 
rt) 

~ 
G) 1/24/2016 
n 
V> 

1/25/2016 3 

~ 1/26/2016 

1/27/2016 :-.. 
C: 1/28/2016 ::l 
rt) 

~ 
QJ 
..... 

1/29/2016 s:: 
~ 1/30/2016 V> 

3 
1/31/2016 . 

0 0 J-' J-' N N 

i:::, u, i:::, u, i:::, u, 
0 0 0 0 0 0 

Rain, Inches 



~. 
Jan-16 ,,............ '\. 

I' 
Dec-15 

I 
Oct-15 

~ 
Dec-15 

Aug-15 

Nov-15 I I I d Jun-15 

Apr-15 -Oct-15 .... ..... C: 
Feb-15 C: re 

"' a: a: U1 

I I 
,-t 

Dec-14 
0 Sep-15 N ,.._ 

\1 0 
1: 0 1: \.D 0 > \.D 

Vl 

I Oct-14 Vl 0 ('1J .-I s f1J .-I s z ..c 0 
Aug-15 2 ..c 0 2 C u N 

I 
UN I i 0 

5 C 5 C 

~ 
Aug-14 :.:; 

('1J 
0 ('1J re 0 ... -, 

<+= 
-, .n <+= I 

0 I 

( 
Jun-14 0 Jul-15 Vl I-

Vl re I- lJ) 
u ('1J ('V') u u ('1J .-I l9 

~ 
.-i l9 ..... QJ 0 

-I 
0 

I 
C >-(lJ N N Apr-14 u QJ .0 QJ 
(lJ H QJ .0 ... C QJ 

I 
Jun-15 I- QJ ..... Q LL co ..C LL 

Feb-14 
a:, Vl 

2 f- 2 0 
~ I I 

May-15 I Dec-13 I 
Oct-13 

Apr-15 I I I 
Aug-13 

Mar-15 I I 

·J 
Jun-13 

Apr-13 

Feb-15 I I I \ 
Feb-13 

11') CV) '11 N 11') rl 11') 0 11') N 11') rl 11') 0 rvi N ,..; c:i r-i ,..; c:i 



SUBJECT: 

MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

TO: 

For Meeting Of: March 3, 2016 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

Review of Current Investment Portfolio 

.. - "\"', 
/ ,'} 

The District's Investment Policy and Guidelines requires that the Board review 
the status of the current investment portfolio. The following summarizes the 
status of these accounts: 

~ The District has most of its idle sewer funds deposited in the State 
of California's Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). The Monthly 
Average interest rate for January 2016 was 0.446%. 

~ The District has one checking account with Wells Fargo Bank for 
Water and Sewer Funds that is largely backed by Federal securities. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

District staff attempts to cash manage idle funds in LAIF as long as possible 
before transferring to the Wells Fargo checking accounts for disbursements. 



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

TO: 

For Meeting Of: March 3, 2016 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Connection Permit Applications Receive 

As of March 3, 2016 the following new Sewer Connection Permit applications 
were received since the last report: 

Date of Property Site Address Home 
Application Owner Size 

2/9/2016 MG Capital LLC 1070 Date Street SFD 

As of March 3, 2016 the following new Water (Private Fire Sprinkler) 
Connection Permit applications were received since the last report: 

Date of Property Site Address Home 
Application Owner Size 

2/9/2016 MG Capital LLC 1070 Date Street SFD 

As of March 3, 2016 the following new Water Connection Permit applications 
were received since the last report: ' 

Date of Property Site Address Home Type of 
App. Owner Size Connection 

2/9/2016 MG Capital 1070 Date Street SFD Conversion 
LLC 

RECOMMENDATION: 
No action is required. This is for Board information only. 



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

For Meeting Of: March 3rd, 2016 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Monthly Water Production Report 

The attached two charts summarize the monthly water production for the District. 
The first shows a consolidated report from all sources by month. The second 
shows each water source the District uses, both wells and surface water. The 
production is shown in gallons of water produced. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

No action is required. This information is presented for the Board's information 
only. 

Attachments 



4.500,000 

4 

3 

2 

~ 
0 
...J 

<it 
C) 

I 

I 

a January 

c February 

• March 

• April 

• May 

• June 

• July 

• August 

• September 

• October 

• November 

• December 

PILLAR NORTH SOUTH 

RIDGE AIRPORT AIRPORT 
WELL WELL 

972,235 0 0 

MONTHLY WATER PRODUCTION 2016 

n 
AIRPORT DRAKE PORTOLA PORTOLA PORTOLA WAGNER ALTAVISTA MONT ARA 

WELL#3 WELL WELL#1 WELL#3 WELL#4 WELL#3 WELL SURFACE 
DIV. 

0 563,040 0 973,760 0 508,610 4,018,100 273,300 



CJ) 
z 
0 
..J 
..J 

~ 

Total Production 2016 (Gallons) 

8,000,000 

7,000,000 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

6,000,000 ~~~~~~~~~~~4 

5,000,000 ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

4,000,000 

3,000,000 

2,000,000 

1,000,000 ~§M§§M§§M§§MM§~~§~~+MM~e+e~~M~MMM+--+'+~~_:_;;_~ 

0 

Total Production (Gallons) 

MONTH 



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

For Meeting Of: March 3rd, 2016 
-·-, 

,n 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS / / ,> 

Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager tffl_ FROM: 

SUBJECT: Rain Report 

The attached chart shows the monthly rainfall at the Alta Vista Treatment Plant 
for the current and prior fiscal years along with the seven year average of rainfall. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

No action is required. This is presented for the Board's information only. 

Attachment 



ro 
"+c 
ro 
a: 
Q) 

> ·-...., 
ro -:::J 
E 
:::J 
u 
ro 
:::J 
C 
C .<( 



Monthly Rainfall Report Oct 2015 - Sept 2016 



MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

For Meeting Of: March 3rd, 2016 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS , 
· ·s: 

. , ···:;> 
FROM: Clemens Heldmaier, General Manage~ 

SUBJECT: Monthly Solar Energy Report 

The attached chart summarizes the monthly solar production at the Alta Vista 
Array. Since the installation of the solar panels the District produced 36573 kWh 
and saved 62173 lbs of CO2. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

No action is required. This information is presented for the Board's information 
only. 

Attachments 



SOLAR ENERGY PRODUCED IN 2016 (kWh) 

160 

"V 

' 

I 

.c 

~ I 

) 

) 

) 

) 
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec 

I 139 



SUBJECT: 

MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

TO: 

For Meeting Of: March 3, 2016 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

Receive Alta Vista Tank Construction Report 

Construction of the Alta Vista Tank No. 2 is going as planned. The tank 
construction itself has been completed and only minor outstanding items will be 
finished in the coming weeks. 

Staff would like to schedule a ribbon cutting ceremony for Thurdsday, March 17, 
at 2:00pm. 

Tim Monahan with SRT will present the current accomplishments summarized in 
the attached slide show. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

This is for Board information only. 

Attachments 



Alta Vista Tank No. 2 

Construction Update 

Montara Water and 

Sanitary District 

Board of Directors Meeting 

March 3, 2016 



Project Team 



Project Features 

Capacity:  500,000 gallons 
 

Type:  Pre-stressed Reinforced Concrete 

 Partially (mostly) buried 

  Domed roof 
 

Bid amount:  $2,935,000 

Final cost:   $2,950,000 (<0.5%) 
 

Start:     October 2014 
 

Completion: March 2016 



Construction Progress 

Horizontal Directional Drilling of Outlet Pipe 



Horizontal Directional Drilling of Outlet Pipe 

Construction Progress 



Construction Progress 

Interior Tank Inspection 



Seismic Fitting Installation 

Construction Progress 



Construction Progress 

Backfilling 



Construction Progress 

Backfilling 



Construction Progress 

Rough Grading 



Rough Grading 

Construction Progress 



Construction Progress 

Final Grading 



Next Steps 

• Complete landscaping 

• Install fence 

• Painting 

• SCADA integration 

• Punch list 

• Close out 



Questions 



SUBJECT: 

MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

TO: 

For Meeting Of: March 3, 2016 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: Clemens Heldmaier, General Manage 

Review and Possible Action Concerning 
OpenGovernment Online Platform. 

At the request of Director Slater-Carter, the Board received a presentation from 
OpenGov.com about their software product at a recent meeting. The web 
application visualizes financial information for citizens, ,like general ledger, chart of 
accounts, current year spending and balance sheet. Purpose of the software is 
increased budget transparency for Directors and Public. 

Concerns about unknown cost associated with the setup and maintenance led to 
the Boards request to negotiate an early termination clause. Instead Opengov is 
suggesting a scaled agreement with lower cost in the initial year and increasing 
cost in following years. At the last meeting the Board requested staff to contact 
current users inquiring about their experience with the product. 

Staff contacted the City of Roswell, New Mexico, the West Bay Sanitary District, 
and the San Dieguito Water District. The experience with Opengov was generally 
positive for Roswell and San Dieguito. Both Financing Directors described the 
service as a great public facing tool that requires limited maintenance. The West 
Bay Sanitary District's accountant did not criticize the product itself, however 
mentioned the additional work of keeping the system up to date with varying hours. 
In all three cases other staff members were also involved in the setup and 
maintenance and an accurate account of work hours spent not readily available. 
The city of Roswell was able to state that not more than two hours per month were 
needed to maintain the website. 

Due to the timeline of the extended offer for 2015 prices the manager engage in 
the services with Opengov. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

This is for Board Information only 



M           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  March 3, 2016 
 
                                   TO:                BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
 

1 
 

 

SUBJECT:  Executive Summary – December 31, 2015 Mid-Year 
 Budget vs. Actual 

 
Sewer Service Charges: Total revenue of $1,056,939 collected; 51.91% of budget.  

1st Sewer Service assessment received in December.  

Water Sales: Total revenue of $890,472 collected; 53.01% of budget. 

No additional developments to report, outside of monthly flow report analysis.  

The Bartle Wells Water Rate study has been attached to begin discussions for a proposed water 

rate increase of 3%.  

Sewer Fees: Total revenue of $34,668 collected; 182.46% of budget. 

Remodel fees are the particular line item which has seen the most activity. However, outside of 

remodel fees, the District’s various other fees are 68.20% of total budget midway through the 

fiscal year.  

Water Fees: Total revenue of $23,639 collected; 226.21% of budget. 

Mainline extension fees are the particular line item which has seen the most activity. However, 

outside of mainline extension fees, the District’s various other fees are 84.30% of total budget 

midway through the fiscal year.  

Sewer Property Tax: Total revenue of $117,061 collected; 50.90% of budget. 

Water Property Tax: Total revenue of $117,060 collected; 50.90% of budget. 

The District received an excess ERAF distribution of $191,294 in January 2016. Currently, the 

amount is split 50/50. Prior year’s ERAF distribution was allocated 100% toward the Water Fund 

in order to be better leveraged for the upcoming debt service payments for the Alta Vista Tank 

project. A decision regarding this year’s allocation has not yet been made. 

  



M           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  March 3, 2016 
 
                                   TO:                BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
 

2 
 

 

Sewer Personnel expense: Total expense of $124,596 incurred; 39.98% of budget 

As of 1/31/2016 PARS contributions have not been made. The total budget for the year is set at 

$45,285. Payments in arrears due to the retro aspect of the plan would be $17,099.57 or 

37.76% of budget. 

Water Personnel expenses: Total expense of $300,597 incurred; 39.07% of budget 

As of 1/31/2016 PARS contributions have not been made. The total budget for the year is set at 

$111,796. Payments in arrears due to the retro aspect of the plan would be $34,141.80 or 

30.54% of budget 

Sewer Professional Services: Total expense of $57,566 incurred; 64.28% of budget. 

Water Professional Services: Total expense of $68,183 incurred; 49.64% of budget. 

Please refer to individual account line items for a distinct performance indication.  

Sewer Engineering: Total expense of $9,251 incurred; 17.46% of budget. 

Water Engineering: Total expense of $37,646 incurred; 56.19% of budget. 

Minimal activity to date in terms of Sewer activity.  

Water engineering expenses were below budget in terms of general engineering; however, 

Water Quality Engineering expenses were higher than expected. 

  



M           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  March 3, 2016 
 
                                   TO:                BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
 

3 
 

 

Sewer Pumping: Total expense of $8,310 incurred; 30.78% of budget. 

Water Pumping: Total expense of $32,490 incurred; 39.38% of budget. 

All costs associated with this line item are from PG&E.  

Sewer Authority Mid-Coastside: Total expense of $555,299 incurred; 47.94% of budget 

Collections, Maintenance, and Capital assessments were all budgeted to the penny. The reason 

for the below budget is for items that are unknown during the budget process which include 

account number’s 6940 and 6950 which is maintenance of the pumping and collection systems. 

The District is responsible for various costs of maintaining sewer lines and lift stations which 

SAM performs.  

Water Supply: Total expense of $29,411 incurred; 65.36% of budget. 

Well Maintenance expenses have run over budget mid-way through the fiscal year.  

Water Collection/Transmission: Total expense of $49,745 incurred; 52.64% of budget. 

Majority of costs are contracted services from Andreini Brothers, Moss Excavation, and R & B 

Company for maintenance of water mains, service mains, and other services for District 

customers.  

Water Treatment: Total expense of $25,559 incurred; 43.32% of budget. 

Costs associated with the purchase of chemicals and equipment as well as the analysis of water 

samples by BSK lab, CA laboratory services, as well as North Coast County Water District.  

  



M           MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY        
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  March 3, 2016 
 
                                   TO:                BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens H. Heldmaier, General Manager 
 

4 
 

 

All other Accounts Sewer: Total expense of $9,763 incurred; 20.73% of budget. 

All other Accounts Water: Total expense of $97,257 incurred; 76.52% of budget. 

The amounts for Water are a bit skewed at this point due to the placement of a SCADA capital 

expense being classified as an expense in the current period. With the correction made to the 

financials on a go forward basis, the expense category would be 47.89% of budget. 

Sewer Capital Improvement: Total expense of $37,554 incurred; 5.48% of budget.  

Minimal activity has occurred to date. 

Water Capital Improvement: Total expense of $1,109,199 incurred; 64.15% of budget. 

The Alta Vista Tank construction consists of $827,350 or 75% of the total cost of capitalized 

expenditures. 

Sewer Connection Fees: Total revenue of $62,929 collected; 19.33% of budget. 

A total of 2 new construction connection fees sold. 

A total of 3 remodel connection fees sold.  

Water Connection Fees: Total revenue of $89,398 collected; 56.94% of budget. 

A total of 5 new construction connections sold. 

A total of 5 new construction PFP connections sold.  



M   MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY      
DISTRICT AGENDA 

 

          For Meeting Of:  March 3, 2016 
 

                                   TO:               BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 
                                FROM:         Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

  

SUBJECT:   Review and Possible Action Concerning Mid-
Year Budget Review. 

 

To allow the Board and public to be as well informed as possible regarding the 
District’s financial reporting; a number of steps have been taken over the past 3 
years. The Funds Balance Sheet and Revenue & Expenditures Budget vs. Actual 
line items were renamed and grouped with the intent to make the reports 
understandable for everyone in the District. In addition a 12 month Revenue & 
Expenditures Budget vs. Actual was introduced as well as an executive summary 
that highlight’s variances in the Budget line items.  
 
Peter Medina with Maze & Associates has prepared documents that illustrate the 
comparison of the District’s financial position for the period ended December 31, 
2015 with the previous fiscal year’s period ended December 31, 2014.  
 
   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
 This is for Board information only. 
 
Attachment 
 



SUBJECT: 

MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

TO: 

For Meeting Of: March 3, 2016 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

Receive Annual Update to Staff Action Plan for 
MWSD Strategic Plan. 

This Board approved its first Strategic Plan in early 2015. The Goals and 
Objectives should be reviewed and a Strategic Plan Update produced by February 
2017. Staff has reviewed and updated its Action Plan to implement the Boards 
direction. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

This is for information only 

Attachments 



1.1.0 I !The Dlstrictwlll proactively protect and Improve water quality and supply, where needed. 

1.1.1 1 
Track developmenl plans ol public and privale landowners (Counly, GGNRA, POST,elc.) for polenlial impacls 
to walershed, such as seplic syslems elc. 

1.1.2 See 1.2.1 

1.1.3 2 
Continue to establish groundwater level and stream-gauging programs to improve understanding of District's 
hyctology. 

1.1.4 13 
I Develop an integrated regional water management plan for walershed proleclion, increased knov.iedge base 
and increased funding opportunilies. 

1.1.5 13 Develop regional groundwater management agency. 

12.0 I The District will ensure pennanentwater Independence. 

1.2.1 
J t 

1
continue Renewal and Rehabilnelion Program for exisling groundwaler and surtace water sources lo prolecl 

I sustainability, water qualny, and supply availability 

1.2.2 11 
I Proceed with Waler Source Exploration on Caltrans Right of Way to ensure waler supply reliability, source 
- ·olection and continued suslainabilitv 

1.2.3 12 I Negotiale extension lo aill further exploralory wells after April 2015. 

1.2.4 12 
IConlinua developing a Supply and Demand Analysis on an annual basis to understand customer demands 
J and plan future water supply, as necessary. 

1.24 
I 

12 JPrepareMasterPlan Update 

1.3.0 I I The Dlstrictwlll Incorporate phenomena such as seawater rise and weather extremes, and any other 
Identified challenges In Its 2lannln9 and lm2lementation of water 2rog·rams. 

1.3.1 13 
I Work wilh neighboring agencies to ensure secure long4erm regional waler supplies that aren't affected by 
climate change. See 1.1.4 and 1.4.5. 

1.3.2 12 
I Support SAM's Recycled Water Project Phase 1 and laler, coast-wide, phases that offset use of local water 
sources, prevent seawater intrusion, creek restoration and improve long term water security. 

2.1.1 JNAJSee2.2.1 and2.2.2 

22.0 

2.2.1 

2.2.2 

2.2.3 

2.3.0 

2.3.1 

2.4.3 

Staff will design and Implement communication thatls consistent with Board-approved messaging. 

Develop an Oulreach Plan and budget for Board approval. 

Implement Oulreach Plan. 

2 I Prepare and distribute initial newsletter, future edilions depending on Outreach Plan. 

Staff will develop and follow an outreach plan and budget and will consider and select among all 
outreach tools for cost-effectiveness and practicality (e.g. open houses, newlsetters, press, social 

NA I See 2.2.1 and 2.2.2 above 

3 I Complele under conslruction areas of website 

l_MWSO.Wrk.Shop·WorkPlan_l4.2.4.1dsx 1 of 4 

Obj 

Clemens Ongoing When received Ongoing 

NA NA Planned progress underway. See 1.2.1 

Clemens With Balance Hyctologic Dec-15 Annually Completed, new timing Dec-16 

Oblain Board approval, slart 
Clemens negotialing w/ slakeholders I May-15 I I Not Completed, new timing (NT) Dec. 16 

by May-15 

Obtain Board approval, slart 
Clemens negolialing w/ slakeholders / Dec-15 I I Nol Completed, NTDec. 16 

by Dec-15 

Obj 

Funds currenlly still 
Clemens available, delayed due to 

lack of ctillino rios ldrouohl\ 

Clemens 
5 Boreholes allowed to tesl 
O'ill until Anril 2015. 

Clemens 

Tanya 

Clemens/I 
Tanya 5 year Update 

Obj 

Clemens 

SAM reps and full Board 
Board play crilical role. A political 

effort primarily. 

Martin 

Obj 

Martin !Consultant Support 

Clemens I Consultant Support 

Martin JConsullant Support 

Obj 

Clemens !Consultant 

Martin 

Minimum of one well Portola 3 and Portola 4 Well rehab cornpleled. This yea~s focus on Wagner 
Dec-15 

per annum Well reconslruclion, approval of addilional funds in CIP. New timing Feb. 17 

Dec-15 Deadline 2015 2 Boreholes successfully cornpleled. 

Mar-15 
Start negotiations 

Change lo: Negotiale property acquisition, NT Feb 17 
before April 

Dec-15 Annually I Completed. NTDec. 16 

I 0ec-16 I JNew Action introduced Feb 2016 

I NA !Ongoing as needed !Ongoing 

Se 
15 

I Ongoing as needed. I Ongoing Support, regular Board updates through committee reports. NT Sep 
P- Evaluale annually 17 

May-15 

May-f5 Start in March 

Jun-15 See Plan 

Apr-15 I start Now? 

--
May-15 

Apr-15 !April 

Partially completed through Slrategic Plan. NT September 16 

Not Completed. Proceed with Plan presentation and budget approval in 
conjunclion with District Btcd®1J,JLlulv 16 

Not Compleled. See 2.2.1 NT August 16 

2 Newslellers completed, NT_ ongoing 

NA 

Cornpleled. Change Aclion to: Keep website up lo date and increase online 
informalion services. NT ongoing 



3.1 .0 

3.1.1 

32.0 

3.2.1 

3.2.2 

3.3.0 

3.3.1 

3.3.2 

3.4.0 

3.4.1 

3.5.0 

3.5.1 

3.5.2 

3.6.0 

3.6.1 

3.6.2 

4.1.0 

4.1.1 

4.1.2 

4.1.3 

42.0 

4.2.1 

4.2.2 

2 

CostB will be allocated through rates that are fair by class and customer; and will be developed after 
evaluating all reasonable options beyond tiers, lncludlng how well connection options will Influence 
rates. 

Complete Water Rate Study. 

Add and update new rates. 

Implement annual solid waste rate changes in accordance 'Mth the franchise agreement 

Evaluate Sewer Service Charges and implement necessary rate increases or proposition 218 processes. 

Rates will be sustainable, steady, defensible, undenitandable and fair. 

See 3.1.1, 3.2.2, and 3.2.1. 

Prepare Connection Fee Review 

Use the longest reasonable outiook for planning lntras1ructure replacement needs, while recognizing 
thatlnfrastructure planning Is In flux. 

Include in the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) fu1ure anticipated replacement cost for the upcoming 10 
years and evaluate funding possibililies. 

Enable effective Board and public oven,ight of finances through effective and understandable 
financial repartlng. 

Complete bi-annual finance review by Finance Committee and Board. 

2 I identify key financial highlights and summarize for Board review. 

Develop a well conversion program that will promote voluntary conversions and the necessary 
Incentives and communication tools lo make II happen. 

Evaluate the possibility of well conversion loan program based on existing models. 

Enhance Board and staff relationships with other agencies (Board Work Plan). 

General Manager .,.,;11 develop tangible opportunrties for Directors to assist 'Mth inter-agency collaboration. 

Create 1he opportunity for the Board to discuss importance of Director engagement by including the item on 
fu1ure Boardfe.lenda_s. 

Promote staff-level collaboration on inter-agency projects by setting up meetings 'Mlh local agencies that are 
crrtical to project success. 

Enhance dialog with other agencies abou1collaborative opportunities for local parks, etc. 

Obj 

Clemens IWrth Bartle Wells 

Obj 

Clemens 

Clemens I With Bartle Wells 

Obj 

Board 

Apr-15 IEffectiveJuly-15 

FY 15116 

l_MWSD.Wrk.Shop..WorkPlan_l4.2.4.xlsx 2 of 4 

Compleled. Cliange to Evaluate Waler Rates and implement necessary rate 'j 
increases. NT June 16 

Dec-15 I I Completed. NT Dec 16 

Annually. Effective !Completed, NT Apr 16 
Apr-15 IJu1v-15 

NA NA NA 
Clemens/ 

1 
Dec-16 

Obj 

Tanya+ 
Pippin 

Obj 

Clemens IWrth Peter 

Jun-15 
Completed. NT Jun 16 

Mar-1 5 Completed. NT Mar-16 

Clemens discuss .,.,;th Board 
Clemens lin budget season. I Apr-15 !Based on Board lnputiCompleted. NT May-16 

Obj 

Oct-15 IShare"Mlhpublic In progress. NT Oct 16 

Obj 

Clemens Ongoing Ongoing 

Pres. Mar-15 Not Completed NT August 16 

Clemens Timing Ongoing 

Obj 

Seek to make the Callrans Public Right of Way accessible tor groundwater supply and community recreation. I Clemens I Need Board support Jun-15 \Undelway. Evaluate 
progress biannually I In progress. NTFeb 17 

See 5.1.2 and 5.3.1 NA NA NA NA NA 



5.1 .2 

5.2.0 

5.2.1 

5.3.0 

5.3.1 

6.1.0 1 

6.11 [1 

Be responsive to community desires for new services and take a leadership role in considering 
whettier to provide additional services. 

Research and track opportunities to collaborate wi1h San Mateo County on providing energy to 1he Montara 
and Moss Beach communrties. 

Examine each oppor11lnlty on a case-by-case basis. Evaluate and make clear any Impact on quality, 
avallabilty or cost of existing services. 

Mostly abou1 tracking and 
Clemens I following. Considering 

seeking a seat at the table. 

Obj 

When opportunrties for providing additional services are presented or discovered, each v.iil be considered by a I Clemens I Board Suppori 
cas0-0y-case basis. 

Seek to provide services collaboratively when mutually beneficial partnerships can be found. Obj 

Conlinue_ t_o seek opporiunities to collaborate and develop partnerships v.ilh local agencies and present viable I Clemens I Board Suppori 
oppo,tumt,es lo the Board. 

Develop and Implement a plan for retaining Institutional knowledge. Obj 

Complete Salary Study and evaluate implementalion strategies for retaining staff, including implementation of 
IEDA [With Clemens effeclive qualitalive strategies, including employee incentives. 

6.1.3 12 1
Assess staffing levels in terms of stress and reliability to meet District needs. Include succession planning and 
abililv to deal with maior =nnel interruolions. Clemens lwilh IEDA 

6.2.0 Develop, follow and appropriately update procedures for Administration, Human Resources, and 
Obj Manaaement 

6.2.1 2 Review and update Employee Manual. IEDA IWilh Clemens 

6.2.2 3 Review and updale ail District policies and procedures and suggesl addnions and updales. Clemens I 
6.2.3 2 Asess field staff levels lo improve system reliabilily in conjunclion v.ilh sewer collection system mainlenance 

Pippin \wilh Clemens 
aoreement. 

6.3.0 I Emergency planning should be appropriately updated wiU, documented procedures and mettiods In 
!!!ace for coordinating wfU, ottiers. 

Obj 

6.3.1 2 Update !he existing Emergency Response and Recovery Plan (ERRP) lo maintain a relevanl emergency 
I Clemens I planning document. 

6.3.2 3 Become a leader and a hub for local ulilily emergency planning. I Clemens I Need Board suppori 

7.1.1 1 
Continue the implemenlation of a mainline replacemenl program, focused on areas prone 1o leaking and/or 

Tanya lwilh Pippin overilow. 

7.1.2 2 Implement improvements at wastewater lift stations to improve reliability and mitigate overflows. Pippin 

7.1.3 3 Evaluate other methods for the reduction ot inflow and infiltralion (l&I). Pippin 

72.0 
Asset Management - Consider llfecycle costs In alt facility construction, upgrades, maintenance and 

Obj 
manaement decisions and activities. Continue with water and focus attention on sewer. 

7.2.1 3 Include lifecycle cost analysis in the Feasibility Studies for new facilities, facilny upgrades, and/or 
Tanya wilh Pippin 

maintenance activities. 

7.3.0 Creatively seek oppor11lnties to maintain or Improve quality while lowering costs. Obj 

7.3.1 3 Research grant opporiunities for installation of energy efficient technolog ies. Tanya with Pippin and Clemens 

3 

l _MWSD.Wrk..Shop-WorkPlan_l4 .2.4.x\sx 3 of 4 

Au _15 1
ongoing. Annual 

g Board discussion 
Ongoing. Board discussion completed in early 2015 

NA Ongoing 

Ongoing. Annual 
Sep-15 I Board discussion Ongoing, completed several Board discussions 

I Apr-15 I [Pariially completed, NT Dec 16 

I Nov-15 I I Partially compleled, NT Dec 16 

Mar-16 Not Compleled, NT Mar 16 

Aug-16 Ongoing, NT Aug 17 

Mar-16 In progress, NT May 16 

I Aug-15 I Every five years I Completed. 

Nov-15 I Annual updale I Ongoing NT Nov 16 

Jun-15 :::tY· ReviewwilhJCompleled. NT Jun 16 

Jun-15 :::t ReviewwilhlCompleled NT Jun 16 



l _MWSD.Wrk.Shop-WorkPlan_l4 .2.'1.xlsx 4 of 4 

~ :-- Goal 8: Governance. 
i The Board will govern lawfully, with an enphasis on (a) outward vision rather than internal 
Is 

O O 
preoccupation; (b) encouragement of diversity in viewpoints; (c) strategic leadership mor_e than 

I · · administrative debil; (d) clear distinction of Board and general manager roles; (e) collective rather 

I
. tl1an individual decision-making; (I) future rather than past or present and (g) practivlty rather than 

reactivity -· 
Goal 

~ CJ The Board will Invest In Itself and Its members' training and governance capacity. 

8.1.1 12 I Board consider need for additional training Board Oct-15 Not Completed. NT Oct 16 

Continued Board development Is to include orientation of new board memen,, and periodic 
82.0 I I consideration of Board governance effectivness, lncludlng enhancing communication between Board Obj 

membeni and between the Board and general manager 

8.2.1 2 
Board will evaluate its own governance effectiveness, including its cornmunciation with Iha GM and consider 

Board Feb-15 Annually Not Compleled. NT May 2016 
chancres. 

8.2.2 2 Initiate discussion about selection and prepareation of officers early in the year. Board Oct-15 Annually Not Completed. NT Oct 2016 

8.2.3 2 Board will review strategic Plan Annually Board Feb-15 Annually Completed. NT March 2016 

4 





MWSD Strategic Plan 2015 by Rauch Communication Consultants, Inc. 2 



PARTICIPANTS: 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Scott Boyd, President, SAM representative 

Jim Harvey, President pro tern, SAM representative 

Kathryn Slater-Carter, Treasurer, SAM alternate 

Dwight Wilson, Secretary 

Bill Huber, Director 

DISTRICT MANAGEMENT STAFF 

Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

CONSULTANT 

Martin Rauch, Managing Consultant 

MWSD Strategic Plan 2015 by Rauch Communication Consultants, Inc. 3 



Purpose 

Strategic Plan Framework 

How Plan Elements Relate (Graphic) 

Strategic Planning Process 

Rating the District Today 

Challenges and Opportunities 

Priority Issues 

Mission 

Vision for the Future 

Values 

Strategic Goals and Objectives 

4. Staff Plan 

Achieving Expectations 

Ensuring Results 

MWSD Strategic Plan 2015 by Rauch Communication Consultants, Inc. 4 



1. INTRODUCTION: rpose the Plan 

Planning is strategic when it helps move an organization forward from its current situation to 
its desired future. 

This Strategic Plan is the District's highest level planning document, and represents the Board's direction 
for the future, and the staff's work plan for implementing it. 

It was developed through a step-by-step process that included recognizing the District's operating 
environment, strengths and weaknesses of the organization, as well as opportunities and challenges. 

It identifies the agency's mission, vision, and values, while providing a set of goals and objectives that 
becomes a framework for all decision-making. 

The Plan is also a practical working tool that provides clear direction to the staff about the Board's goals 
and objectives, and includes a work plan developed by the staff to meet those goals and objectives. As 
such, it is referred to regularly as a guide to District actions during the period covered. 

To keep it fresh, it must be updated annually and rolled forward so that there is always a five-year guide 
to the future. 

MWSD Strategic Plan 2015 by Rauch Communication Consultants, Inc. 5 



1. INTRODUCTION: Strategic Framework 

The Strategic Plan is built from a series of logical components, described below and shown in 
the graphic. 

Mission. The mission statement explains why 
the organization exists. It articulates the 
organization's essential work in a brief sentence 
or two. 

Vision. The vision articulates what the agency 
will become at a given time in the future. It is 
the strategic target which, when achieved, is 
the fulfillment of the agency's mission. As such, 
it is at the heart of the strategic planning 
process. 

Values provide guidance when an agency is 
faced with challenging decisions that require 
tradeoffs, options and alternatives. Values are 
set by the Board, govern attitudes and 
behaviors, and generally remain constant over 
time. 

Goals describe broad, primary areas of 
management, operations and planning that 
need to be addressed in accomplishing the 
mission. Goals are not connected to timelines. 

MISSION: 
Why our organization exists 

I 
VISION: 

A guide that describes: the Agency's desired future 

Objectives are more specific directions that expand upon the goals. They are set by the Board. There 
may be multiple objectives for each goal. Objectives are SMART: Specific, Measurable, Attainable, 
Related to Goals, Time Certain. 

Strategic Work Plan contains measurable, precise timetables and actions to accomplish the mission, 
goals, and objectives. They are assigned to individuals or departments. There may be multiple tasks for 
each objective that can be crossed off as finished. 

MWSD Strategic Plan 2015 by Rauch Communication Consultants, Inc. 6 



PLAN ENT: Strategic Planning Process 

The strategic planning process was carried out in the series of steps as outlined below. 

Background Research. The consultants began by holding discussions with the General Manager. 

Confidential Interviews. This was followed by a series of confidential interviews carried out by the 
consultant. The goal is for the interviewees to candidly express their interests and perspectives on the 
District's and its priorities. 

The interviewees included the entire Board of Directors as well as numerous stakeholders, including 
leaders of neighboring local governments, customers and others as outlined below. 

STAFF: Clemens Held maier, GM, and Julian Martinez, Superintendent of Water Operations 

BOARD: Scott Boyd, Director; Dwight Wilson, Director; Bill Huber, Director; Jim Harvey, Director; and 
Kathryn Slater-Carter, Director 

OTHER STAKEHOLDERS: David Dickson, Coastside County Water District GM; Gary Warhaftig, Montara 
Moss Beach Water Improvement Association; Leonard Woren, Granada Sanitary District Director; Peter 
Grenell, San Mateo County Harbor District; Paul Cole, Assistant Fire Chief; Robert Hopkins, Sewer 
Authority MidCoast GM; and Don Horsley, San Mateo County Supervisor. 

CUSTOMERS: Lou Wall, Ex Director, Customer; Susan Hayward, Customer; Bill Kehoe, Customer; Michael 
Gasser, Customer; and Lisa Ketcham, Pillar Pointe Mobile Home Community. 

Two Board Planning Workshops. The Board of Directors and senior management staff participated in 
two strategic planning workshops. At these workshops, the group reviewed the results of the interviews, 
undertook a number of exercises to examine the current state of the District, and identified critical 
issues and opportunities expected to confront the District in the future. Ultimately a plan was developed 
from this work that included an updated mission statement, vision, values, and strategic goals and 
objectives. 

Community Meeting. On July 24, 2014 the District held a community meeting to obtain public input on 
the public planning process. The meeting was held at Cypress Meadows and about 70 members of the 
community participated. There was a very active exchange and sharing of ideas facilitated and recorded 
by Martin Rauch with support of District staff. Topics of discussion included: 

• How should we prioritize investments? 

• What improvements would you like to see in our services? 

• What challenges and opportunities should we focus on? 

• What is your long-range vision for the District and community? 

Staff Work Plan. Once the policy level portions of the plan were completed in the Board workshops, the 
management team worked with the consultant to develop a detailed staff work plan designed to meet 
the mission of the District and strategic goals and objectives. 

MWSD Strategic Plan 2015 by Rauch Communication Consultants, Inc. 7 



2. 

Avg. 8.6 
9,.9; 8 

Avg.8+ 
9, 8 

Avg .. 9.5 
9.5 

Avg.8+ 

Avg;8+ 

Avg. 7 

Avg. 6 .• 6+ 
6, 6, 7, 7, 
7,7 

Avg.6 

Avg. 5.2 
2,4, 5, 
5,7,.8 

Avg.5 
5, 5 

Avg.5 
5 

Avg.5 
5 

Avg~4 
6,2 

DEVELOPMENT: Rating the District Today 

it is 
features of 

Administration; Goodjob replacing mains and tanks cotnpared to the past .when th.e 
system was held together by r.ubber bands'. While it is generally g9od, could .do better. 

Operations. Our small size makes us vulnerable due to the small number of staff and 
limited backup for personnel. 

Progress. We have made a lot Qf progress tminfrEistructure: water system, SSOs; pipe 
deaning, financing ofthe .• sewer system; We also.have gopd representatives on.SAM'. 

Sewer. We need to continue working to reduce SS0s. 

Water Quality: We have madetremendotJs improvement fn water quality. 

Board Governance. There is opportunity for improvement here. 

Rates and Finance. We a well-designed tiered rate. But the rate structure 
should be k1oked at again. The District generally has good controls, but there is room for 
improvement District has a deficit and there is a need .to .address that. 

Watershed Protection. There are no immediate concerns, but we need to remain 
proactive to protect the groundwater and prevent degradation . 

. customer Service, Sta.keholder Support and Customer Relations. Th~ District generally 
has positive support, good cu.stomer service and is close tP tustomers. Ho\Never,. our 
public is unaware of the .constraints we .operate un.der and our achieveme.nts. In addition, 
the perception of customers on wells is out of sync with reality. We need to explainbetter 
to them and reach out to customers more. help. 

Intergovernmental Relations. There have been improvements, but it remains a difficult 
area. This is an area where both staff and board can work on and make improvements 

Staff.to B<>ard Communication. There is room for improvement in the Manager's 
communication to the 

Maturity. The District has matured in many ways administratively, in terms of engineering 
and finance, etc. But there is more work to do. 

En:iergency Planning. Need to 1.Jpdc1te emergency planning, documentation and 
procedures. Ne.ed to develop plans for coordinating With. others in emergencies. 

MWSD Strategic Plan 2015 by Rauch Communication Consultants, Inc. 8 



2. DEVELOPMENT: Challenges Opportunities 

Below is a 

was 

RATE STRUCTURE AND CHARGES 

• Our rates are stable but on the high side and 
need to be raised. 

• There will be a challenge to balance the needs 
of our customers and keeping costs affordable. 

• The tiered system is not meeting needs and 
needs to be evaluated and reconsidered. 

• Consider new financial options such as using 
property taxes 100% for water to help pay off 
the debt. 

• Providing adequate reserves. 

WATER SUPPLY 

• Maintaining our sources of water and water 
independence. 

• Increasing the water supply is critical both in 
the hills and at the airport. 

PRIVATE WELLS 

• Need to deal with wells drawing on the aquifer 
• Well conversions. If people understood the 

costs, quality, testing, they may be happy to 
hook up. 

• Need to clarify our policies. We don't force 
people to connect, but it is better for the 
groundwater aquifer, better for many 
landowners in the long-run and better for 
District revenue if they do. 

• Need to improve how we work with the County 
to ensure seamless permits. 

MAINTAINING LOCAL GOVERNANCE AND 

RELATIONSHIPS WITH OTHERS. 

• There are always pressures from outside to do 
this or that and it is distracting. Need to square 
away relationships so our status is accepted 
and we have positive relationships. 

WATER QUALITY 

• Dealing with water quality issues at the airport. 

in 

to 

process are 

issues 

PARTICIPATION IN SAM 

oe1crer.1 to 

District 

• Changeover of SAM representatives and staff 
causes a challenge with maintaining a historical 
view and continuity. 

• Changeovers also provide an opportunity to 
develop relationships with new people. 

• Ever rising regulations increases costs and 
complexity. 

STAFFING 

• Having a small staff makes it difficult to have 
adequate breadth of expertise and depth to 
schedule efficiently and provide backup 

DROUGHT AND CLIMATE CHANGE 

• Our water supply independence is a good 
thing. Hetch-Hetchy crosses major faults. 

• But we have to ensure groundwater is 
maintained for future. 

• Need conservation strategy. 
• Needs plan for managing wells. 

OUTREACH 

• We have made progress but need to 
communicate more with the public. 

• We have work to do to build positive public 
understanding. 

• If we could provide funding, the hospital and 
school could probably reduce use more. 

CONSIDER BEING A CSD 

• There are a range of possibilities: internet 
income, solar power to reduce costs, develop 
recycled water, etc. 

COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 

• There are limited resources. 
• Ensuring growth is managed by land use 

authorities (County). Districts position is that it 
should provide services to approve growth and 
not be dragged into land use. 

MWSD Strategic Plan 2015 by Rauch Communication Consultants, Inc. 9 



PLAN DEVELOPMENT: Priority Issues 

1, 1, 1 

Avg.1.5 

1, 2 

Avg;2 

1, 2, 3 

Avg.2 

1,3 

Avg.2.5 

2, 2, 3, 3 

Avg.2 

2 

Avg. 2.7 

1, 3, 4 

Avg. 3.3 

3, 4, 4, 4, 4, 5 

Avg.4 

4 

Avg.S 

5, 5 

Avg. 5.5 

S, 6 

I Finances, Rates and Economic Health. Determine if we can encourage voluntary 
! connections and help improve income and reserves. 
i 

the 

! better. 
I .. integrate new 

I infrastructure Planning based on a long-term replacement model. Since we provide 
I a service from source to release, we should be able to undertake long-term, informed 
I planning based on lifecycle costs. 
i 

Community Sustainability Plans. What are our long-term demographics? Be prepared 
! for growth or decline, changes in income, age, needed services, etc. 
1 

Public needs 

I Effective Intergovernmental Relationships. Establishing our primacy for carrying out 
I our mission. Develop better, more positive intergovernmental relationships with 

I others. 
l 

it be better or 
that 

i 
I Internal Operations and Administration. Do we need to develop a needs assessment, 

I evaluate staffing, internships, training for staff? 
' 

long sewage is at 

21_MWSD _Strategic.Plan+Cover.Post.Boa rd .1.docx 10 



2. PLAN DEVELOPMENT: Input from Community Forum 

one-
on-one 

PUBLIC INPUT FROM THE FINAL COMMUNITY FORUM QUESTION IS SUMMARIZED BELOW: 

"Five1 ten or more years into the future1 if you were granted power over the District1 what 
three things would you change or keep the same. 11 

Note: topics with zero votes were nominated by the group but received no votes. 

21 
20 
18 

16 
11 
9 
8 
7 
6 

4 

3 
1 
0 

0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

21_MWSD_Strategic.Plan+Cover.Post.Board.1.docx 

Develop Community Parks District 

Devetop our ovvn interriet service 
Infrastructure Development 

Water O.t1antity 
Water Quality 

Water Conservation··Education 

Keep (happy with) Staff 
l.ower Rates 

Disaster Preparedness Ed. 

SAM:. Cost Control/more accountability 
Bring back senor discount from Recology 

Garbage Sustainability 

Storm Water Usage 

Cell Tower for better.service 
Compost Program Initiated 

Drought Management 
Improve sewer system 

More press releases/outrea~h 

~Montara Waler 
C::J and Sanitary District 

"-"=*===~"~-="'~=,o,===~==w=~~=-=~-

View of a postcard 
used to advertiser 
the community 
forum. 

11 



3. STRATEGIC PLAN: Mission 

A good mission statement should accurately explain why your organization exists and what it 
hopes to achieve in the future. It articulates the organization's essential work. The Board 
drafted and approved the following mission statement: 

To sensitively manage the natural resources entrusted to our care, to 

provide the people of Montara - Moss Beach with reliable, high-quality 

water, wastewater, and trash disposal at an equitable price, and to ensure 
the fiscal and environmental vitality of the district for future generations. Be 

open to providing other services desired by our community. 

21_MWSD_Strategic.Plan+Cover.Post.Board.1.docx 12 



3. IC PLAN: Vision for the Future 

A critical responsibility of the Board of Directors is to identify a vision for the District's future 
and then set goals and objectives to achieve it. This is the heart of the governance role, and 
starts with creations of a vision statement. The following vision statement was developed: 

The Vision for the Montara Water and Sanity District Board of Directors is: 

Trusted and proven to cost-effectively provide our customers with the 
services they need. 

3. STRATEGIC PLAN: Values 

VALUES are is 
responsible for values organizations 
identify and develop a dear, concise shared meaning values/beliefs, priorities, and 
direction so that every employee understands can contribute in way. If defined, 
disseminated and values will impact every of organization. 

emerged workshop discussion. 

can written as statements or 

To be trusted by the community 

Represent and s~rve our community 

Local control 

To provide quality services 

To be responsive to the community and 
its changing needs 

To be open and available to the public we 
serve 

To use customer funds sustainably 

21_MWS0_Strategic.Plan+Cover.Post.Board.1.docx 

as to 

Will it enhance customers' trust in the 
District? 

WiJI it enable the District to better 
represent andserve our community? 

Will it increase local control? 

Will it improveservice quality? 

Will it result in better responsiveness to 
the community and its changing needs? 

VIIUI it makethe District more open and 
available to the public we serve? 

Will it be cost-effective over time? 

13 



3. IC : Strategic Goals and Objectives 

The goals and objectives are presented on the following pages. They, along with the mission, 
vision and values represent the core strategic direction provided in this plan. 

GOAL 1. WATER SUPPLY PLANNING AND SOURCE WATER PROTECTION 

Protect, maintain and develop existing and new water sources for best quality, cost and 
productivity, while ensuring the permanent sustainability of the District's water supply and 
quality. 

1.1 

1.2 

1.3 

The District will proactively protect and improve water quality and supply, where needed. 

The District will ensure permanent water independence. 

The District will incorporate phenomena such as seawater rise and weather extremes, and 
any ether identified challenges in its planning and implementation of water programs. 

GOAL 2. COMMUNICATION 

Actively communicate with all stakeholders in a clear, factual, timely, two-way manner to 

foster understanding and alignment between the District and those it serves and works with. 

2.1 

2.2 

2.3 

Staff Will develop core messages and obtain board approval for them. 

Staff will design and implement communication that is consistent with Board-approved 
messaging. 
Staff will develop and follow an outre~ch plan and budget, and will consider and select 
among all outreach tools for cost-effectiveness and practicality (e.g. open houses, 
newsletters, press, social media, radip interviews, etc.) 

21_MWSO_Strategic.Plan+Cover.Post.Board.1.docx 14 



GOAL 3. RATES AND FINANCE 

Use the longest possible outlook for planning revenue needs, finances and rates. Base 
planning and decisions on a long-term, proactive understanding of finances, capital facility 
planning and operational and regulatory needs. 

Costs will be allocated through rates that are fair; and will be developed after evaluating 
3.1 all reasonable options beyond tiers, including how well connection options will influence 

rates. 

3.2 

3.3 

3.4 

3.5 

3.6 

Adopt and update new Rates by FY 2015/16. 

Rates will be sustainable, steady, defensible, understandable and fair. 

Use the longest reasonable outlook for planning infrastructure replacement needs, while 
recognizing that infrastructure planning is in flux. 
Enable effective Board and public oversight of finances through effective and 
understandable financial reporting. 
Develop a well conversion program that will promote voluntary conversions and the 
necessary incentives and communication tools to make it happen. 

GOAL 4. GOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS 

Promote collaborative relationships and partnerships 

4.1 Enhance board and staffrelationships with other agencies (board work plan). 

4.2 Enhance dialog with other agencies about collaborative opportunities for local parks, etc. 

21_MWS0_Strategic.Plan+Cover.Post.Board.1.docx 15 



GOAL 5. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

Be open to providing additional services that are needed and desired within our service area. 

5.1 

5.2 

5.3 

Be responsive to community desires for new services and take a leadership role in 
considering whether to provide additional services. 
Examine each opportunity on a case-by-case basis. Evaluate and make clear any impact on 
quality, availability or cost of existing services. 
Seek to provide services collaboratively when mutually beneficial partnerships can. be 
found. 

GOAL 6. OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATION 

Develop and maintain an organizational structure and management policies that foster a high 
performing, stable and productive organization that learns and improves over time. 

6.1 

6.2 

6.3 

Develop and implement a plan for retaining institutional knowledge. 

Develop, follow and appropriately update procedures for Administration, Human 
Resources, and Management. 
Emergency planning should be appropriately updated with documented procedures and 
methods in place for coordinating with others. 

21_MWSD _Strategic.Plan+Cover .Post.Boa rd.1.docx 16 



GOAL 7. BUILD AND MAINTAIN FACILITIES THAT ARE RELIABLE, ENVIRONMENTAL 

AND EFFICIENT 

Plan, provide for and maintain District facilities and other physical assets to achieve long
term, reliable, environmentally sound, and efficient District operations. 

Manage the wastewater system with the objective of zero spills and zero permit 
violations: 
Asset Management - Consider lifecycle costs in all facility construction, upgrades, 

7 .2 maintenance and management decisions and activities. Continue with water and focus 
attention on sewer. 

7 .3 Creatively seek opportunities to maintain or improve quality while lowering costs. 

GOAL 8. GOVERNANCE 

The Board will govern lawfully, with an emphasis on (a} outward vision rather than internal 
preoccupation, (b) encouragement of diversity in viewpoints, (c) strategic leadership more 
than administrative detail, {d) clear distinction of board and general manager roles, (e) 
collective rather than individual decisions, (f) future rather than past or present, and (g) 
proactivity rather than reactivity. 

8.1 The Board will invest in itself and its members' training and governance capacity. 

Continued Board development is to include orientation of new board members, and 
8.2 periodic consideration of Board governance effectiveness, including enhancing 

communication between Board members and between the Board and general manager 

21_MWSD_Strategic.Plan+Cover.Post.Board.1.docx 17 



4. WORK PLAN: Staff Work n 

The following pages contain the staff work plan, a linked series of actions developed by staff 
that, when accomplished, will meet the mission, vision, goals and objectives identified by the 
Board of Directors. The work plan is organized in a table format with the following features: 

Priorities: 

There are two kinds of priorities assumed in this work plan: 1) Importance; and 2) Time. It is possible for 
a priority to be critical in importance but not due for a long time. Conversely a priority may have low 
importance but be due promptly. The 1-3 numbering system incorporates a bit of both. The timing 
column indicates due dates. The numbering system is as follows: 

1. Critical project that must be accomplished on Time. 

2. Important project that can be delayed if needed to complete a #1 priority project. 

3. Desirable project that can be delayed or cancelled to complete a #1 or #2 priority project. 

21_MWSD_Strategic.Plan+Cover.Post.Board.1.docx 18 



tt3 

tt5 

· !"fhe Diltdct wtn pmactlwly .;,romctaoo lmp,cvewater qualJty and supply. Where n~lf~. Obl ! : 
lrrack oevelopmient plans or pObllc and private Jarldowners (Coonty, GGNRA, POSl.etc,} for po«ml!al impacts lo Cl~sens ! ~,jng i IA'hen received 1 i waters,tted, such ll!S s.eptit systems etc. l ; 
iSet t2,1 i NA 

an integrated regional water mi!nagement ptm for watershed nmitecifon 
1ino·eased tundang opportunlfres. 

3 groondwatei s~tainatility agency. C!emam, 1n~io~1Urig 

P,t:iy-15 

Oec·'Hi 
DI.le comp!e!e by 
2022. Make annual 
status 

i1.2,0 l Obj 
i l -; -i 
l ,..~ r "' , ~" OA',n»'l" " , • ,.,: A,, .,_,, ., . , , , , .,.,,t \funds cumanUy 1 1 i l'" . 1 ,. 

~ 2 1 • 1 ViJO!lfll.i!B l"\l!flewa.1 Sm, rumo1.1I .. a .. on 10! exi:s"!lg 9muuvW:l:hor; anu S!Jt,a~ wa.er sources to J)fO,ev "' Li ! '. ,I t, • I k i r,,A .. I; l ; 11wn1mum 0, one Weill 
,. , ' tsuS'.alnabiB"' yj~ens i"'.e.ayeuauthO,ae l ix:c.,., l \,.,,,,,,,"""m 

1 lJ, ;11!)$ (dm~ht) f j } y<>I <:irn ;y: 

t i . ' ' L_ _____ J__ ! 
! 
i Ex1Jlill'a1!loo oo Caitrans Right of Way to ensure wa:e:r sou1ce Dec, 15 ! Deadline 2015 

t 
1 J r 

i 2 1 l\'egoliate exloosie,'l to drill further exploratory we!is after April 2015, I C!ernens Mat-15 
! ! f 

lu, 2 ieontim.1adevekipingaS\ipp1yandOemMdMat1,sisonananm.1aloosistoundeni:tandCl.il!ltomen:lemandur.d Tanva ! Dec-rn !Anfltlatf,, ! 
i · ·"' i?lanfuturewaiersupply,as,necessary. • · ! 1 

1 
t 13.a [Tbe Diltrftt wilt ln~orporate pbeoomtnuud'l n renmteulh and we1tbeoxtt1mt1, 1nd ;imy ~ Obj . I 
' • 11demtlleachlllt•initlpl1nnfnt,1ntflrnpltm•tsonofwaterprog~. .. . . t l 
j 1.3.1 3 !"/Q(i( 'llilh nei9!:ooring agencies to ensure se~e klng•tefm regional water supplies that aren't affected by dimate Cleme;,s j NA I Ongolng as nooded 
, 1d1ange, See 1,1.4 and L4.5. , 1 

i.,. SA"' r, .JA.,H.. Ph 1 d' • .nh '"' ., nf l ·-' ! )SAM reps a1'ld full So~-rj i O . . ,,~ .... i..:riupport .~,sn&eyu=n.a~r. . iase a~ ,a,er. ¥1,esesu,ato,isetus,ih.,,.,c ..... ,wa,eir Board lr:,!aycriticalrole.Apo!itical Sep-iS i}'!iJOlflgauee,..i:ru, 
, sourees, fJl'tl/'001 seawater m,rusioo. creek iesloratioo and term wat,oo, ,rt«.-. .. .:-~.,&. ! 1:va!.iate 

Obj 



t>T®ow,n 218 processes. , NmuaH. £1l~Uve 

!S&e3.t1 ,3.22. and3.2.t. NA 

!i.4.0 fUitfttm longest tmormtili-c:uttook fer ptsnnmg rntnmtmcturefeplacelffl!m.rieeui;-wti1tt ret@lilno that 
i 

Jun-15 
_J 

I 
L j 4:U> i !Enhance Board anhllff *ionshtpn'llth ottmrageridt1$ (Board Work Pliin}, j Obj ! ! I ! 
I. I 4. t1 3 !Gener&! Mariage, will develop tm,gil>le. opportuni* for Directors to assist with inter,agency <:i:tlaborat~rt ' · ' ' 
I L.i 1.2 3 j Include S~gitl!t!iOOS f<.ir BoQrom:ember engayemenl in the oommonily atid regloo in future Boaro age!X!as as -- ---r~ Pres. 1 I ,,,.,ar-15 
I i · iowcrtumties arise. i i 1 
1- ----·--·--' • • 
i _ ! , 1 3 3 j Promote staff-level oollaooratioo on iOlet·aQSl'ICY proi(;cts by setting up mfletings 'h'itfl lt:IOal agencies that are ! Clemoos ! 
I 4? l " · !crib! 1iO Pt'*Cl success. i . r 
1 ··4a 'f ,1.2 . .0 i Enfta:11Ce dialog with other tjlffldtl about colaboraffve opporlunfitesfw'lcnl park1, tttc. i. Obj -
1--·--------- . 
C _____ 14.2.1 1 ! Seek to make the Cal!rans Publie Right of W~ aa::essib!e for and i::ommunity teaeaoon. j Clemens Need Soaro supp::irt Jun-15 ~:::~~;;~:: 
, ___ '·-- - ·- - - -·· 



ar;d C!emeM .)trn,-15 



Obj 

Board Feb-16 

initiate discussion aoout s~lectioo and pre,pan!a~<lfl 

Board will review strateg;c pfan [ Board Fet>-16 l 



5. EXPECTATIONS AND UL TS: Achieving Expectations 

One goal this process was to meet 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 

Keep open minds and clearly elaborate goals 

Bring the Board together on a well thought out course 

Achieve a full sharing of ideas, identify challenges and provide direction 

Get to know individual thoughts and perspectives 

No expectations 
Identify strengths and weaknesses. Set goals and priorities. Develop a vision that we can 
jointly work on 

Ultimately develop a plan to meet our needs for water, sewer, and garbage, in a way 
that is affordable and sustainable. 

5. EXPECTATIONS AND RESULTS: Ensuring Results 

In to ensure are District to 

• Publish the Mission, Vision, Values Goals and Objectives on posters and handouts, and display 
them around the District. 

• Incorporate the Mission, Vision, Values, Goals and Objectives into the employee handbook, as 
well as orientation and training materials for new employees. 

• Actively implement the Work Plan by the management team. 

• Incorporate Strategic Plan monitoring by Board committees as appropriate and provide a semi
annual report to the entire Board on progress. 

0 Review and update the Strategic Plan annually and roll it forward. 

21_MWSD_Strategic.Plan+Cover.Post.Board.1.docx 19 







SUBJECT: 

MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

TO: 

For Meeting Of: March 3, 2016 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

Review and Possible Action Concerning 
Agreement with Bodega Marine Laboratory for 
Ocean Current Measurement Instrumentation on 
District Property. 

This Board approved an agreement with the Romberg Tiburon Center for the 
installation and maintenance of High Frequency Radar Equipment to measure 
Ocean Currents in the Gulf of Farallones. The data is not only utilized for basic 
research projects, but also has practical application for NOOA and Coast Guard in 
regards to marine navigation and search and rescue/recovery operations. 

The responsible administrator with the Romberg Center has left the United States 
to implement similar systems in Australia. Therefore the Romberg Center has 
handed the responsibility on to the Bodega Marine Laboratory. 

Legal Counsel has prepared a new agreement for the same purpose with the 
Bodega Marine Laboratory and accompanying resolution. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt Resolution, next in order, Resolution of the Montara Water and Sanitary 
District Approving and Adopting Policy Regarding Acquisition and Use of 
Electronic Readers. 

Attachments 



Montara Water Sanitary District 
Serving the Communities of Montara and Moss Beach 

P.O. Box 370131 Tel: (650) 728-3545 

8888 Cabrillo Highway Fax: (650) 728-8556 

Montoro, CA 94037-0131 E-mail: mwsd@coastside.net 
Visit Our Web Site: http://www.mwsd.montara.com 

To: UC Davis Bodega Marine Laboratory 
PO Box 247 
2099 Westshore Road 
Bodega Bay, CA 94923 
Attention: Tara N. Barbier 

From: Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 
Montara Water and Sanitary District ("MWSD") 

Subject: Revocable Permit to Enter Property 

PERMISSION IS HEREBY GRANTED to the Regents of the University of 
California,a California corporation, on behalf of the Bodega Marine Laboratory 
("Permittee"), to enter upon and use that portion of MWSD's property defined 
hereinafter as the "Premises" to conduct activities related to Permittee's radar ocean 
current monitoring project ("Project") subject to the following terms and conditions. 

1. Term. The Term of this permit ("Permit") is three (3) years commencing on 
January 1, 2016 and expiring on December 31, 2019. 

2. Premises. The Premises ("Premises") includes, collectively, unimproved 
portions of MWSD's property upon and within which a pole-mounted radar transmitter 
and a pole-mounted radar receiver have been installed as described and depicted in 
Exhibit "A," entitled "CODAR/CENCOOS SFSU Site Assessment Report," dated 
September 26, 2014, attached hereto and incorporated herein. Permittee's activities 
shall be conducted solely on the Premises, except that Permittee shall have reasonable 
pedestrian ingress and egress privileges to and from the Premises and use of MWSD's 
vehicle parking area in conjunction with use of the Premises. 



UC Davis Bodega Marine Laboratory. 
March 3, 2016 
Page 2 

3. Permission Revocable. This Permit does not constitute a deed, grant of 
easement, lease, conveyance, or transfer of any property interest in or to the Premises 
or any other portion of MWSD's property. This Permit is revocable, and may be 
terminated without cause at any time at the will of MWSD, effective upon not less than 
twenty four (24) hours' prior notice thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Permit 
may be terminated for cause immediately upon notice from MWSD to Permittee. 
Subject to the provisions of paragraph 6 regarding restoration of the Premises, 
Permittee shall terminate its use of the Premises upon conclusion of the Project upon 
giving MWSD not less than thirty (30) days' prior written notice thereof. 

4. Notification Prior to Entry. Permittee shall notify MWSD in writing by mail, 
facsimile or e-mail of Permittee's commencement of its activities hereunder not less 
than three (3) business days prior to Permittee's initial entry upon the Premises. 
Permittee shall notify MWSD by telephone, e-mail or facsimile not less than twenty four 
hours prior to Permittee's subsequent entry upon the Premises; provided that, on 
occasions when Permittee intends to visit the Premises on an uninterrupted daily basis, 
Permitteee may give a single notification of the estimated duration of those visits and 
Permittee's estimated time of arrival and departure on each day thereof. 

5. No Interference. Permittee shall conduct all activities permitted hereunder in 
an efficient and expeditious manner. Permittee's activities shall be conducted so as not 
to interfere in any manner with MWSD's activities, business and related operations 
conducted on and within MWSD's property and improvements. 

6. Condition, Maintenance of Premises. Permittee hereby accepts the Premises 
in its "as is" condition, and assumes all risks associated therewith. Except for the 
structures depicted in Exhibit A, Permittee shall not construct, install or place any 
improvements, structures, supplies, materials or equipment in, upon, over or under the 
Premises, and shall not alter the Premises or otherwise change the configuration 
thereof. Permittee shall maintain the Premises in a clean, neat and orderly condition. 
Upon expiration of the duration of the use permitted hereunder or earlier expiration of 
the Term or termination of this Permit, Permittee shall restore the Premises to the 
condition substantially conforming to that existing upon commencement of Permittee's 
use thereof. 

7. Hazardous Substances. Permittee shall not use, generate, store or dispose of 
any Hazardous Material on, under, over, about or within the Premises in violation of any 
law or regulation. Permittee agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless MWSD, its 
governing Board, officers, employees, and agents from and against any and all losses, 
liabilities, claims and/or costs (including reasonable attorneys, consultants, and experts 
fees and costs associated with litigation) arising from any breach of Permittee's 



UC Davis Bodega Marine Laboratory. 
March 3, 2016 
Page 3 

agreement contained in the first sentence of this paragraph. The foregoing provisions 
shall not be deemed a limitation upon the provisions of paragraph 9 (Hold Harmless). 
As used in this paragraph, "Hazardous Material" shall mean petroleum or any petroleum 
product, asbestos, any substance known by the State of California to cause cancer 
and/or reproductive toxicity, and/or any substance, chemical or waste that is identified 
as hazardous, toxic or dangerous in any applicable federal, state or local law or 
regulation. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive the expiration of the Term or 
termination of this Permit. 

8. Release. Permittee hereby acknowledges that MWSD's property is 
used for conducting the business and operation of its publicly owned water and 
sewerage systems and that portions of the property within which the Premises is 
located are unimproved, may contain vehicles, machines, equipment, materials 
and supplies used by MWSD for conducting the business and operation of those 
systems and that such operation is of an industrial or commercial nature 
involving risks of personal injury and property damage. Permittee further 
acknowledges that it is familiar with MWSD's operations and properties, and that 
Permittee has inspected the Premises. Permittee hereby assumes any and all 
risks associated with entering upon, occupying, and using the Premises and all 
other portions of MWSD's property used or traversed in conjunction with this 
Permit, and hereby releases MWSD, its governing Board, officers, employees, 
consultants and agents (collectively, "lndemnitees") from any and all liabilities 
arising from Permittee's use and occupancy of the Premises and from entering 
and traversing any other portions of MWSD's property. 

Permittee hereby expressly waives any rights which may accrue to 
Permittee under the provisions of California Civil Code Section 1542, which 
provides: 

"A general release does not extend to claims which the creditor does not 
know or suspect to exist in his favor at the time of executing the release, 
which if known by him must have materially affected his settlement with 
the debtor." 

9. Hold Harmless. Permittee hereby agrees to defend, indemnify, and save 
harmless MWSD, its governing Board, officers, employees, consultants and agents 
(collectively, "lndemnitees") from and against any and all claims, suits, actions, liability, 
loss, damage, expense, or costs (including reasonable attorneys, consultants, and 
experts fees and costs associated with litigation) of every nature, kind, or description, 
which may be brought against, suffered, or sustained by lndemnitees arising out of or in 
connection with Permittee's entry upon, use and occupancy of the Premises, or 
otherwise arising out of Permittee's exercise of the privileges granted hereunder, but 
only in proportion to and to the extent such claims, suits, actions, liability, loss, damage, 
expense, or costs are caused by or result from the negligent or intentional acts or 
omissions of Permitee. 



UC Davis Bodega Marine Laboratory. 
March 3, 2016 
Page4 

The duty of Permittee to indemnify and save harmless as set forth herein 
includes the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the California Civil Code; 
provided, however, that nothing herein contained shall be construed to require 
Permittee to indemnify lndemnitees against any responsibility or liability in contravention 
of Section 2782 of the California Civil Code. 

10. Insurance. Permittee shall acquire and maintain under a policy or policies 
provided by an insurer or insurers admitted in California, or provide under a self
insurance program approved by MWSD, public liability insurance covering the activities 
of Permittee, its employees, volunteers, agents or representatives conducted pursuant 
to this Permit that provides a combined limit of not less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) per occurrence and aggregate. 

Prior to initial entry upon the Premises, Permittee shall furnish MWSD with: 
(i) Certificate(s) and (ii) copy(ies) of information or declaration 

pages of the policy or policies of insurance required hereunder or (iii) 
other evidence of coverage satisfactory to MWSD, with original 
endorsements: 

(a) Precluding cancellation or reduction in coverage before the 
expiration of thirty (30) days after MWSD shall have received written 
notification of cancellation or reduction in coverage by first class mail; 

(b) Providing that Permittee's Insurance shall apply separately to 
each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with 
respect to the limits of the insurer's liability (cross liability endorsement); 

(c) Naming MWSD, its governing Board, officers, employees, 
consultants and agents as additional insureds; and 

(d) Providing that Permittee's Insurance shall be primary insurance 
with respect to MWSD, its its governing Board, officers, employees, 
consultants and agents, and that any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by them shall be in excess of Permittee's Insurance and not 
contributory with it. 

11. Abandonment. In the event that Permittee fails to use the Premises for the 
use permitted hereunder, or otherwise shall fail to exercise its privileges hereunder, or 
shall fail to comply with any of the conditions herein contained, or in the event that this 
Permit shall be revoked, then all privileges of Permittee hereunder shall forthwith cease 
and terminate. 

12. Notices. Written notices required or convenient hereunder to MWSD 
shall be addressed to: 

Montara Water and Sanitary District 
P.O. Box 370131 
Montara, CA 94037 



UC Davis Bodega Marine Laboratory. 
March 3, 2016 
Page 5 

Attn: General Manager 

Phone: (650) 728-3545 
Facsimile: (650) 728-8556 
E-mail: mwsd@coastside.net 

and to Permittee, Real Estate Services 
University of California Davis 
255 Cousteau Place 
Davis, CA 95618 

Attn: Executive Director 

Phone: (707) 754-7897 
E-mail: tbooker@ucdavis.edu 

13. Transferability. This Permit or the privileges granted to Permittee hereunder 
shall not be assigned or otherwise transferred by Permittee without the prior written 
consent of MWSD which may be granted or denied solely at MWSD's absolute 
discretion. 

14. Prior Permit. The parties acknowledge that a prior permit for substantially the 
same purpose as under this Permit had been granted by MWSD to the San Francisco 
State University Romberg Tiburon Center ("Romberg"). Permittee hereby represents to 
and assures MWSD that Permittee has agreed to undertake the activities previously 
performed by Romberg, that Romberg has relinquished all interests it had in the prior 
permit and that as between Permittee and Romberg, this Permit supersedes the prior 
permit. Permittee hereby agrees to, and shall, assume all responsibility for the 
consequences of its transaction with Romberg in assuming the activities and use 
permitted hereunder and agrees that the provisions of Paragraph 9 (Hold Harmless) 
includes such consequences. 

Dated: March 3, 2016 

Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

********************************************************* 

The foregoing Permit and its terms and conditions are hereby acknowledged and 
accepted. 



UC Davis Bodega Marine Laboratory. 
March 3, 2016 
Page6 

Dated: ----- Regents of the University of California, a Californis 
corporation 

By: __________ _ 

Dave Lawlor, Vice Chancellor and 
Chief Financial Officer 



RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

RESOLUTION OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXCUTION OF 
PERMIT FOR SCIENTIFIC OCEAN CURRENT MONITORING 

(UC Davis Bodega Bay Marine Laboratory) 

WHEREAS, the University of California Davis Bodega Bay Marine 

Laboratory proposes to undertake the responsibilities for operating and 

maintaining an ocean current radar monitoring project ("Project") and facilities 

located on this District's property and formerly owned and operated by the San 

Francisco State University Romberg Center; and 

WHEREAS, the Project is operated in conjunction with similar monitoring 

stations along the State's coastline and provides valuable scientific information; 

and 

WHEREAS, this Board encourages scientific endeavors advancing 

knowledge of the earth's natural conditions; and 

WHEREAS, this Board desires to approve and authorize execution of the 

permit hereinafter referenced; 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of the Montara Water and 

Sanitary District, a public agency in the County of San Mateo, California, as 

follows: 

That certain document entitled, "Revocable Permit to Enter Property" by 

and between the Regents of the University of California, on behalf of the Bodega 

Bay Marine Laboratory, a copy of which permit is on file in the Administrative 

Offices of the District, to which copy reference is hereby made for the full 

particulars thereof, is hereby approved and the General Manager is hereby 

authorized and directed to execute said permit for and on behalf of the Montara 

Water and Sanitary District. 

President, Montara Water and Sanitary District 

COUNTERSIGNED: 

Secretary, Montara Water and Sanitary District 
1 



RESOLUTION NO. __ _ 

RESOLUTION OF THE MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXCUTION OF 
PERMIT FOR SCIENTIFIC OCEAN CURRENT MONITORING 

(UC Davis Bodega Bay Marine Laboratory) 

* * * * 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. was duly 

and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of the Montara Water and 
Sanitary District, County of San Mateo, California, at a meeting thereof held on 
the 3rct day of March, 2016, by the following vote: 

A YES, Directors: 

NOES, Directors: 

ABSENT, Directors: 

Secretary, Montara Water and Sanitary District 

2 



SUBJECT: 

MONTARA WATER AND SANITARY 
DISTRICT AGENDA 

TO: 

For Meeting Of: March 3, 2016 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM: Clemens Heldmaier, General Manager 

General Manager's Report 

Conferences: The General Manager will attend the Association of California 
Water Agencies Spring Conference in Monterey from May 3-5. 

The General Manager attended the meet and greet with new ACWA president and 
local water managers on February 19, in Westborough. 

Manager Leave: The General Manager will be out of the office from April 5 through 
April. 15. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

This is for Board information only. 


	consent agenda 1
	consent agenda 2
	Agenda3March16
	AGENDA
	District Board of Directors
	CALL TO ORDER
	ROLL CALL
	PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT
	CONSENT AGENDA

	OLD BUSINESS
	1. Receive AV Tank Construction Update.
	2. Receive Update on OpenGovernment Online Platform.
	NEW BUSINESS
	REPORTS


	consent agenda 4
	consent agenda 5
	consent agenda 6
	consent agenda 7
	consent agenda 8
	consent agenda 9
	Old business 1
	old bus 1a
	Board Presentation March 3 2016 old business 1b

	old bus 2
	Executive Summary - Mid-year budget review 15-16 new bus 1
	Staff Report - Mid-year budget review 15-16 new bus 2
	new bus 3
	new bus 4
	GM Report 7



